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MISSION / VISION STATEMENT

To concentrale on the changing Yarn/Fabric requirements with higher
profitability, both in local as well as in the international market

Maximization of profit regardless of the turnover quantum. reducing the

cost at all levels.

Customer satisfaction is our priority and good return to the shareholders
is our aim, while maintaining friendly and congenial environment for our

employee
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Notice is hereby given that the 36®  Annual General Mecting of the Sharcholders of Idrees Textile Mills Lid, will be
held on November 27, 2025 at 11:45 am al Holel Farman, 8-A PE.CH.S, Block-6 Mam Shahm-c-Faisal Karachi to
transact the followmg business:
ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To confirm the minutes of the ladt Anhual General Mecting held on November 27, 2024,

2. To receive, consider and adopt the standalone and consolidated Annul Audited Financial Statements of the
Company lor the vear ended June 30, 2025, (ogether with the Directors” and Auditors™ Reports thereon and
Churrmun’s Review Report.

The audited Frnancial Statements can be downloaded by using following link and QR Code.

[=;

o
-

:

https:/fidreestextite comiwp-content/uploads 2025/ 10/ Annual- Report-2025-1-8_pdf E

3. Toappoint Auditors for the yeor ending June 30, 2026 and fix their emuncration. The retiring aoditors M/s
BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartercd Accountants, bemng cligible, offer themselves for re-appomtment.

4. To transact any other business thal may be placed biefore the mecting with the permission of the Chair

By order of the Boarnd
Kamchi 5/
Nowvember (M, 2025 SYED SHAHID SULTAN
Company Secretary
Noles:

(1} Sharcholders are advised o promptly notify any change m their sddresses.

(i) Share Transfer Books of the Compuny wall remaimn closed from November 19, 2025 1o November 27
2025 (both days inclusive).

{iit) A member eligible o attend and vole at the Annuoal General Meeting is entitled (o appoint a proxy to
attend, and vote for him'her. Proxies must be received at the Registered Ofice of the Company not less
than 48 hours before the tme of holding the Mecting

CDC Account Holders wall have to follow the guidelines os laid down m Cireular No. 1 Janoary 26, 20040,
Issued by the Secuntics & Exchange Commuission of Pakistan. In casc of corpormate entity, the Board's
resolution / Power of attomey with specimen signature shall be furmished with proxy from the Company.

(1) The sharcholders who wish to attend the AGM throwgh video link are requested to get themsclves
registered by providing the following mformation via cmail at seercteny(iidreestextile.com on or before
MNovember 21, 2025,
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(v)

(vi)

(wii)

(iii)

(xi)

; NMame ol Sharcholder CNIC # CPC Account Nos  Cell Mumber Ermail Address
{Fohio No,

Members shall be regstoned after necessary varification and will be provided & video link and login
credentials by the Company on the same email address from which they emailed to the Company, The
login facility will remain open from 1135 am till the end of the mecting,

Sharcholders can also provide their comments/sugpestions on the proposed agenda items of the AGM on
above email sddress.

Miembers are equested to provide their Intermnational Banking Account Number (IBAN ) logether with a copy
of the Compuierized National Identity Card (CNIC) o updste our records. In case of non-submission all
future dividend payments may be withheld.

A per section 72 of the Compantes Act, 2017 every Company i requimed (o replace ils physical shares with
book entry form within a period not exceeding four years from the commencement of the Compames Act,
2017 e May 30,2017

The Sccurities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan through its cireular § CSIVEDYMise 201 6-639-640
dated March 26, 2021 has advised the histed Companies 1o pursuc their such members who stll hold shares
in physical form, to converl their shares imto book-cniry form.

The sharcholder having physical sharcholding are accondingly cncoumged 1o open their sccount with
Investor Accounts Scrviees of CDC or sub-aceount with-any of the brokers and convert their physical shares
mto senp less forme Thas will facilitate the sharwholders in many ways, meluding safe custody and sale of
shares, any time they want, as the trading of physical shares is not permitted as per existing regulabion of the
Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited.

In terms of the Companics Act, 2017, members residing in a city holding at least 10% of the total paid up
share capital may demand the facility of video-link for participating in the annual general mecting,

If you wish lo take this facility, please fill the fomm appearing below and submit it to the Company al its
registercd address sl least seven (07) days prior to the date of the Mecting.

The Company will intimate members regarding venue of video conference Gacility at least 5 days before the
date of mecting along with complete information necessary 1o enable them 1o secess such facility.

L'We of email addness . bemg a
miember of ldrees Textile Mills Led. holder of Ordinary Share(s) as per Register Folio No.
D Account No hereby opt  for  wideo  conferenee facility  at

Under section 244 ol the Companics Act, 2017, Sharcholders who have not yet collected ther
dividend/physical shares are advised to contact our Share Regstrur JWAFFS Registrar Services (Pvi) Lid
Office # 20, 5* Floor, Arkay Square Extension New Challi, Shahrah -c-Liaguat Karachi, to collect/enguine
about their unclaimed dividend or shares.

The fAnancial statements of the Company for the year ended Junc 30, 2025 along with reparts have boon
pliaced at the websile of the Company,
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The Dircetors of fdrees Textile Mills Limiied are pleased o present the Annual Report logether with the
andited finaneial statements of the Company for the finaneial year ended Junc 30, 2025 and the suditors™
report thercon.

FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL OVERVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is manufaeturing, processing and sale of all kinds of yam. The
Company is also engaged in the business of home lextile. Duning the year under review, there has not
been any material change in the Company *s business activitics.

During the FY25, the Company's tumover amounted to Rsa, 5202 million as compared 1o
Bz 6,450 mullion in the previous yvear Gross profit amounted 1o Bz, 318 million compared 1o
Es 619 million for the last year Inercase i Fuel and Power cost is one of the main reasons of
decline in the gross profil. lis percentage 1o raw material cost increased from 27% to 35% during
the vear under review. Had this percentage remain the same, the total cost be reduced by about
Rs. 300 million.

Finance cost has decreased by Rs. 103 million in FY25 to Rs. 477 million (IFY24: Rs. 580 million).
Loss for the year amounted to Rs. 395 million as compared to loss of Rs. 194 million in the
commesponding period.

The year inder review prosented formidable challenges for the lextile scetor Inadeguate domestie
cotlon crop, morcased reliance on mported cotlon, volatility in raw matenal prices, a subdued yam
markel and uncompetitive finance and cnergy costs have collectively weighed on spimning industry’s
profitability.

Om the back of the Export Facilitlation Scheme (EFS), exporters imercasmgly tumed (o lax- free imporied
yom rather than purchasing domestically produced yam subjected o 1B percent sales Lax. This
significantly affccied the spinning seclor which was compelled Lo sell yam al reduced prices Lo remain
competitive agamst imporicd aliematives. High production cost has intensified financial stress of the
mdustry, lecading (o capacity underutilization across the sector. The government’s drive to shifi the
mdusiries to the nztional grid poses additienal challenges grven the gnd’s limited reliability inindustmal
zoncs. These unfavourable factors have led to a downtum in textile scetor’s profitability. Inadequate
cotton production remaimns a structural challenge, exacerbating financial strain on the textile value chaim.
Since the textile and appare] industry remams the backbone of Pakistan’s cconomy, the Government
must take well thoughl out measures to sirengthen its competitivencss. Most pressing issucs of the
mdustry include availability of affordable finaneing for renewable cnergy to support environmental
compliance, development of hgh-yicld, discase resistonl seed vaneties for belterment of loeal collon
crop, cxpanding export destinations, chmmation of mefficiencies in the supply chain, improvement in
cxporl compelitiveness and cnsuring lextile sector’s sustainable growth in a mpidly changimg global
market place.

The global textile industry 15 also undergoing a significant tansition, like changmg tanff regimes and
trede policics and cvolving susiminability requirements calling for covironmentally responsible
manufacturing processes. Pakistan’s businesses arc gradually adapting to these global shifis. In light of
miemational climate regulations, sustamability and complianee have become entical determimants of
global competitivencss. Withoul sizable investment in green technologies and sustainable practices, the
Country’s lextile exporis risk losmg their markel share.

Recent macrocconomic indicalors arc expecled to case cost prossurcs, improve margins and support
working capili] management. The management eontmues Lo closely monitor and effectively control the
Company’s cash Hows, remaining resilient and professionally maintaining operational discipline while
navigaiing these headwinds.
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(LOSSVEARNING PER SHARE

The (Loss) per share for the year under review worked out 1o Rs. (19.88) as compared 1o loss Rs. (9.79)
[or the corresponding year.

DIVIDEND

In view of the net loss for the year, the Board of Directors has decided not 1o recommend any dividend
for the financial year coded fune 30, 2025,

CORPORATE AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAMEWORK

The Board of Directors conlirms thal:

The lmancial statements prepared by the management present lairy the state of affams of the

Company, the results of its operations, cash flows, and changes in equily.

Praper books of account have been maintained.

Appropriale accounting policies have been consistently applicd in preparation of the financial

statements and accounting exlimales are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

4. Internutional Financial Reporting Standasrds (IFRS), as applicable in Pakistan, have been lollowed in
the preparation of the Fnaneial stalements and any depariure there rom has been adequalely
disclosed.

5. The system ol internal control s sound and has been elfectively implemented and monitored.

6. There are no signilicant doubts upon the Company"s ubilily o conlinue as & gong concern.

7. There has been no malerial departure from Lhe best praclices of corporale governance, as detailed
the Statement ol Compliance a4 requited of the listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulutions, 20149,

8. During the year under review, there has been no trading in shares of the Company by Directors and
their Spouses and minor children.

9. We have and audit commitiee the members of which are from the board of dircctors and the chaimman
is a non-executive director:

10. We have circulated a statement of ethics and business strategy amongst directors and employvees.

11. The board has adopted a mossion statement and a statement overall corporale sirategy.

12. The book value of investment made by the Employees” Provident Fund, being operated for head
olfice cmployees, only as per linancial statements of the Fund as at June 30, 2025 was
B 60,208,625/ (2024-Audited Bs. 49 809 900/-)

Mills employees gre entitled (o gratuity as per law and appropriate provision has been made in the
financial statements.

13. As reguired by the Code, we have included the following information in this report:

- Statement ol Patiern of Sharcholding.

Statement of Shares held by associated underiaking and related partics.

Key operating and (tnancial staiistes for last six years.

it

MATERIAL CHANGES

There bave been no matenal changes or commitments aflocting the financal pesition of the Company
which have occurmed between the end of the financial year and the daie of this report.

The Bodrd conflirms thal no significant evenls, transaclions, or commitments have ansen afler the
balance sheet date thal would matenally affect the Company’s [inancial posibon, performance, or ils
ability Lo conlinuc as & going concem,

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The total numbers of Directors are seven (7)) a8 per the [ollowmng:



a)

b)

c)
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a Male 5 b. Female: 2

The Composition of the Board of Dircetors (the Board) is as follow:

Category MNumbcrs Mames

Executive Directors 02 Mr. 8. M. Mumsoor Allawala
Mr. Omair Idrees Allawala

Non-Executive Direclors 03 Mr. Rizwan ldrees Allawala

Ms. Asmnah Mansoor

Mr. Muhammad Beyax Allab

Mr. Muhammad Zubair®
Independent Dircetors 02 Syed Masud Anl

Ms. Awra Yagub Vawda

*Mr. Muhammad Zubair resigned from directors” ship as on November 28, 2024,

CASUAL VACANCY

During the yesr, Mr. Muhammad Zubair resigned from the Board. To [l the casual vacancy, the Board
appomnled Mr. Muhammad Beyar woel February 24, 2025 a5 Director of the Company. The Board
acknowledees with gratitude the valuable services rendered by Mr. Zubair during his enure.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board of Dircclors has formed the Awdit Commutter and Human Besource amnd Remuneration
Commuitiee in line with the requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance.

The members of Audil Commuitlee are as follows:

Mas. Asra Yagub Vawda Charrperson
Syed Masud Anl Member
Ms. Aumnah Mansoor Member

The members of Human Resource and Remuneration Commillee is as [ollows:

Syed Masud Ardfl Chairman
Mz Avra Yagub Vawda Member
Mz Aamnah Mansoor Member

During the year under review, four meclings of the Boand of Direclors, four Audil Commitlee and onc
Human Resource & Remuneration Commiltce (HR & RC) mecting were held and attended as follows:

Name of Directors Board of Directors Audit Committes HR & RC

during financial year Meeting Attended Meeting Attended Meeting Attended
M. S.M. Mansoor Allawala 4 MNIA N/A

Mr. Omair Idrees Allawala [1%] NiA MNA

Mr. Rizwan Idrees Allawala 4 NiA MNA

Syed Masud Aril 4 04 1]

Mr. Muhammad Zubair (1] NiA N/A

Mr. M. Beyaz Aliab [1%] NIA MNiA

Ms. Aamnah Mansoor 4 4 o1

Ms. Azra Yagub Vawda 04 12| ot
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BOARD EVALUATION

The Company camcs out anmual cvaluation of the Board, members of the Board and its Committccs
as part of the Code of Corporate Governance. For that purposc, Board has developed a mechanism
for evaluation of Board’s own porfurmance, memboers of the Board and its Commitices, Basced on
the evaluation, overall performance of the Board, 1ts members and Committecs of the Board for the
year under review is satislectory. Improvement is an ongoing process keoping m view the global
best practices.

DIRECTORS® REMUNERATION:

The company docs nol pay rormumeralion o ity non-executive dircetors including independent
dircetors excepl for meelng fee. Aggrepate amount of remuneration paid o exeentive and non-
executive directors have been disclosed m note no. 37 of the annexed finaneial statements.

SUBSIDARY COMPANY

The Company’s wholly owned subsidinry ORA Home LLC (ORA), is located in New Jersey,
USA. One of the Directors of the Company is the member manager of ORA. The principal
business activity ol ORA i3 (o deal in home lextiles.

CODE OF ETHICS & BUSINESS PRINCIPLES

The Board has sdopted the Statement of Ethies and Business Prmerples, which is signed and
acknowledged by all the Directors and emplovees of the Company who are required to abide by
the Code.

HEALTH, SAFETY AND ENVIROMENT (HSE})

The Company cnsure adherence to the prevailing standurd and  puidelines for safety ol dis
workforce. Awarcness sessions and safety dnlls are regularly condueted m onder to ymmmize the
nisk of hawmrds to the people, property and environmment.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

The Company continues ils commitment oward social welfare and community: development. During
thie year, donations were made (o variows charitable organizations engaged in health, education, and
social gplifiment activities.

SUSTAINABILITY, ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL & GOVERNANCE (ESG)

During the year under review, the Company reaffirmed its commitment to sustainable business
practices by integrating environmental, social and governance (ESG) considerations into our
strategic and operational framework. From a social perspective we maintained focus on worker
safety, community engagement and supplier-standards in our value chain. In governance terms
we strengthened transparency. risk-management systems and board oversight to uphold
stakeholder trust and long-term value creation.

MVERSITY, EQUITY & INCLUSION (DEL)

The Company recognises that diverse perspectives, equitable opportunities and an inclusive
culiure are essential for innovation, employee engagement and sustainable growth. We are

commitited to promoting diversity across gender, age, background and experience: ensuring

f
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fairness in recruitment, development and reward; and building an inclusive workplace where
every colleague feels valued, respected and able to contribute fully, We continue to embed DEI
principles into our people-processes and organisational culture and measure our progress
regularly to ensure accountability and continuous improvement.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Board of Dircclors of Idrees Textile Mills Limited recogmizes that the identification and cffedive
mansgomen! of risks are cssential for safeguarding sharcholders™ value and achicving long-term
sustainability, The Compuny has cstablished an appropriate framework for monitoring key business
nisks, ensuring that adeguate systems and interna! controls are in place to mingate their potential impact.
Following 1= o desenption of the nsks and uncertambes:

=  Control over cost of production amid high encrgy tanft
Romaming competitive in the domestic as well as in the international markcet in terms ol cost
effectiveness and pricing of poods.
Managing fnance cost i the wake of steep rise in interest rate.
Reduction in demand of goods duc to ceconomic slowdown.
Credit nsk arising principally from trade debts, loans and advances. The carrying amount
represents the maximum credit exposure,

s Liguidity nsk ansmyg because of the possibility that the Company could be reguired Lo pay its
liabalities earlier than expected
Changes in market prices affecting the Company's income or the value of its holdings.
Risk of changes m market interest rates melating pnmarily to the Company™s long-term
financing, short-term borrowings and Hobilibcs apamst asscts subject to finance leasc.

= Forcign currency risk ansing dee o tmnsactions o [oreign curmeney resuliing m [oreign
exchunge losses/gins on translation of foreign curreney denominated trade debts and trade
payables.

= Managing capital to safeguard the Company s ability 1o continue as a going concern and to
support the sustained development of its busmess.

= imposilion of new laxes or increase in the mates ol existing ones.

GENDER PAY GAP STATEMENT
Following 15 the gender pay gap caleulated for the year cnded Junce 30, 2025,

(i)  Mean Gender Pay Gap (%) : (6.94)
(i)  Median Gender Pay Gap (%) : (6.94)
(i) Wi have only onc female member mostalf

CORPFORATE BREIFING SESSION (CEBS)

During the nancial year, the Company conducted one Corporate Briefing Session (CBS) to appnisc
sharcholders and analysts about the Company s financial performance and {uture ootlook.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

The global colton marketl remaing charactertzed by supply—demand imbalances and price luetusbions.
While these challenges persist, they roinforce the importance of efficient provurement strategics and
product diversification. The recenl upgrade of the country’s sovercign credit mating by S&P rellecls

B
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growing confidence in fiscal consolidation and macrocconomic stability. Sustained growih will depend
on consisient struclural relomms, (scal discipline, calibraled moncary policies and tarpeled measures
lo stimulate industosl sctivity, Global transiion towards ronewable energy prosents long-lerm
opporiunitics for cost oplimization and competiiveness, Trade faeilitation and tanfl reduction by the
LS. also provides Pakistan a compelitive advantage m the US. markel

The managemenl consistently monitors all cost ¢lements Lo ensure operations remain clficient and
compeliive and is Armly commilted o steer your Company lowards progress and profitability,
Reduction m the maie of mark-up, with expectation of [urther decling, s promising {or businesses in
controlhing costs. Plans are underway for further expansion m solar capacity o reduce dependence on
conventional energy sources, lower operating ecosts and advance the Company’s sustainability
objectives. Your Company, under the puidance ol ils Board, remarms resilient, adaplive and proactive.
Pakistan's economy has begun Lo exhibil signs of recovery, Under EFS, imposition of 18 percent sales
tax on imporied yam has provided local spinners with a level playing feld and improved hgudity,
enabling them to better compete with imported alicrnatives. Despite near-term challenges, the Company
conlinues o work on optimizing ils product mix, oplimal capacity wiilizaion and capitalizing on
[avourable policy developments, amming to enhance sharcholder value. Through prudent management
of working capital and investment in aulomation and valoe addition, the Company is well-positioned 1o
ensure long-lerm profilability.

AUDITORS
The present auditors, Mis BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants, retire and being cligible,
olfer themselves [or reappointment. The Audit Commiltee has recommended therr reappointment lor

the next financial year. The auditors have been given satisfactory rating under the quality control review
program of Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan.

ACKNOWLEDGMENT
The Board of Dircclors places on record s deep appreciation for the continued support, trust, and
conlidence of the sharcholders, valued customers, bankers, and suppliors. The Direclors also

acknowledee the dedication and hard work of the Company s mamagement and employecs during this
challenging period.

For and on behadl of the Board

A

OMAIR IDREES ALLAWALA 5.0, MANSOOR ALLAWAILA
Director Chiel Executive

Karachi

November 04, 2025
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| am pleased to present my review report in respect of the overall performance of the Board
of Directors (the Board) and the role played by it in achieving the Company's objectives for
the year ended on June 30, 2025.

During FY25, challenges persisted for the spinning sector primarily due lo high borrowing
cost, uncompetitive energy tarff, disadvantageous EFS mregime and inadeguacy of local
cotton in terms of quality and quantity. The management of your Company remains resilient
and is firnly committed to steer your Company towards progress and profitability aiming to
enhance shareholder value.

Appropriate mechanism is in place for intemal evaluation of the Board's performance and
effectiveness in achieving its objectives, As Chairman of the Board, | oversee and monitor
the Company’s govemance according to the requirements of the applicable laws and
regulations. For the year under review, based on the evaluation, the overall performance and
effectiveness of the Board has been assessed as salisfactory. Evaluation of the Board is
aimed {o assess its overall performance in accordance with the best practices of corporate
govemance.

During the year under review, the Board provided strategic directions to the management
recognizing the importance of good govermance practices that ensure accountability and
adherence to high standards of corporate govemmance with clearly defined roles and
responsibifiies and consistenily performed its duties diligently. Through appropriate
oversighl and vigilance, compliance with the applicable laws and regulations was duly
ensured. The Company's management constantly endeavored to ensure reliable financial
reporting and identify areas for improvement. The Board remained fully committed to
mainiaining a strong intemal control system and discharged iis responsibilities with respect
to management of the Company, formulation of significant policies, evaluating its own
performance and monitoring the functioning of the Board's Commitiees.

Composition of the Board conforms to the statutory requirements with respect to the number
of executive, non-executive, independent and female direclors. The Audil Committee and
the Human Resource & Remuneration Committee duly assisted the Board in performing its
duties. These Committees held meetings as per stipulations of the corporate govemance
regulations. The Board considered and approved, among other things, quarterly and annual
financial statements, capital expenditure, borrowings, related parly {ransactions,
appointment of extemal auditors and is committed for due implementation and oversight of
long-term . sustainability, environmental, social and govemance (ESG) principles and
corporate social responsibility (CSR).

| would like to extend my sincere appreciation for the trust and support of the Company's
shareholders, bankers, suppliers and customers. | also commend the wvaluable work
performed by the employees.

Rizwan Idrees Allawala
Chalrman of the Board

Karachi

November 04, 2025
10
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s
—————— UN-CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE % —
Code of Corporate Governance for the year ended June 30, 2025

Name of Company: IDREES TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED
Year Ended: JUNE 30, 2025

The company has complied with the reguirements of the Regulations in the following manner:

1. The tatal number of directors are seven as per the following:
a) Male: 05
by Female: 02

2. The compaosition of board Is as follows:

Categor Name
' Independent Direclors - Syed Masud Arif
Ms. Azra Yaqub Vawda
: Executive Directors . Mr. S. M. Mansoor Aﬁawala
, Mr. Omair Idrees Allawala
| Non-Executive Directors | Mr. Rizwan Idrees Allawala

Mr. Muhammad Zubair / Muhammad Beyaz Aftab * |
| | Ms. Aamnah Mansoor
| Female — Directors Ms. Azra Yaqub Vawda

Ms. Aamnah Mansoor

« Appointed (o fill the casual vacancy due lo resignation of Mr. Muhammad Zubair

Regulation & (1) of the CCG Regulations stipulates that it is mandatory for each listed company to have at
leas! two or ane-third members of the Beard, whichever Is higher, as independent directors. In a Beard
comprising 7 members, one third works out to 2.33 persons. The fraction contained in such one-third is not
rounded up as one as the Company has encugh experienced and well reputed independant directors on the
Board who perform and carry out their responsibilities diligently.

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them Is serving as a director on more than seven
listed companies, including this company;

4, The company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been
taken to disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and procedures;

5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant
policies of the company. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of the
significant policies along with the dates of approval or updating is maintained by the company;

&, All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been
taken by Board/shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these
Reaulations;

7. The meetings of the board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a
director elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of
Act and the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting
of Board;

B. The Board have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in
accordance with the Act and these Regulations;

12



B
————— UN-CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE % =

10.

11.

12.

13.

14,

Code of Corporate Governance for the year ended June 30, 2025

The Board has remained fully compliant with the provisions relating to the Directors” Training
Program. Five members of the Board had already completed the prescribed Directors’ Training
Program (DTP] in prior years. One member of the Board possesses the reqguisite qualifications and
experience as specified under Regulation 19(2) of the CCG, and is therefore exemnpt from the DTP
requirement. A newly appointed Director, inducted against a casual vacancy in April 2025, will
complete the Directors’ Training Program within the prescribed timeline in compliance with the CCG
Regulations.

There was no new appaintment of chief financial officer, company secretary and head of internal
audit during the year. However, all such appointments, including their remuneration and terms and
conditions of employment are duly approved by the Board and complied with relevant requirements
of the Regulations;

Chief financial officer and chief executive officer duly endorsed the financial statements before
approval of the board;

The board has formed committees comprising of members given below;

a) Audit Committes

Ms. Azra Yaqub Vawda (Chairperson)
Syed Masud Anf
Ms. Aamnah Mansoar

Lo by —

b} HR and Remuneration Committee

1. Syed. Masud Arif (Chairman)
2, Ms, Azra Yaqub Vawda
3. Ms. Aamnah Mansoor

The terms of reference of the sforesaid committees have been formed, documented
andadvised to the committes for compliance;

The frequency of meetings of the committes were as per fallowing:

Committee Freguency of meetings
Audit Committee Quarterly
HR and Remuneration Committes Annually

15, The board has set up an effective intermal audit function and the audit personnel are suitably

16.

qualified and experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures of
the Company';

The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been glven a satisfactory
rating under the Qualty Control Review Program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan (ICAP) and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all thelr
partners are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code
of ethics as adopted by the ICAP and that they and the partners of the firm invelved In the audit
are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non- dependent children) of the chief
executive officer, chief financial officer, head of internal audit, company secretary or director of
the company;

13




UN-CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE
Code of Corporate Governance for the year ended June 30, 2025

The statutory auditors or the persons assoclated with them have not been appointed to provide
other services except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory
requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed [FAC guidelines In this
regard:

We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations
have been complied with; and

Explanation for non-compliance with requirements, other than regulations 3,6,7,8,27,32 and 36 are

-

below:

following on its website:

(1) key elements of its

rn'arlu:fal:::;r?_/l therefore, the
company has not posted a
brief synopsis of its Board

significant policies including | Committees on its website.
but not limited to the
following:

{I) communication and
disclosure policy;

{ii) code of conduct for
members of board of
directors, senior
management and other
employees;

{iiiﬂ risk management
policy;

iv) internal control policy;
v) whistle blowing pelicy;
vi) corparate social
responsibility/sustainability/ |
environmental, social and
governance related policy.

(2) brief synopsis of terms
of reference of the Board's
committees including:

S. No. | Requirement | Explanation Regulation
1 The Board may constitute 2 | The term of reference for 29
separate committee, nomination Committee is
designated as the covered by Human Resource

nomination committee, of and Remuneration

such number and class of Committee, which timely

directors, as it may deem apprises the Board with

appropriate in its regards to any Changes

circumstances. | therefore a separate
Committee is not considered
necessary.

2 The Board may constitute | The Board itself and through | 30
the risk management | its Audit Committee review
committee, of such number | the effectiveness of the
and class of directors, as it | Company’s risk management
may deem appropriate in procedures, therefore
its circumstances, to carry | separate committee is not
out a review of considered necessary
effectivenass of risk
management procedures
and present a report to the
Board. .

3 The company may post the | 5ince the requirement 1s not | 35(1)

14




B
————— UN-CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE % e

Code of Corporate Governance for the year ended June 30, 2025

Ei_}l Audit Committes

i) HR and Remuneration
Committee

Eiilg Nomination Committee
iv) Risk Management
Committee

(3) key elements of the
directars’ remuneration

policy.
1 The company may post the | Since the requirement is not 35(2)
following on its website: manr_laturn therefore, the
company has not posted a

, , brief synopsis of its Board
brief synopsis of terms of | Committees on its website.
reference of the Board's

committees including:

(i} Audit Cammittee

(ii) HR and Remuneration
Committee

(iii) Nomination Committee
(v} Risk Management

Commilttee
For and on behalf of the Board
S M MANSOOR ALLAWALA RIZWAM IDREES ALLAWALA
Chief Executive Chairman
Karachi

Dated: November 04, 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REVIEW REPORT TD THE SHAREHOLDERS OF IDREES TEXTILE MILLS
LIMITED ON THE STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE CONTAINED IN LISTED COMPAMIES {CODE OF
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statemenl of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of
Idrees Textile Mills Limited (the Company) for the year ended June 30, 2025 in accordance with the
requirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the
Company. Our responsibility is Lo review whether the Stalement of Compliance reflects the status
of the Company's compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and to report if it does not and
to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited
primarily to inquiries of the Company's personnel and review of various documents prepared by the
Company to comply with the Repulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit
approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on intermal
conltrol covers all risks and controls or Lo form an opinion on the effectiveness of such intemnal
controls, the Company's corporale governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon
recommendation of the Audit Commiltee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and
approval, its related party transactions. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this
requirement Lo the extenl of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of
Pirectors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee,

Based on our review, nothing has come lo our attention, which causes us to believe that the
Statement of Compliance does nol appropriately reflect the Company’s compliance, in all material
respects, with the requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the
year ended June 30, 2025.

KARACHI E’IN? My st €

DATED: CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Engagement Partner: Tarig Feroz Khan
UDIN:

BOO Ebrahim & Co, Chartered Accountariis
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF IDREES TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed unconsolidated financial statements of IDREES TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED (the
Company), which comprise the unconsolidated statement of financial position as at June 30, 2025, and
the unconsolidated statement of profit or toss, the unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the unconsolidated statement of changes in eguity, the unconsolidated statement of cashilows for the
year then ended, and notes to the unconsolidated financial statements, including material accounting
policy information and other explanatory information, and we state thal we have obtained all the
information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the
purposes af the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
unconsolidated statement of financial position, the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss, the
unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement of changes in equity
and the unconsolidated statement of cashilow together with the notes forming part thereof conform with
the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information reguired by the
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view
of the state of the Company’s affairs as at June 30, 2025 and of the loss and other comprehensive loss,
the changes in equity and its cashflows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (154s) as applicable in
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code)
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the unconsolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the unconsolidated Tinancial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Following are the key audit matters:

BOO Ebrahim & Co. Charered Accouniants
B EhinFem RTINS SRRy Dl teraka B, |4 8 TR B ETTeNouE L iqrtet» LK ramEany =l by s pipe
s Ml Tl s A
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5. No | Key audit matters

| How the matter was addressed in our audit

Revenue recognition

As disclosed in notes 4.15 and 25 in the
unconsolidated annexed financial statements.

The principal activity of the Company is o
engage in manufacturing and sale of yarn and
sale of home textile products. Revenue from
sale of goods s recognized when perfarmance
obligations are satisfied by (ransferring
control of promised goods to customer.

We considered revenue recognition as a key
audit matter due to the significance of the
amounts involved, being key performance
indicator, inherent risk of material
misstatement in revenue recognition and the
audit efforts involved in this area.

Our audit work includes nmumber of
procedures, among others:

= Assessed the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of the key Internal
cantrols involved in revenue recognition.

s Understood and evaluated the accounting

policy with respect (o revenue
recognition.

= Performed testing of revenue transactions
on a sample basis with underlying
documentation including dispatch
documents and sales invoices.

» Tested on a sample basis, specific revenue
transactions recorded before and after the
reporting date with underlying
documentation to assess whether revenue
was recognized in the correct period.

= Performed audit procedures to analyze
variation in the price and quantity sold
during the year.

s  Astecead the adequacy of related disclosures
made in accordance with the applicable

financial reporting framewark.

BDO Ebrahim & Co, Chantered Accountants
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5. No

Key audit matters

| How the matter was addressed in our audit

Valuation of Stock in trade

As at June 30, 2025, the Company held stock-
in-trade amounting to Rs. 1,983.57 million,
constituting 26% of the total assets, as
disclosed in notes 7 o the unconsolidated
financial statements.

As described in nmotes 4.3 to  the
unconsolidated financial statements, stock-in-
trade is measured at a lower of cost and net
realizable value. The cost of work-in-process
and finished goods is determined by annual
average manufacturing cost which consists of
prime cost and appropriate manufacturing
overheads.

Due to the significance of inventory balances

and related estimations involved in valuing the
inventory, we considered this as a key audit

malter.

We obtained an understanding of the
Company's processes in place for stock
accounting. Our audit procedures to assess the
existence and valuation of inventory included
the following:

+ Obtained an wunderstanding of the
Company's process with respect o the
existence and valuation of stock-in-Ltrade
and tested controls relevant to such
process;

= We attended the physical count of stock in
trade to observe the management's
process of measurement

* We performed tests over the prices of raw
materials and verified items in the product

costing of work in progress,

+ Tested the calculations of per unit cost of
finished goods and work in process and
assessed the appropriateness of
management’s basis for the allocation of
cost and production overheads and
compared it with the prior period to
assess reasonableness,

*  Assessed the adequacy of related
disclosures made in accordance with the
applicable Tanattcal reporting framework.

Information Other than the Unconsolidated Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report but does not include the unconsolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the unconsolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

BDO Ebrahim & Co, Chantered Accountants
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In connection with our audit of the unconsolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the unconsolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to.
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the unconsolidated financial
statements in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the
reguirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of unconsolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the unconsolidated financial statements, management & responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or Lo cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the unconsolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but & not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with [5As as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these unconsolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judement
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the unconsolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
oblain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinjon. The risk of
nol detecting 2 material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

= Obtain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the audit in order Lo design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

BDO Ebrahim & Co, Chantered Accountants

B FOTE SAET 5 e o prana | BD0 mre=rmk of TRETETiE



Tel: 97 17 1548 1010 Ind Floor, Bloeh-C

Fax: =91 11 1568 4239 Lakzon Saguare, Buliding Mo,

whww b com. ph Sarwar Shahosd Aeae
Earseh | TAK

Pakigtan

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to evenls of
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company”s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the unconsolidated Tinancial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Gur conclusions are based on the audit evidence oblained up to
Lthe date of our auditor’s report. However, future svents or conditions may cause the Company Lo
cease to continue as a going concerm.

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the unconsolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the unconsolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and evenls in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we fdentify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, w2 determine those matters that were of
mast significance in the audit of the unconsolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX
of 2017);

b) the unconsolidated statement of financial position, the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss,
the unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement of changes in
eguity and the unconsolidated statement of cash Mows together with the notes thereon have been

drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the
books of account and returns;

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the
purpose of the Company’s business; and

d) no zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIill of 1980).

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Tarig Feroz Khan.

KARACHI

1
DATED: November 05, 2025 Et?t? ﬂ,{w A €
UDIN: AR202510166vBe4MKruF BDO EBRAHIM & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

BOO Ebrahim & Co, Chartered Accountariis
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UN-CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at June 30, 2025

ASSETS

Non-current Asseis
Property, plant and equipment
Long-term deposits
Imrvestment in subsidisry

Carrent Asseis

Siores, aparcs mdd lsose wols
Trade debis
Lioans amd advanccy

Zhort term prepaEyments
(ther reccivahlcs

Bhort torm: imy estment
Addvanee oy

(Cash and hank halances

Total Asmcts
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Share Capital and Reserves
Authorized capital
22,000, 0040 {2024 - 22,000,000} ordinary sharcs of Ra 104~ cach

lzmned, subseribed and paid-up capitl

Capital reserves

Sumplus on revalustion of property, plant end couipment - net of i
Equity portion of loen from related partics

Rowonse rescrvea

“Totul Equity

MNan-current Eiabilitics
Long-ienm finanoe

Deferred Governmcnt grmst
Dheforred mxation - net
Retinement bene it obligation

Curremt Eishilitics

Trade snd other payahles

Accred mark-up

Shori-term borrowings

Current portion of long-term finance
Current partion of defermred Government gt
Unclaimed dividend

Total Liabilitics
Toil Equity and Lizhilitics

CONTINGEMNCITES AND COMMITMENTS

The unniexed noges from | to 46 form an mtcgml part of these unconsolideted finencis] ststemernts.

Jpw SR

Chiof Excculive Chiof Financel Officor

=]

1o
11
12
13

14

15

16

17
LR
19

it

17
]

2|

2028 2024

Rupees Rupers
3 IRT 274083 3374 B500004
3713031 0,063 681
3290987724 FIR0D13 685
39,168,127 53,363,125
1983 572 957 1,926,979, 120
1 ATRST2 1R L, 106 B43 748
62240220 B9, 784,001
48,642 455 34 303 985
254010 547 [E¥ 03 848
148 099 660 A5 67D
IR ITL 47238,331
BB 970,607 B.607 548
4343 545,073 3,637, 960.276
TAI453270T T8, 403,961
220,004, 1K) 230, 030, M
FOR S2H 000 198 528,000
B47.625 402 D10.580,955
L6 A08, (500 144,674,764
40328, 105 1 280,923 111
2 [S0R89.557 1503, 706,830
571,064 487 4R6,009,774
49,646 344 T4 480,586
12880 442 115398 617
BE 473344 75,195 D
EIROTRINT T5L174,043
1125570240 1252356320
74936 8435 114,01 3 686
2H62 K19, 156 2034831736
340,967,951 J3E 34122
{5213 ITRSTOID
27300648 2,730,068
13, B8 134 13 BEE 134
4,044 667,123 3,784,001 3,088
S54RI 643240 4.535,187,131
TA04 582 79T T8 93,961

/Z:
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UN-CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
For the Year ended June 30, 2025

Revenue from contract with customer - net

Cost of sales

Giross profit
Distnbution cost
Administrafive cxpenses

COperating profit

Finance cost

Orther operating cxponscs

(her income

Loss before levy and taxation
Levy
Loss hefore laxation

Taxation

Lo=s for the year

Lioss per share - basie and diluted

MNote

2

31

32

33

34

2025
Rupees

5201690, 138

(4,883 403 274)

W

2024
Rupees

6,440 760,535

(5,831 174 287)

318.286,864 618,586,248
(53,491,993) (64,258,167)
(127,099,228) (122,297,107)
(180,591,221) (186,555.274)
137,695 643 432,030,974
(476.,963,937) (579,713,599)
(32.475,205) (51,014,056)
(371,743 499) (198,696,681)
34,860,163 49156375
(336,883,336) (149,540,306)
(60,995,181) (70,609,235)
(397878.517) (220,149,541)

3113223 25,760,625
(394, 765,294) (194,388 916)
(19 8%) {9.79)

The snnexed notes from | to 46 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ——

For the Year ended June 30, 2025

Lo for the year

Dither compirehensive incoime

liems that will not be reclassified subsequenily
to profit or loss:
Surplus on revahution of property, plant ond equipment durng the year
Imipact of defermd lx thereon

Adjustrnent of surplus on revalustion of property, plant and equipment
duiiz 1o chonpe in tax rale

Remcasurement loss on retirement benchil obligation

Roelated tax

Other comprbensive (loss) / moome for the year

Totl comprebensive loss for the year

The annexed noes from | w46 form oo miegral part of these onconsolidated Gnancial statements,

S SR

Chiof Excculive Chiof Financel Officor

MNole

I

2]
19

W

a2s 2824
Rupess Rupees
(394,765 294) (194 388,916)
- TR, 747,605
= (3.940,002)
- T2.RO7.603
(16,873 687) 34 98B 6ES
(1283.912) {ROZ,9495)
372334 232 86D
{911.57T8) (570, 126)
{17,785 265) 107 226,162
(412 550,55%) (B7.162,754)

ﬁ:
24



UN- GDNSDLIDATED Si;I'ATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the Year ended June 3

Bulnnee us 2l July 1, 223
Toial comprebensive inceme for the year
s foor the year

Trumsfer to ! from smrpius on revalustion of property
plant xnd equipment an sceeunt of

- revalisstion surplus s o hune 3, 3004 - net of

- incrementul deprociation chenged thereon - set of s
Tramsactinns with rebated partics

Frmir vrhoe ffieet of intorest froe oan prowided by related pastics
Bulanee ux 2l June 30, 2624

Toial comprebensive liss far (e yoar
Levss i bhie yezar

{her ompr honarve I fior fhe v

Trumsfer i/ from smrpius on revbuston of property,
plant and eqpipmen] an soeoust of
- mremontal depeocistinn cherped thoreen - nel of tin

- dhspasale - met af e
Trumsariims wih rebued parfio

Fair vubue effect of mizrest free loan provided by related pastio

Balanee o3 al June M, 2025

W

Capital reserve Hrvemet reserve
Smrplus on revalmation of  Equity porfion of H
Shace ST AT
(T exuipmeni - nel of B pariics Pl
Malc Hupery
106,526,000 H68, 124001 RLAIEISS 41952809 2567570973
. - (194 36K016) | (19438401
34, 9RE g8 {570,126 U AIES5
: 34, TR 485 (1949590642 (159.970357)
16 T 12,407 : 2,407,613
(5633, 344) 5199 344
1 - 1298 511 - 268 611
106,526,000 919 580 5% WAEM T IMSIIIIT 25O 706K
- - ﬂ"rlm m" ﬁs" }
(1673 5T L (17,.785.265)
. (I6ATI64T) x (OSETRRIT}  (HLIS0S)
16 - (34.772.752) - S4TTLTEL
{309,114) 09,114
k) . 59783280 - 733266
10526, 000 847625 410 164 408 250 BATRI0S ISR, 557

The snmeved nokes from | -4 form an imtepral part of thess wvoomsolidated firmod sbimments.

AV

Chiof Excculive

St

Chiof Financel Officor
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UN-CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Year ended June 30, 2025

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Losis before mxation
Adjustments for non cxsh income and expense:

1o
Provision for retrement benefit ohligntion
Lewy
Finunece wost
Allowonce for expecled erodit loss - imde reecivable
Profit on deposits
Ciain o desposal of propery, plant and cquipment
Unrealized loss on foragn exchange
Realized pam on shor lerm mvestment
{Incrense) / decrcase in current asscls
Stores, spares and loose tools
Siock-in-trde
Trade debis
Lisnns and advances

Propoyments
Orther recedvables

Increase ! (decrease) in corrent linbifities
Imde nnd other payables

Cash generaded from operations

Fmance cost paid

Retirement benefit obligation pud

Lomg-term deposits - met

Net cush used in operating sctivifics

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, plont end cquipment

Froceeds from disposal of property, plant ond cquipment
Purchase of term deposit recorpt - net

Sale of sharcs

Profil vn deposiis recemved

Met cash penerated from / (used in) investing nctivities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Lonpg-term finenee ropaid (o finanoim] institutions
Long-term fimance obtamed fom fimancial imstiutons
Long-term fimonce repaid to related partics

Limg-teerm fimmnce obtamed from relued pariies

Shurt lerm bormowings obtomed - nel

Lease lisbilities repaid durng the yeer

Dvvidond pasd

Met cash genemated from financing activities

Met incresse | (decresse) in cash and cash cguivalents
Cash und cash cquoivalents al beginning of the year
Cash und cush cquivalents at end of the year

3

Note

|
204

il
28
31
3
£l
31

35

The annexed noles from | o 46 fom an ndepral pant of these wneonsolidated fmancud statemenis,

St

Chiof Financel Officor

AV

Chiof Excculive

s 2024
Rupees Rupees
(301 EIR51T) (220,149 541
131,926 108 120 811,954
19 364,765 39T 86
0,995 181 0609 235
476,963 937 ST9.713.599
26,324 027 4135227
(25 575.852) (249, 7711,558)
(3,703 456) {12,627 300)
- 936, 1R
: (399,006)
2EB 416.283 F54.2%6,570
14,304 098
{54,503 817)
(598,052 398)
27 544 681
‘.‘rg 50
(697 310,688) {970,527 T67T)
BI6039 821 6, 383 756
178,729,133 (319144010
467145416 235092 565
(499,587 500) (547.450.513)
(10, 15, 5000 (33 377,800)
53,020,307) (63,284,290)
2 350,050 (3,165 000)
{93 308,641) (412,194 058)
{47 3045 837) (62,498 852)
6, 750,000 42 500,040
32356 001 {26, 083 000,
= 6,141 996
3134815 26,702 939
42 543 984 (13256917
{201 460 308) (1448 441 B61)
1 50,0500, 1 300 57,250,000
- (6,148.312)
154210474 =
63436263 355,394 279
- (1,962 284)
= (11304)
66 276,550 260, 080 468
TIS800,002 { 165,350,547
(B0 675, 546) (435325039

Zf:
26
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2
UN-CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year ended June 30, 2025

STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

Idrees Textile Mills Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan as an unquoted
public limited Company on June 5, 1990 under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984
(now Companies Act, 2017) and was listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange on April 28, 1992,
The principal activity of the Company is manufacturing, processing and sale of all kinds of
yarn. The Company is also engaged in business of Home Textile.

Following are the geographical location and address of all business units of the Company:

Karuchi Furpase

6-C, smmil Centre, I8l foor, Central Commercial Area, Bibadurabus eud OHfice

Munkuna Sahil Purpase

Kol Shah Mubaumemol, Tehwal & Dhstnct Nankana Sabib Punub Repmenal Oilice and Production Plant { Factory

During the year ended June 30, 2022, the Company acquired 100% ownership in ORA
Home LLC (ORA), a limited liability company incorporated in New Jersey, USA on
Jamary 5, 2022, One of the directors of the Company is the member manager of ORA.
Pursuant to the acquisition. ORA has become wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
(refer note 6).

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of compliance

These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting
standards as applicable on Company comprise of;

= International Finaneial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017
(The Act); and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Act.

Where the provisions of and directives issued under the Act differ from the requirements of
IFRSs the provisions of and directives issued under the Act have been followed for the
preparation and presentation of these financial statements.

Basix of measurement

These fimancial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except
as stated otherwise, in the relevant note to the financial statement.
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2
UN-CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS —
For the Year ended June 30, 2025

Presentation and functional currency

These unconsolidated financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the
Company's functional and presentation currency.

Significant accounting estimates, judgments and assumptions

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of the Company's accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from
these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revision to estimates are recognized prospectively. Information about judgments made in
applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the amount recognized
in the financial statements and to the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities and
assumptions and estimation uncerfainties that may have a significant risk resultng in a
material adjustment in the subsequent year are set forth below:

= Defined benefit plan (notes 4.10.1 and 20.1);

- Residual value, usetul lives, depreciation method / amortization and impairment of
property, plant and equipment (notes 4.1, and 5);

- Taxation (notes 4.11, 19 and 33);

- Stock-in-trade and stores and spares (notes 4.3 and 8):

- Contingencies and provisions (note 24); and

- Impairment of financial assets (notes 4.6).

APPLICATION OF NEW STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS
TO PUBLISHED ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING STANDARDS AS APPLICABLE
IN PAKISTAN

New accounting standards, amendments and IFRS interpretations that are effective
for the year ended June 30, 2025

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are effective for the year ended
June 30, 2025, These standards, amendments and interpretations are either not relevant to
the Company's operations or did not have significant impact on the unconsolidated financial
statements other than certain additional disclosures.

Effective date
(annual periods
beginning on or
after)
Amendments to IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures’ - Supplier
finance arrangements January 01, 2024




2
UN-CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS —
For the Year ended June 30, 2025

Effective date
(annual periods
beginning on or

after)
Amendments to IFRS 16 'Leases' - Amendments to clarify how a seller-
lessee subsequently measures sale and leaseback transactions January 01, 2024
Amendments to IAS 1| 'Presentation of Financial Statements' -
Classification of liabilities as current or non-current January 01, 2024
Amendments to [AS | 'Presentation of Financial Statements' - Non-
current liabilities with covenants January 01, 2024
Amendments to 1AS 7 'Statement of Cash Flows' - Supplier finance
arrangements January 01, 2024
Amendments to the Fourth sehedule to the Companies Act, 2017 made
in respect of shariah related disclosure. August 15, 2024

MNew accounting standards, amendments and interpretations that are not vet effective
and have not carly adopted by the Company

The following standards, amendments and inlerpretations are only effective for accounting
periods. beginning on or after the date mentioned against each of them. These standards,
amendments and interpretations are either not relevant to the Company's operations or are
not expected to have significant impact on the Company's unconsolidated financial
statements other than certain additional disclosures.

Effective date
(annual periods
beginning on or

after)
- Amendments to IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures' -
Amendments regarding the classification and measurement of
financial instruments January (1, 2026

- Amendments to IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' - Amendments
regarding the classification and measurement of financial January 01, 2026
instruments

- Amendments to IAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign
Exchange Rates' - Lack of Exchangeability January (1, 2025

29



4.1

UN-CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year ended June 30, 2025

- Amendments to IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures' -
Amendments regarding nature-dependent electricity contracts
that are often structured as power purchase agreements (PPAs)

- Amendments to IFRS 9 'Financial instruments' - Amendments
regarding nature-dependent electricity contracts that are often
structured as power purchase agreements (PPAs)

- IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

v

Effective date
(annual periods
heginning on or

after)

January 01, 2026

January 01, 2026

Jamaary 01, 2027

Certain annual improvements have also been made to a number of [IFRSs and [ASs.

IFRS | 'First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards' has been issued
by IASB effective from July 01, 2009. However, it has not been adopted yet locally by

Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

IFRS 17 - 'Insurance contracts' has been notified by the IASB to be effective for annual
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023. However SECP has notified the revised
timeframe for the adoption of IFRS - 17 which will be adopted by January 01, 2027.

IFRS 18 "Presentation and Disclosures in Financial Statements' has been issued by LASB
effective from January 01, 2027. However, it has not been adopted yet locally by Securities

and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

IFRS 19 'Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures' has been issued by IASB
effective from January 01, 2027. However, it has not been adopted yet locally by Securities

and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

The material accounting policies applied in the presentation of these unconsolidated

financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all

the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Property, plant and equipment
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2
UN-CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS —
For the Year ended June 30, 2025

Operating fixed assct
Property, plant and equipment are stated as follows:
- Land is stated at revalued amount;

- Building, labor colony, plant and machinery, electric mstallations and mill
equipment are stated at revalued amounts less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, if any; and

- Office equipment, fumiture and fixtures and vehicles are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of an asset including
borrowing costs, if any. When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of
property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in an asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. Cost incurred to
replace a component of an item of property, plant and equipment is capitalized and the asset
so replaced is derecognized. Normal repairs and maintenance are charged to the
unconsolidated statement of profit or loss during the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is charged to the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss on a straight line
basis at the rates specified in note 5.1. Depreciation on additions/transfer from capital work
in progress is charged when asset is available for use up to the month prior to its disposal.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values of each item of property, plant and
equipment are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate at each reporting date.

Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to the unconsolidated statement of profit and
loss as and when meurred.

Surplus on revaluation is credited to the surplus on revaluation of property, plant and
equipment account and 15 shown in the unconsolidated statement of changes in equity.
Deficit on revaluation of assets 18 recognized in the unconsolidated statement of profit or
loss, except that it reverses a revaluation surplus for the same asset previously recognized
in unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, in which case the deficit s
charged to unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income to the extent of the surplus
credited previously. The revaluation reserve is not available lor distribution to the
Company's shareholders.

n
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UN-CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS —
For the Year ended June 30, 2025

Revaluation 15 carnied oul with sulficient regulanty (o ensure thal the carrying amount of
assets does not differ materially from the estimated fair value. To the extent of the
incremental depreciation charged on the revalued assets, the related surplus on revaluation
of assets (net of deferred taxation) i3 transferred directly to retained earnings
(unappropriated profit). Further, accumulated depreciation as at the revaluation date is
eliminated agamst the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount 15 stated to
the revalued amount of the assel. Upon disposal, any revaluation surplus relating to the
particular asset being sold s transferred to retained camings (unappropriated profit).

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gam or loss on
disposal of an item ol property, plant and equipment is determined by comparing the
proceeds from disposal with the carmying amount of the property, plant and equipment,
and s recognized in other income / other expenses i the statement of profit or loss. When
revalued assets are sold, any related amount included m the surplus on revaluation is
transferred to retained earnings (unappropriated profit).

Capital work-in-progress

Capital work in progress is stated at cost less impamrment loss, if any and consists of
expenditures incurred (including any borrowing cost, if applicable) and advances made in
the course of their construction and installation. Transfers are made to relevant asset
category as and when assets are available for intended use.

Stores, spares and loose tools

These are stated at first in first out less provision for slow moving items, if any. llems in
transit are stated at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon up
to the reporting date. Provision for obsolete and slow moving stores, spares and loose tools
15 determined based on the management’s estimate regarding therr future usability.

Stock-in-trade

These are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value applying the following basis:

Cost compnses all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventortes to their present location and condition.

- Raw matenal (local and imported) Weighted average cost comprising purchase price,
transportation and other overheads. Ttems in
transit are stated al invoice value and other
charges incurred ull the reporting date.
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UN-CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS —
For the Year ended June 30, 2025

- Work-in-process and finished goods Weighted average cost comprising direct cost of
raw malerial, labor and approprniate portion of
production overheads.

- Waste Met reahizable value (NRV)

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less
estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make sales.

Trade debts and other receivables

These are recognized mitially are carmed at onginal invoice amount being the fair value of
the consideration 1o be received in future. An allowance for Expected Credit Loss (ECL)
15 made against trade debts on the basis of lifetime expected credit loss model as explamed
in note 12 to the fnancial statements. The amount of provision / reversal of ECL is
charged / reversed to the statement of profit or loss.

Trade debts and other recervables considered irrecoverable are wrtten off.
Financial instrumenis

A financial instrument 15 any contract that gives nise to a financial assel of one entity and
a financial liabilhity or equity instrument of another entity.

Classification of linancial assets
The Company classifies its financial assets into following three categories:
At amortized cost (“AC”),
Fair value through other comprehensive mcome (“FVTOCT”) and
Fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL™).
The management determines the classification of fnancial assets inlo appropriate

categories based on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets and
the contractual terms of the cash flows.

Financial assets at amortized cost

A nancial asset 15 measured at amortized cost if it meels both of the followng conditions
and 1s not designated as FVTPL:

1) the asset 1s held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect
contractual cash Nows; and

33
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UN-CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ——

For the Year ended June 30, 2025

2) the contractual terms of the fnancial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding,

The amortized cost of a fnancial asset 1s the amount at which the Anancial assel is
measured at initial recognition minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative
amortization using the effective interest method of any difference between that mitial
amount and the matunty amount, adjusted for any loss allowance. The gross carmying
amount of a financial asset is the amortized cost of a financial asset before adjusting for
any loss allowance.

Financial assets at FVTOCI

A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI only 1f it meets both of the [ollowing conditions
and is not designated as FV'TPL:

1) the assel 1s held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash [lows and selling financial assets: and

2) the contractual terms of the financial asset give nise on specified dates o cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

On initial recognition, for an equity investment that 15 not held for trading, the Company
may irrevocably elect to present subseguent changes in fair value in OCL, only dividend
income 15 recognized in statement of profit and loss. This elecion 18 made on an
mvestment-by-mvestment basis.

FVTOCI financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value with gains and losses
arising due to changes in fair value recognized in statement of other comprehensive

Financial assets at FV'T'PL

All other financial assets are classified at FVTPL (for example: equity held for trading and
debt securities not classified either as AC or FVTOCI).

in addition, on initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortized cost or at
EVTOCI as at FVTPL if domng so elminates or signmificantly reduces an accounting
mismatch that would otherwise anse.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except in the
period after the Company changes its busmess model for managing financial assets.




4.5.2

4.53

2
UN-CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS —
For the Year ended June 30, 2025

Initial Recognition and Subsequently Measurement

All financial assets are recognized at the ime when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the mstrument. Financial assets at amortized cost are imtially
recognized at Fair value and are subsequently measured al amortized cost using the
effective interest method. The amortized cost 1s reduced by impamrment losses, i any.
Interest income and impairment losses are recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets carmied at fair value through other comprehensive income are initially and
subsequently measured at fair value, with gains and losses ansing from changes in fair
value recognized in other comprehensive imcome.

Fmancial assets carned at fair value through profit or loss are mitially recorded at fair
value and transaction costs are expensed in the statement of profit or loss. Realized and
unredlized gaing and losses ansmg from changes i the fair values of the financial assets
held at far value through profit or loss are included in the statement of profit or loss in the
period in which they anse.

All purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on the trade date which s the
date on which the Company commits to purchase or sell the financial assel.

Derecognition of financial assets

Financial assets are derecognized when the rights (o receive cash flows from the assets
have expired or have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all
the risk and rewards of ownership. On derecognition of a inancial assel, m its entirety,
the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the sum ol the consideration
received and receivable 15 recognized in the statement of comprehensive income.

Financial liabilities

All financial hahilities are recognized at the tme when the Company becomes a party (o
the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial liabilities are recognized mitially at
fair value less any directly attnbutable transaction cost. Subsequently Lo mtial recognition,
these are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A [nancial hability 1s derecognized when the obligation under the hability 1s discharged
or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial hability is replaced by another from

the same lender on substantially different terms or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a de-recognition of
the ongnal liability and the recogmition of a new liability, and the difference in the
respective carrying amounts 1s recognized m the statement of profit or loss.

as
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UN-CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS —
For the Year ended June 30, 2025

Offsetting of linancial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
statement of financial position if there 1s a currently enforceable legal nght to offset the
recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realize the assets
and settle the habilities simultaneously.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses (ECL)
associated with its debt instruments carmied al amortized cost and at fair value through
other comprehensive income. The impairment methodology apphied depends on whether
there has been a sigmificant increase in credit nsk.

The Company applies the simphfied approach permitted by IFRS 9, which requires
expected hifetime losses o be recognized from initial recognition of the receivables.

The Company measures ECL of a financial mstrument in a way that

a) an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that 15 determined by evaluating a range
of possible outcomes;

b) the time value of money; and

¢) reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort at
the reporting date aboul past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economie
conditions,

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the probability of default, loss
given default (i.c. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss miven default is based on historical
data adjusted by forward-looking information as described above. As for the exposure at
default for finaneial assets, this is represenied by the assets' pross carrving amount at the
reporting date. Generally, credit terms range from 20 to 120 days from the date of delivery.
The Company recognizes in unconsolidated siatement of profil or loss, as an impairment
loss (or reversal of impairment), the amount of expected credit losses (or reversal of
impairment) that is required to adjust the loss allowance al the reporting date. A financial
asset is wrilten off when there is no reasonable expeclation of recovering the contractual

cash flows.
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For the Year ended June 30, 2025

4.6.1

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

4.10.1

Impairment of non financial assets

Al each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial
assets at each reporting date to identify circumstances indicating occurrence of
impairment loss or reversal of previous impamrment losses. An mmpairment loss s
recognized in the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss for the amount by which the
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less cost to sale and value in use. Reversal of mpairment
loss is restricted Lo the oniginal cost of the asset.

Foreign currency transactions and translations

Monetary assets and lhabilities denominated mn foreign currencies are translated into
Pakistanmi Rupees at the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into Pakistam
Rupees at the exchange rate when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that
are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are translated at the exchange
rate at the date of the transaction. Foreign currency differences are generally recognized in
the unconsohidated statement of profit or loss.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized in the unconsohdated statement of financial position when the
Company has a present, legal or constructive obligation as a resull of a past event, and it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
seftle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation.
Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents used in unconsolidated statement of cash Mlows include cash in
hand balances with banks in current and deposit accounts and short term borrowings.
Short-term borrowmgs availed by the Company, are payable on demand and form an
mntegral part of the Company’s cash management.

Retirement benefit oblization

Defined benefit plan - Unfunded Gratuity

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme covering all s [actory workers who
have completed the mmimum qualifying period of service as defined under the scheme.
The Company's obligation under the scheme 1s determined through actwanal valuation

ar
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4.10.2

4.11

4.11.1

4.11.2

carried out al each year end under the Projected Unit Credit Method. Remeasurements
which comprise actuanal gains and losses are recognized immediately in unconsolidated
statement of other comprehensive income.

The Company determines the interest expense on the defined benefit liability for the
period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the
beginning of the annual period to then defined benefit hability, taking into account any
changes in the defined benefit hability during the period as a result of benefil payments.
Interest expense and current service cost are recognized in the unconsolidated statement of

Defined contribution plan - Provident Fund

A defined contribution plan is a post - employment benefit plan under which a Company's
pays fixed contmbution into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive
obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution
plans are recognized as an employee benefit expense in the unconsohdated statement of
comprehensive income when they are due at the rate ol 8.33% of basic salary per annum.

Taxation
Current tax

Provision for current laxation is based on laxable income at the current rates of taxation,
after taking into account tax rebates and tax credits available, if any, or turnover at the
specified rate or Altemate Corporate Tax as defined in section 113C of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001, whichever 1s higher. Charge for current tax also mcludes adjustments,
where necessary, relating to prior years which anse from assessment framed / finalized
during the year.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized using the hiability method, providing for temporary difference
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and
the amounts used for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on
the expected manner of realization or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities using the tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

The Company recognizes a deferred tax assel to the extent that 1t is probable that taxable
profits i the foreseeable future will be available against which the assets can be utilized.
Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related
tix benefit will be realized.
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Further, the Company also recognizes a deferred tax asset / hability on deficit / surplus on
revaluation of property, plant and equipment which is adjusted against the related deficit /
surplus.

Levy

In accordance with the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, computation of final taxes is not
based on taxable income. Therefore, as per [AS 12 Application Guidance on Accounting
for Mimmum Taxes and Final Taxes issued by the ICAP, these fall within the scope of
IFRIC 21 / IAS 37 and accordingly have been classified as levy m these unconsohdated
financial statements, excepl for taxes on dividends on the Company’s investments in
subsidianies and associates which are specifically within the scope of IAS 12 and hence
these continue to be categonzed as current income lax.

Trade and other payables

Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are carnied at cost which 13 the fair value
of the consideration (o be paid in future for poods and services received, whether or not
mvoiced to the Company.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly atributable 1o the acquisilion, construction or production of
qualifying assels, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalized as part of the cost ol the respective
assets unhl such time as the assels are substantially ready for their miended use or sale.
All other borrowing costs are recognized im unconsolidated statement of profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from sale of goods is recopmized as or when performance obligations are
satisfied by transferring control of promised goods to customer, and control 15 transferred
al a point in time either upon shipment or delivery of goods to customer.

Revenue is recognized al transaction price (which excludes estimates of vanable
consideration), which represents the fair value of the consideration received or receivable
excluding discount, rebates and government levies and the payment 1s typically due on the
satisfaction of performance obligation.

Profit on bank deposit is recognized on a time proportion basis on the principal amount
outstandmg using the effective yield method.
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Gains/(losses) arising on disposal of mvestments are included in income and are
recognized on the date when the transacthion takes place.

Unrealized gains/(losses) anising on revaluation of securities classified as "fair value
through profit or loss' are mcluded in unconsolidated statement of profit or loss in the
period in which they anse.

Other meome is recogmized when the nght o receive 15 established, and the amount and
timing of related receipt is virtually certain

Dividend income is recognized when the Company’s right to receive payment have been
established and is recognized m unconsolidated statement of profit or loss and mcluded in
other income.

Contract liability / advance from customers

A contract hability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Company has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or
services to the customer, a contract liability is recognized when the payment s made or
the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract habilities are recognized as revenue
when the Company performs under the contracl.

Dividend and appropriation to / from reserves

Dividend distnibution to the Compuany's shareholders is recognized as a hability and
appropriation to / from reserves are made m the peniod m which these are approved.
However, if these are approved afler the reporting period but before the unconsolidated
financial statements are authorized for issue, they are disclosed as subsequent event in the
unconsolidated financial stalements.

Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted eammgs per share (EPS) data for its ordinary
shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss atributable to ordinary
sharcholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS 15 determined by adjusting the profit or loss
attributable to ordinary sharcholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

Leases - Lease liabilities and right-of-use assets
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Lease liabilities

The lease hiability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are
not paid at the commencement date discounted using the rate of the entity's incremental
borrowing rate being the rate that the lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of similar value in a similar economic environment with
similar terms and conditions,

The lease liability is subsequently increased by the interest cost on the lease liability and
decreased by lease payments made. It is re-measured if there is a change in future lease
payments ansing from a change in assessment of whether extension option is reasonably
certain to be exercised or a termination option is reasonably certain not to be exercised.
The corresponding adjustment 1s made to the carrying amount of the nght-of~use asset is
recorded in statement ol comprehensive income il the carrying amount of right-of-use
asset has been reduced Lo zero,

For short term leases and leases of low / immatenal value assets, the Company recognizes
the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the
lease unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattemn in which
economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed.

Right-ol-usc asscts

The right-of-use asset is imitially measured at cost which is the initial measurement of
lease liability, and subsequently at cost less any accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, if any. The right-of-use asset is depreciated using the straight-line method over the
lease term, as disclosed in the respective note.

Investment in subsidiary

Investment in subsidiary i1s measured at cost less any impairment loss, if any in the
Company's separate unconsolidated financial statements.

Government grant

The benefit of interest rate lower than the market rate on borrowings obtained under State
Bank of Pakistan (SBP) under Temporary Economic Refinance Facility (TERF), is
accounted for as a povernment grant which is the difference between amount of loan
received and the fair value of the loan on the date of disbursement. The differential
amount presented in unconsolidated statement of financial position as deferred
government grant. The amortization of deferred government grant is netted off with
finance cost within in the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss.

Government grants are recognized al fair value, as deferred income, when there is
reasonable assurance that the grants will be received and the Company will be able to
comply with the conditions associated with the grants.
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Grants that compensate the Company for expenses incurred, are recognized on a
systematic basis in the income for the year in which the related expenses are recognized.
(irants that compensate for the cost of an asset are recognized in income on a systematic
basis over the expected useful life of the related assel.

A loan is mitially recognized and subsequently measured in accordance with IFRS 9.
IFRS 9 requires loans at below-market rales to be initially measured at their fair value -
e.g. the present value of the expected future cash fAlows discounted at a market-related
interest rate. The benefit. that is the government grant, is measured as the difference
between the fair value of the loan on initial recognition and the amount received, which 1s
accounted for according to the nature of the grant

Opcrating segment

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the intemmal reporting
provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the Board of Directors of the Company that makes
strategic decisions.

Related party transactions

All transactions with related parties arising in the normal course of business are conducted
as determined by the management with the approval of the Board of Directors.

Loan from directors

Loans from directors are initially recognized at fair value, and subsequently measured at
amortized cost.

In cases where such loans are interest-Iree, the fair value 15 determined by discounting
future cash flows at a market rate of mterest applicable to similar instruments. The
difference between the loan proceeds and the fair value, if matenal, is recorded as an
equity contribution.

Where the loan is repayable on demand, it is classified as a current liability.

Contingent liabilities and assets
Contingent liability

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company. It can also be a
present obligation arising from the past events that is not recognized because it is not
probable that outflow of economic resources will be required or the amount of obligation
cannot be measured reliably.
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v

Contingent liabilities are not recognized but are disclosed in the notes to the accounts.
When a change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will
then be recognized as provision.

Contingent asset

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will
be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Company. Contingent assets are not recognized
but are disclosed in the notes to the accounts when an inflow of economic benefits is
probable. When an inflow 1s virtually certain, an asset is recognized.

Share capital and reserves

Ordinary shares are classified as eguity and recognized at their face value. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds. Reserves comprise of capital and revenue
reserves: Capital reserves represent revaluation reserve, equity portion of loan from
directors while revenue reserves comprise of unappropriated profit.

2025 2024
Note Rupees Rupees

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Operating fixed assets
- Owned 5.1 3.275.634.059 3,363,126,163
- Right of use assets 5.1 - 2,013,505

3.275.634.059 3,365,139.668
Capital spares 5.1.10 9442072 7,549,799
Capital work in progress:
- Building 512 2,197,962 2,160,537

3.287.274.093 3,374 850,004
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5.1.6

5.1.8

Forced sale values as per the latest revaluation report as of January 03, 2024 as mentioned in
note 5.1.5 are as lollows:

Assel Class Rupees
Frechold land 217,940,000
Factory building on freehold land 340475523
Labor colony on freehold land 17345179
Plant and machinery 1,927 349277
Electric installations 10655436
Factory equipment 4,023 446

Particulars of immovable asset of the Company are as follows:

Location Addresses Total Covered
Area Area
Miankana Sahib Kot Shah Muhammad, Tchsil 20003 10,13

Fair value measurement

Fair value of frechold land, building on frechold land, labor colony on free hold land, electre
installations and factory equipment are based on assumptions considered to be level 2 in the
fair value hierarchy due to significant observable inputs psed in the valuation, while fair value
of plant and machinery are considered to be level 3 in the fair value hierarchy doe 1o
significant unobservable inputs used in the valoation.

Fair value of freehold land, building on frechold land, labor colony on free hold land have
been derived using a sales comparison approach. Sale prices of comparable land and buildings
in close proximily are adjusted for differences in key attributes such as location and size of the
property. Morcover value of building also depends upon the type of construction, age and
guality. The most significant input in this valuation approach is price/mate per square foot in
particular locality.

Valuation lechniques used Lo derive level 3 [air values - Plant and machinery

In the absence of curreént prices in an active market, the fair value is determined by taking into
accouni the following factors:

-Make, model, country of origin etc.
-Orperational capaeily

- Present physical condition

-Resale prospects

-Obsolescence

The valuation is considered to be level 3 in the fair value hicrarchy due to the above
unphservable inputs wsed in the valuation. Most significant input in this valuation is the
current replacement cost which 15 adjusted for factors above.

a7
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5.1.9 The following is a statement of capital work in progress

How—

Bailding on Plani & machinery Total
frechold land
Hopees Rupees Hupees
Halance as at July |, 2023 199,111 306 1282051 280 1481162580
Capital expenditure incurred during the year 2 643 630 43,191 254 45 436 S84
Transfer to operating fixed asseis (199 596 399) (1,325 247 538) (1,524 838,937
Balunce ns gt June 30, 2024 21600537 - 2160537
Copital expenditore mourred during the year 37,425 - 37425
Transfer to operating fived ussets - - -
Balunce as s June 30, 2025 2197 962 - 2,197,942
5.1.10 Movement in capital spares is as follows
Ruopees
Balance as at July 1, 2023 20,913,332
Transfer to operating fixed asscis (13,363.533)
Balance as at June 30, 2024 7,549,799
Addition to capital spares 1.892.273
Balance as at June 30, 2025 0. 442 072
2025 2024
Note Rupees Rupees
. Invesiment in subsidiary
Al cost 6.1 - -
- ORA Homes LLC
UsD PKR
Asseis
Stock-in-trade 52,286 9.230,173
Trade receivable 25,000 4413284
Cash in hand 1,000 176,531
78,286 13,819,988
Liabilities
Loan from related parties 01,061 16,075,147
Trade and other payable R3.171 14682210
174,232 30,757 357
Fair value of net liabilities acquired (95.946) (16,937 369)
6.1 On January 5, 2022, the Company acquired 100% ownership in a limited liability company

incorporated in New Jersey United States of Amenca (USA), The Company paid NIL
consideration for the acquisition of subsidiary due to net liability position in the books of
aceounts of subsidiary and accordingly assumed all lisbilitics of the subsidiary as on

acquisition dale i.c. January 5, 2022,




UN-CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year ended June 30, 2025

2025 2024
Note Rupees Rupees
y STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS
Store and spares:
In hund 47.746_757 61,124,690
In transit 15,786 117,067
47,762 543 61,241,757
Loose tools - 64,585
47,762,543 61,306,342
Less: provision for slow moving stores (8.594.416) (7,743.217)
39,168,127 53,563,125
8. STOCK-IN-TRADE
Raw matcnal
In hand - cotton 1,006,322 600 1,121,028.719
In hand - yarn 1,108,624 1,735.289
Raw material in lransit 406,420,584 428,156,335
Work-in-process
- Yam 111,511,263 01,441,947
- Home textile 91,383,644 34,327,602
202,894 947 123,769 349
Finished goods in hand - yarn X1 353 228959 240,222 B18
Waste - vam 13,597 283 12 066,210
1,983,572 957 1,928.979.120
8.1 This represents stock in trade net of net realizable value adjustment amounting to Rs, 7.223
million (2024: nil)
9. TRADE DEBTS
2025 2024
Considered good Note Rupecs Hupees
Secured :
Lixport 9.1 15,848 225 33,171,528
Local - 294 825 850
15,848 225 327997378
Unsecured :
Export - due from related party 03893 R.807.530 29 355,627
Local 1,653,916 364 753,625,970
1.678.372.119 L1T10Y978,975
Considered doubiful
Local 44 517 802 14,058 548
1,723,089 921 1,125,037,523
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss 9.4 (44,517 802) (18,193,775)
1,678 572 119 1,106,843 748

49
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2.1 This includes Euro nil (2024 ; Euro 73,698) and USD 55,490 (2024 : USD 40,744).

92 This represents outstanding balance from ORA Homes LLC of USD 31,056 (2024 : USD
105,401},

93 The maximum agpregale amount of receivable due from related parties al the end of any
month during the year was Rs. 36.416 million (USD 128 338) (2024: Rs. 41.140 million USD
144,987).

9.4 The movement in allowance for expected credit loss is as follows:

Balance as at July 1, 18,193,775 14,058,548
Charge during the year 26324027 4135227
Balance as at June 30, 44,517,802 18.193,775

9.5 Ageing of trade debis past due but not impaired

Mot past due 1125290074 748,333,073
0 -90 days 127,687,779 319,078,576
91-180 days 38,656 800 IRET6264
Above 180 days 422,477 464 18,749 610

L714, 112,117 1125037523

9.6 Ageing of frade debis past due but not impaired - related party

Mot past due - 13.250 336
0 -90 days 8.807.530 16,105,291
8,807,530 29,355,627
2025 2024
Note Hupees Rupees
10. LOANS AND ADVANCES
Unsecured Considered good
- Loan to employees 10.1 369,000 457,000
Advance:
- to employees 1.434 301 506,981
- 1o supplicrs 10.2 59.547.133 88 262 057
- for expenses #8969 558,863
61,871,220 89327901
62,240,220 89,784,901

10.1  These represent unsecured, inferesi free, shori-term loan and advance given to cmployees of
the Company.

102 This represents payments made to supplier for purchase of raw material and stores and spares.
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11.

12.

12.1

I3

131

SHORT TERM PREPAYMENTS

How—

Minimum tax levy 45 528 410 31326445
Health Insurance 1,714,904 1,524,963
Others 1.399.141 1,452,577
48.642 455 34,303,985
OTHER RECEIVABLES
Sales tax 192,602,793 129251 358
Less: Provision for doubtful receivable - (5.969.340)
Sales tax - net 192 602,793 123 282 018
Lxport rebate 12.1 11,114,893 7,686,065
203,717,686 130,968,083
Duty draw back reccivable 122 5872932 5,872,932
Cotton claim receivable 123 39.831.812 39 8R1,372
Profit on deposits 4,086,290 0645253
Others 1.401.827 1,836,208
51.192.861 57235765
254,910,547 188,203 R48

This comprises of incentives/discounts/refunds and other benefits granted by the Government

of Pakistan.

This represents receivable from the Government of Pakistan since 2021.

This represents a claim regarding discrepancics related to cotton weight and quality.

2025 2024
Note Rupces Rupees
SHORT TERM INVESTMENT
- Al amortized cost
Term deposit receipts 13.1 148,099.669 200,455,670
148,099 669 200,455 670

These represent term deposil receipts placed with various banks for a period ranging from six
months to one year carrying mark-up at the rates ranging from 6.93% to 20.5% (2024: 5.75%
to 21.50%) per annum. The banks have lien on these term deposit receipls on account of
puarantees provided by such banks as disclosed in note 24.1.1 to the unconsolidated financial

statements.
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14. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash in hand 280,531 1,552,529
Cash at banks

- in currenl accounls 4369873 506392

- in saving accounis 14.1 84320203 6.548.627

142 88,970,607 8,607,548

14.1 These carry markup of 5.36% to 10.05% (2024: 13.5% (o 20.5%) per annum.

142  This includes an amount of Rs. 78.14 million (2024: Rs. 6.68 million) on which the bank has
created lien on account of guaraniee provided by such bank as disclosed in note 24.1.1 to the

financial statements.

I5. ISSUED SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL

2025 2024
Mumber of Shares
ordinary shares of Rs.
19852 800  waszao0 10V- each fully paid in
cash

2025
Rupees

198,528,000

2024
Rupecs

198,528,000

151  The Company has one class of ordinary share, which carry equal voting rights bul no right to
fixed income. Voting righis, board selection eic. are in proporiion to their sharcholding,

16. SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND

EQUIPMENT - NET OF TAX

2025 2024
Note Rupees Rupees
As at July 1, 089,873,708 073,359,080
Surplus arising during the year - TR.747.605
Less: transferred to unappropriated profit on
account of
- incremental depreciation (534,772,752) (56,339.344)
- related deferred tax liability (7.,288,189) (3.893.633)
- disposals - net of tax (309, 114) -
- related deferred tax liabilily (41,131) -
(62.411.186) (62 232 977)
As al June 30 027 462 522 989 873,708

How—
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17.

Less: related deferred tax liability on:

Revaluation surplus as at July 1,
Surplus arising during the year
Adjustment due o change in lax rate
Related deferred tax on incremental
depreciation

Assets disposed-off during the year

As al June 30
LONG-TERM FINANCE
Long term portion

Financial institulions

Related parties
Current portion

Financial institutions
Related partics

2025 2024
Note Rupces Rupees
70,292,753 105,235,069
19 - 5,940,002
19 16,873,687 (34,988,685)
(7,288,189) (5,893,633)
(41,131) -
19 79,837,120 70,292,753
847 625 402 019,580,955
17.1 428,692,191 433,281,371
172 143,272 296 52 818,403
571,964 487 486,099,774
17.1 315,036,832 332,879,577
172 25,931,119 5,454,545
340,967.951 338,334,122
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17.1.1

1712

17.13

17.1.4

17.1.5

17.1.6

17T

17.1.8

The loan is secured by way of st exclusive charge over imported solar equipments with a
margin of 25%. The loan is utilized for acquisition and installation of solar equipments in
the factory.

The Company has entered into a Islamic Temporary Economic Refinance Facility (ITERF)
agreement with Dubai Islamic Bank | with having a facility of Rs. 147217 million. (2024:
Rs. 147 217) This facility carries mark up at SBP Base Rate + 4% (2024: SBP Base Rate
4%). The tenure of this facility is 7 vears with grace period of 2 vears. This facility is
secured against 1st exclusive charge over imported plant and machinery, and land having
a pari passu charge also personal puarantec of all the directors and mortgagors of the

Company.

The Company has entered into a Temporary Economic Refinance Facility (TERF)
agreement with bank, with the total limit aggregating to Rs. 163.59 million (2024: Rs.
163.59 million). This facility carry mark up of SBP Base Rate + 4% (2024: SBP Base Rate
+ 4%). The tenure of this facility is 5 years with grace period of | year. This facility is
secured agninst first exclusive hypothecation charge over specific machinery and
equipment with 25% margin.

The Company has entered into a Term finance agreement with bank, with the total limit
agoregating to Rs. 50 million (2024: Rs. 50 million). This facility carry mark up of SBP
Base Rate + 2% (2024: SBP Base Rate + 29). The tenure of this facility is 5 years with
grace period of 1 year. The loan is secured by way of 1st exclusive charge over specific
machinery over landed cost with a margin of 25%.

The Company has entered into a Long term finance facility (LTFF) with bank, with the
total limit apgregating to Rs. 1085 million (2024: Rs. 1085 million). This facility carry
mark up of SBP Base Rate + 3% (2024: SBP Base Rate + 3%). The tenure of this facility
15 1) years with grace period of 2 year. The loan is secured by way of specific charge over
imported land and machinery to cover 100% exposure (principal amount only). Whereas,
25% margin shall be covered through charge over present and future fixed asset of the

Company.
The loan is secured by way of specific charge over imported land and machinery to cover

100% exposure (principal amount only). Whereas, 25% margin shall be covered through
charge over present and future fixed asset of the Company.

The Company has entered into a Temporary Economic Refinance Facility (TERF)
agreement with banks, having a facility of Rs. 187.5 million (2024: Rs. 187.5 million).
This facility carries mark up at SBP Base Rate + 4% (2024: SBP Base Rate + 4%). The
tenure of this facility is 10 vears with grace period of 2 vears. The loan is secured against
15t exclusive charge over specific plant and machinery,

The Company has entered into a Temporary Economic Refinance Facility (TERF)
agreement with banks, having the facility of Rs. 4591 million (2024: Rs. 4591 million).
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17.1.9.

17.1.10

17.2

17.2.1

1722

8.

181

This facility carry mark up at SBP Base Rate |+ 4% (2024: SBP Base Rate + 4%). The
tenure of this facility is 10 vears with grace period of 2 years. The loan is secured against
I st exclusive charge over specific plant and machinery,

The loan is obtained to meet the capital expenditure requirement of the Company. The
loan is secured by way of first exclusive and specitic hypothecation charge over imported
machinery of the Company.

These represent plant and machinery and vehicles and solar panel acquired under
musharaka arrangement. The rates of mark-up ranges from 13.94% to 22.24%.

2025 21024
Note Rupees Rupeces
Loan from related parties - unsecured

143 272,296 52,818,403
Opening as at July 01, 58,272,948 77274 471
Receipts during the year 154210474 -
Repayments during the year - (6,148312)
Unwinding of discount 28 16453279 10,445 400
Less: Fair value adjustment 17.2.2 (59.733.286) (23,298.611)

169,203,415 382729448
Current maturity portion Is (25,931,119) (5.454,545)
Closing as at June 30, 143272296 52 81K 403

Loans from related parties are extended to fulfill the Company's working capital needs.
The loans received from directors are due to be paid on different maturities ranging from
December 2027 to June 2029, unless otherwise the terms of repayment are further
extended.

This includes an equity component of Rs. 57.642 million relating to a loan of Rs. 154210
million obtained during the year.

DEFERRED GOVERNMENT GRANT

Deferred grant against Temporary

Economic Refinance Facility (TERF) 73,399,575 102,337 608
Current portion (23.752,731) (27,857.022)
49.646.844 T4 480 586

This relates to the difference between the fair value of the loan and total loan amount
received under the State Bank of Pakistan (SBI') Temporary Economic Refinance Facility
(TERF) scheme. The loan is amortized by discounting the total loan amount received over
the period of 10 years from the date of loan disbursed and the difference between the total
amount and it's disbursed value recognized as deferred government grant .
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2025 2024
MNote Rupees Rupecs
19. DEFERRED TAXATION - NET
Balance as at July 1, 115,398,617 171,199 476
Charge / (reversal) to profit or loss 33 (3.008.528) (26,519.307)
Charged to other comprehensive income (372,334) (232,869)
Adjustment to the related deferred
tax liability on revaluation surplus 16 - 5.940_002
Tax rate adjustment on surplus 16 16,873 687 (34 988 685)
Balance as at June 30, 128.891 442 115.398.617
This comprises of the following:
Taxable temporary differences:
- accelerated depreciation on property,
plant and equipment 148 635 3KR 108,037,572
- surplus on revaluation of property,
plant and equipment TARTH 230 70,292,752
- Dther financial asset (704,765) 054 8BHE
227 BOB.BT3 179285212
Deductible temporary differences:
- provision for doubtful trade debts 3,227.9493 1.331.3¥3
- provision for stock in trade 912,193 -
- provision for stores and spares 1,009 294 733,304
- provision for doubtful other receivables = 365313
- provision for staff gratuity 10,389,956 7,121,178
- minimum tax TR 356415 51,698,755
- WWF liability 3,021,580 2,436,662
(98,917431) (63.886,595)
125 891 4472 115398 617
2025 2024
Noic Rupees Rupees
20. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATION
Factory statf 20.2 88,220,972 74,942 694
Head office staff 2010 252372 252372
BE. 473 344 75,195 066

20.1 Hcetirement benefit obligation - defined bencefit plan

The Projected Unit Credit Method based on following significant assumptions was used for
valuation of the scheme The disclosure made in notes 202 to 20.11 are based on

&7
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information included in acturial report. The basis of recognition logether with details as per
actuarial valuation conducted as at June 30, 2025 are as under:

2025 2024
The principal assumptions used are as follows:
- Discount rate 14.75% 16.25%
- Expected rate of salary increase 10.75% 15.25%
- Mortality rate SLIC (2001-2005}-adjusted

20.2 Liability recognized in the statement of financial position

20.3

204

20.5

Present value of detined benefit

abligations 203 B8 220972 74,942,694
Movement in defined benefit obligation during
the year
Balance as at July 1, 74,942 694 78,522 743
Expense recognized in statement of
profit or loss 204 27201,763 31,977,786

Remeasurements loss recognized in

other comprehensive income 20.5 1.283.912 802,995

Benefits paid {7.837.000) (30,793 _500)

Benefits due but not yet paid (7,370.39%) (3,567 330)
88220972 74,942 694
2025 2024

Rupces Rupees
Expense recognized in statement of profit or loss

Current service cost 17,396 886 22,172,158

Interest cost 0 804 879 9.805, 628
27201765 31,977,786

Total remeasurements recognized in statement
of comprechensive income

Actuarial loss on liability arising due to:

- demographic assumplions 745,055 -

- financial assumptions (685, 399) (265.428)

- expenence adjustments 1224 256 1,068 423
1.283.912 802,995
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20.6

208

209

20010

20.11

Scositivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes
of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all
other assumptions constant:

Current year Increase [{(decease) in defined benefit obligation
Change in Increase in Decrease in
Assumplion Assumption Assumption
Discount rate 1% (3.902,987) 4,379,230
Salary growth rate 1% 4,578,270 (4,157, 790)
Prior year Increase /{decease) in delined benefit
Change in Increase in Decrease in
Assumplion Assumption Assumption
Discount rate 1% (3,501,299) 4,293,611
Sulary prowth rate 1% 4,441,121 (4,002,239}

The gratuity scheme exposes the Company to the following risks:

Final salary risk (linked to inflation risk): The risk that the final salary at the time of
cessation of service is greater than what we assumed. Since the benefit 15 calculated on the
final salary (which will closely reflect inflation and other macroeconomic factors), the
benefit amount increases as salary increases.

Mortality risk - The risk that the actual mortality experience is diftferent than the assumed
mortality. This effect is more pronounced in schemes where the age and service distribution
is on the higer side.

Withdrawal risk: The risk of actual withdrawals experience is different from assumed
withdrawal probability. The significance of the withdrawal nisk varies with the age, service
and the entitled benefits of the beneficiary.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation as at June 30, 2025 5 5
years (2024 5 vears),

Number of employees covered by the scheme are 708 (2024: 513).

This amount relates to the unfunded gratuity scheme for the head office staff which is
freezed since 2002, as per the Company policy.

Based on the actuarial advice, the Company intends to charge Rs. 36911 million in the
unconsolidated financial statements for the year ending June 30, 2026.
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21.

212

213

v

2025 2024
Note Rupees Rupees
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Creditors 156,885,716 176,714,944
Accrued liabilities 205,100,769 78,016,229
Contract liabilities 2132 1,490,772 454 710414663
Workers' welfare fund 25729 583 25,729,385
Sindh Infrastructure cess 213 184 437,105 166078418
Ciratuity due but not yet paid 214 3,971,710 8,797,611
Provision for gas infrastructure
development cess 24.1.2 5.403.945 5,733,225
Payable to provident fund 597,924 623311
Levy Payable 21.5 45,031,540 49920855
Withholding tax payable 5,639 492 30325478

2 125,570,240 1,252,.356,320

The investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of
Section 218 of the Companies Act, 2017 and the rules formulated for this purpose.

2025 2024
Rupees Rupecs
Movement of Contract liabilities
Balance as at July 01 T10.414,663 189,026,671
Advance received during the yvear 1.988.675 859 2426015870
Transferred to revenue during the year 23.1 (1.208318,068) (1,904 627 87T}
Balance as at June 30 1,490,772 454 710,414,663

The Government of Sindh through Sindh Finance Act, 1994 provided for imposition of an
infrastructure fee (cess) for the development and maintenance of infrastructure on goods
entering or leaving the province through air or sea at prescribed rates. The levy was
challenged by the Company along with other companies in the IHonorable High Court
(HCS) of Sindh through civil suits which were dismissed by the single judge of the HCS
through its decision in October 2003. On appeal filed there against, the HCS has held
through an order passed in September 2008 that the levy as imposed through the Sindh
Finance Act, 1994 (amended time to time) was not valid till December 28, 2006, however,
thereafter on account of an amendment in the Sindh Finance (Amendment) Ordinance,
2006, it had become valid and is payable by the Appellants. The Company, along with other
companies, filed an appeal in the Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan (SCP) against the
aforementioned order of the High Court of Sindh. The SCP granted stay by passing an
interim order on January 22, 2009. The order passed by the HCS was set aside by the SCP
vide its order dated May 20, 2011. Consegquently, a new petition has been filed in the HCS.
Through the interim order passed on May 31, 2011, the HCS has ordered that for every
consignment cleared after December 28, 2006, 50% of the value of infrastructure fee (cess)
should be paid in cash and a bank guarantee for the remaining amount should be submitted
until the final order is passed. Refer notes 14 & 24,
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214

21.5

On April 06, 2021, the HCS vide order C.P.No D-3309 / 2011, summoned to encash all the
bank puarantees furnished by the petitioners. The 1ICS issued this order reasoning that the
entire cargo being imported in the country routes through the province of Sindh, and for that
the Provincial Legislature thought it appropriate to impose a certain amount of tax in the
form of a cess, It is though being collected from an importer of goods, but in essence it is
not on imports; but for maintenance and development of infrastructure on imported goods.
However, during the year ended June 30, 2022, the SCP vide its order dated September 01,
2021, suspended the order 1ssued by HCS stating that it suffers from constitutional and legal
defects and granted the interim relief to the Company and other petitioners. The order issued
by the SCP states that the petitioners shall keep the bank guarantees already submuitted
pursuant to the earlier order of HCS and shall fumish the fresh bank guarantees equivalent
to the amount of levy claimed by the Sindh Government against release of all fisture
consignments of imported goods.

During the prior year, a writ petition No. 42176 / 2020) was filed by All Pakistan Textile
Mills Association (APTMA) (where the Company is also a party to the petition). The
Management is confident for a favorable outcome. However, the Company has made
provision as follows:

v

2015 2024
Naote Rupees Rupecs
Balance as at July 01, 166,078 418 141 343 416
Charge for the year 18 358,687 24735002
Balance as at June 30, 184437105 166078 418
Movement in gratuity due but not yet paid
Balance as at July 1, B,797.611 5.814.581
(Payment) / transfer made during the year - n26.3 (2,825,901) 2.983.030
5971710 8797611
2025 2024
Note Rupees Rupecs
Levy Payable
Minimum tax levy 38,305,127 31326445
Final tax 6,726,413 18,394411
45,031,540 49920855
ACCRUED MARK-UP
Long-term finance 11,936,123 17,122 368
Short-term borrowings 63,000,720 96,891 318
74.936,843 114,013,686

&1
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24.1

24.1.1

2025 2024
Noic Rupees Rupees
SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS
Running finance 573 834,251 609 283,094
Cash finance 233,090,093 393,674 857
Finance against Imported Merchandise 635,894,812 1.031,873.785
231 2062 819,156 2034 831,736

The Facilities for running finance, cash finance, finance against imported merchandise are
available from various banks up to Rs. 3,600 million (2024: Rs. 2,925 million). These
tacilitics are subject to mark-up at 3 month KIBOR plus 1% to 2.5% (2024: 3 month
KIBOR plus 1% to 2.5%) per annum payable guarterly. These are secured against various
assets including first pari passu hypothecation charge over present and future stock-in-
trade, pledge of cotton, first hypothecation charge over present and future book debis,
ranking charge on the stocks and receivables of the company, plants and machinery,
equitable mortgage on various properties and personal guarantees of all the directors of the
Company,

The aggregate unavailed short-term borrowing facilities amounted to Rs 1,538 million
(2024: Rs. 892 million).

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Contingenceics

In August 2013, the Oil and Gas Regulatory Awuthority (OGRA) vide its S.R.O. #
T26(1)/2015 notified the sale price for sale of natural gas at Rs. 373 28/MMBTU for Captive
Power Consumption (CPP) with immediate effect. Subsequent to the said S.R.O., the
Company received gas bills at Rs. 573 28/MMBTLU, being considered as CPP by the utility
company. The Company, considering itself as industrial consumer paid gas charges at the
rate applicable before August 2013 based on the stay order obtained from the Court.

Subseguently, on September 1, 2015, OGRA vide its S.R.O. # 876(1)/2015 notified the price
for sale of natural gas at Rs. 600/MMBTU for industrial consumers and on CPC, with effect
from September 1, 2015. Aggrieved by the notification, the Company filed a suit in the
Honorable Lahore High Court (LHC) contending that the mandatory procedures as laid
down in the OGRA Ordinance, 2002 and Rules made thereunder were not fulfilled while
issuing the notification. Hence, the Company paid / accrued gas charges at rates applicable
before the above S.R.O. # 726(1)/2015 on the basis of stay order obtained from LHC,
Multan bench, from time to time. until November 2015;

From December 2015, the SNGPL has started supplying imporied Liguefied Natural Gas
(LNG) resulting in the change in rates over which no dispute has been raised by the
Company.
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On July 6, 2020, the OGRA issued a decision wherebhy, the Company (the petitioner) was
directed to pay the ouistanding amount to the utility company within 30 day period from
the date of decision. In response to the above decision, a wril petition was filed before the
LIIC by the Company and the LIIC issued a stay order on October 8, 2020, which
suspended the OGRA's decision, however, the case 15 still pending before LTIC.

The Federal Government issued Gas Infrastructure Development Cess (GIDC) Act in the
years 2011, 2014 and 2015. All GIDC Acts have been subject of thorough debate and

consideration at honorable 1Tigh Courts of the country as well as the Ionorable Supreme
Court of Pakistan (SCP).

On Aupgust 12, 2020, the SCP issued its verdict (judgement) and held that “the levy
imposed under Gas Infrastructure Development Cess Act, 2015 (the Act) is in accordance
with the provisions of the Constitution™. The SCP has also held that “the provisions of
seciion 8 of the Act, which give retrospective effect to the charge and recovery of GIDC
levied from the year 2011 are also declared to be valid being within the legislative
competence of the Parliament.” Ilowever, since the Company is an industrial concern and
it did not pass on the burden of GIDC to its consumers prior to the GIDC Act, 2015 (or
even thereafier), manapement believes that the Company is entitled to the exemption under
the first proviso to Section 8(2) of the GIDC Act, 2015 from payment of the GIDC levied
under the GIDC Act, 2011 and GIDC Ordinance; 2014, As such, arrears due from the
Company may only include amounts levied under the GIDC Act, 2015 from the date of its
commencement, i.e, May 22, 2015,

Subsequent to the Order passed by the SCP on August 12, 2020, SNGPL submitted bills to
the industry including the Company claiming arrears of first instalment in deference to the
said Judgement of the SCP. As the bills of arrears were calculated for monthly instalment
on the basis of entire total payable amount from 2011 to July 2020 by charging cess on the
higher rate of tanff applicable to Captive Connections apart from the fact that the
implication of Section § of the said Act, 2015 was not taken into consideration whereby it
was provided that the industry, which has not collected the cess from the customers prior
to 2015 shall not be liable to the payment of GIDC for the said period from 2011 to 2015.
During the year 2020, a writ petition No. 42176 / 2020 was filed by All Pakistan Textile
Mills Association (APTMA) (where the Company 1s also a party to the petition) before
Ionorable ITigh Courl at Lahore against imposition of GIDC Act 2015 and the recovery of
cess from December 2011 to May 2015, Further, during the prior year, SNGPL started
billing for GIDC to the Company against which payment was made by the Company till
March 2021 based on the order issued by LIIC against the aforementionad writ petition.
Pursuant to the order, LITC restrained SNGPL from charging the cess at the higher tarift
rate of Captive Connection and directed to issue revised bill calculated at the rate
applicable to industrial connection. Besides, the payment for the period from 2011 to 2015
was also suspended in view of the implication of the said provision of law. Further, the
Company made payment which is applicable to industrial consumers and for the difference
between the amounl charged to industrial consumers and captive power consumers, post-
dated cheques are being issued by the Company in favor of SNGPL. For the amount
relating to the pavment of GIDC based on the actual calculation prior to 2015, the decision
was made by the LIIC on June 27, 2021 whereby it has restrained the SNGPL to collect
the cess prior to 2015,
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On September 27, 2021, the LHC issued a judgment on writ petition No. 42716 / 2020
whereby it was concluded that all the parties to the petition (including the Company) fall
under the category of industrial consumers rather than Captive Power Plant and shall
remain liable to the tariff applicable to industrial consomers.

During the prior vears, the Company filed an appeal before the HCS on the ground that no
burden of GIDC had been passed to its customers / clients and thus the Company 15 not
liable to pay GIDC under GIDC Act 2015. The HCS granted stay order against recovery of
GIDC payable by the Company till the finalization of matter by HCS. The matter is
currently pending in the HCS. However, as a matter of abundant caution and without
prejudice to the suits filed, the Company has made aggrepate provision of Rs. 5.4 million
{2024: Rs. 5.4 million) in respect of GIDC up to June 30, 2025,

2413 An order dated November 11, 2020 was passed against the Company by Collector of

25.

Customs, Karachi creating a demand of Rs. 13.023 million along with a penalty of Rs. (.5
million. The Company has challenged the above order by way of filing an appeal before the
Customs Appellate Tribunal at Karachi, which is pending for final adjudication. However, a
stay order was successfully obtained from Honorable Sindh High Court on December 22,
2020 by filing Constitutional Petition number 6618 / 2020, which is still operative.

v

2025 2024
Rupecs Rupees
Commitments
Letters of credit opened and outstanding tor import:
- Stores and spares 3,207 423 6.471.076
- Raw material 226,882,018 476,600,215
Letter of guarantee issued by bank on behalf of the
Company to:
- Lahore Electric Supply Company Limited 34.095 568 34095568
- Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited 03 913,000 81,684 800
- Excise and Taxation Office 184 437,105 165.258.600
- Post dated cheques given to Collector of Customs 1.010.420.492 OR0_ 158,170
as indemnity
Revenue from contract with customer - net
Yam
- Local 2,697,004, 869 2,165,871,496
- Export 1,249 9238 953 1,682,072, 784
- Indirect export 678,666,457 2231 968415
4,625,600279 6,079.912,695
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Home textle
- Loweal
= Export

Raw material - loeal
Wasle - local

Less:
Sales wax
Brokerage and commission

How—

2025 2024
Rupees Rupees
- 3,013,200
F12,183 518 321,584,956
12,183,518 324 598,156
674,653,083 4¥7 840 237
300,420,053 355,681,836
5,912 856,933 7,248,032 924
(707, 778.726) (778,943 841)
(3. IXHD6Y) (19.328.548)
5.201,690,138 6,449 760,535

Revenue recognized during the vear (rom contract habiliies amounied o Rso 1,208.32

million (2024 : Rs. 1,904.63 million)

COST OF SALES
Raw material consumed

Salaries, wages and benelits

Fuel and power

Depreciation

Stores, spares and loose lools consumed
Packing material

[nsurunce

Repairs and maimienance

Vehicles runming and mamlenance
Other

Work in process

Work-in-process
Opening stock
Closimg stock

Cost of goods manulfactured

Finished goods
Opening stock
Yarn purchased
Yam trmnslemed from home extile
Yam trunsferred o home textle
Closing siock

Cost of home textle
Cost of raw material sold

MNole

26.1

26.1.1

513

2025
Rupees

2. 689328 806

2024
Rupees

3.,557,010,514

282,397,396 260,700,700
1,025,952.260 943,888,167
125,931,877 119,526,130
69,303,988 67.443,925
69,619,193 69,642,550
17,528,283 18,400,863
3,867,681 2,750,950
5,220,007 5,894,092
4,297,026 3,761,375
1,604,117,711 1,492,008,753
4,293,446517 5.049,019.267
91,441,948 76,496,220
(111.511,263) (91.441.948)
(20.069315) (14,945 728)
4,273,377,202 5,034,073,539
252,289,028 460,111,663
19,000,000 24,003,800
978,500 1,912,500
(19,000,000) (57.141,750)
(366.826.242) (252.289.028)
(113,558.714) 176,597,185
125,389,260 231,283,557
598,195,526 389,220,006
4,883,403,274 S5,831,174,287
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2025 2024
MNote Rupees Rupees
26.1 Raw material consumed
Opening stock 1,121,028,719 726,259 683
Purchases 2,574 622 6E7T 3,951,779.550
3,695,651 406 4678039233
Closing stock (1,006 322.600) (1, 121,028,719

2,689,328 806 3,557.010,514

26.1.1 Salaries, wages and benefits include Rs. 28.93 million (2024: Rs. 31.98 million) in respect of
charge for staff retirement benefit obligations.

v

27-

28.

DISTRIBUTION COST

Freight and octroi
Commission and other charges
Clearing and forwarding
Business promotion expenses
Export development surcharge

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries and benefits 2%.1
Fees, subscription and periodicals
Entertainment

Traveling and conveyance

Postage and telephone

Electricity, gas and water

Vehicles running and maintenance

Depreciation 513
Loose tools written off

Allowance for expected credit loss - trade
receivable

Legal and professional

Auditor's remuneration 28.2
Printing and stationery

Computer and accessories

Advertisement

Donation 283
Others

12059419 27.634.471
5.714.484 6,396,102
30,162,983 24,430,050
1.841.250 985,101
3,713,857 4812443
33491993 64.258,167
75,503,093 79,580,634
2271043 5,522,782
1,840,138 1.657.440
219850 635,950
1,884,097 18422070
2,136,061 1,847.900
3559173 ¥, 710819
5994321 10,285,824
64,585 =
26,324,027 4,135227
400,000 78,000
1,795,000 1,650,000
927,057 133277
310,200 378,125
70,000 316,150
3,439,000 3,923.000
361,583 613,909
127,099,228 122,297,107
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28.1  Salanies and benefits include Rs. 2.17 million (2024: Rs. 2.02 million) in respect of charge
for employer's contribution to staff provident fund.

2025 2024
MNote Rupecs Rupees
28.2 Aunditors' remuncration

Annual audit fee 1,133,000 1050000
Consolidation fee 275.000 250,000
Half year review fee 200,000 200,000
Review of code of corporate governance 55.000 30,000
Certifications 55,000 50,000
(ut of pocket expenses 55,000 50,000

1,795,000 1,650,000

283 No director or their spouse had any interest in the donees' fund. Dunng the year, the
Company has donated Rs. 3.44 million (2024: Rs. 3.92 million) to The Citizens Foundation.

29. FINANCE COST

Mark-up on long term finance 85,676,109 85, 845782

Mark-up on short-term borrowings 364246419 473.437.026

Interest on lease liability - 175,669

Unwinding of discount on long-term

finance from related parties 172 16.453.250 10,445 400

Bank charges, guarantee

commission and other related 10,588,129 0.809 722
476963937 579,713,599

3. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Realized exchange loss on

foreign exchange - net 14116518 25342874
Unrealized exchange loss on

foreign exchange- net - 936,180
Infrastructure cess 213 18,358 687 24735002

32.475.205 51,014,056

G
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v

2025 2024
Note Ruapees Rupces
31. OTHER INCOME
Income from financial asscts
Profit on deposits with bank 25575852 28.771.558
Dividend Income = 198,000
Realized gain on short term investment - 399 ({6
25575852 30.368.564
Income from non-financial asscts
(iain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 3,703,456 12,627,300
Scrap sales 143.032 205,329
Export rebate 5,437,823 5,955,182
9284311 18,787,811
34 860,163 49 156375
32. LEVY
Final tax levy 22 690,054 39282790
Minimum tax differential 12.1 38305127 31326445
60,995,181 TO.609 235

32.1  This represents minimum tax on turnover under section 113 of Income Tax Ordinance 2001.

33. TAXATION

Current
- ftor the year 33.1 - -
- prior year (104,695) 758,682
(104.695) T5R,682
Deferred 19 (3.008,528) (26,519.307)
(3,113,223) (25.760.625)

33.1 Reconciliation of current tax charge charged as per tax laws for the year, with current tax
recogmized in the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss, is as follows:

2025 2024
Rupecs Rupcees
Income tax under [AS 12 - -
Income tax levy under IFRIC 21/1AS 37 60,995 181 70,609,235
Current tax liability as per Income Tax Ordinance 60,995,181 70,609 235
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35.

Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit for the current year has not
been presented as there has been no tax at normal rate of taxation under Income Tax

Ordinance, 2001.

LOSS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

There is no dilutive effect on the basic loss per share of the Company which 15 based on:

Note

Loss for the year
Weighted average number of ordinary shares

outstanding during the year 15
Loss per share Rupees / Share
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances 14
Running finance 23

2025 2024
Rupces Rupeces
(394.765.294) (194 388.916)
19,852 800 19,852 800
(19.88) (9.79)
28,970,607 B.607 548
(573,834,251) (609,283,094)
(484 863.044) (600,673,546)

v
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39,

40.

41.

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

The total and average number of cmployees dunng the year und a5 at Junc 30, 2025 and 2024

respectively are as follows:

Total number of employecs of the Company as al reporing
dalc

Averape number of cmployees of the Company during the
yedr

PROVIDENT FUND RELATED DISCLOSURE

2025

147

2024

552

686

Investment made by the Company have been made in accordance with the provisions of section

218 Compamcs Act, 201 7.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

2025 2024
Rupees Rupees
Finanecial assets as per statement of Anancial position
At farr value through profit or loss - -
At amortized cost
Long term deposits 4513631 6,063,681
Trade debts 1,704,725, 872 L11L,090,939
Loans and advances 1503391 963,951
Other receivables 45319929 51,362,833
Short term investment 148,099, 669 200,455,670
Cosh amd bank balunces 88,690,076 7.055,019
1,993,152.568 [.376,992.173
2025 2024
Rupees Rupees
Financial liahilities as per statement of linancial position
At amortized cost
Long-lerm [inance
- from bankmyg companics T43,729 (023 Toh, 160,948
- from related partics 169203415 58272948
Trade and other payables 362 584 409 261,089,709
Uneloimed dividend 2,739,068 2,739,068
Acerued mark-up T4.936,843 114,013,686
Short-term borrowings 2062819156 2034 831,736
3416011914 3.237.108,095

2
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41.1

42,

421

RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENT OF LIABILITIES TO CASH FLOWS ARISING

v

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

1025
Long Term Long Term Linhilitics
Lovan - Loan -
Deseription Instifutions Related Short Term Tolal
Party Bormowing
Balunce a5 ot July 1, 66, 160,948 58,272,948 1,425 548,642 2249 952 S35
Immpoct of Grant 2R 938 258 - - 2R 038 253
Urrwmdimge of discoumi - 16,453 279 - 16,453,279
Fur value adjustment - (59,733 286) - (59,733 286)
Loan meceived 150,090,130 134210474 3,015,167,600 1319468 264
Repayment {201 4641, 30%) - {295,751 397 (L153,191,705)
Balenoe s al Jume 30, 2025 743,720 023 169,203 415 | 488,984 005 2401917343

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND RELATED DISCLOSURES

The Board of Dircctors has overall responsibility for the cstablishment and oversight of the
Company’s fimancial risk management. To assist the Beard im dischamging its oversight
responsibility, management has been made responsible for identifying, monitoring and managing
the Company's financial nsk cxposurcs. The Company has cxposure to the following nisks from its
use of financial mstruments:

- Credit risk

- Liguidity nsk

- Muorket nisk

Credit risk

Credit nigk s the nsk that one party to a financial mstroment will fail o discharpe an obligation
and eanse the other party to ineor & finoncial loss, withouot taking mito accoont the fair valoe of any
collateral. Concentration of eredit nisk anses when a number of financial instroments or contracts
are cntered mmin with the same party, or when counter partics are engaged i similar business
activitics, or activitics in the same geographic region, or have similar coonomic features that would
cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in cconomic,
political or ather conditions. Concentrations of credit risk indicate the relative sensitivity of the
Company's performance to developments affecting a particular mdustry.

Credit nsk of the Company ariscs principally from the trade debts, loans and advances, other
financial assets, other receivables and bank balances. The carrying amount of financial assets
represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximom cxposure to credit sk st the reporting
date is as follows:

1025 024
Nuote Rupees Ruopees
Security deposits 4513631 6,063,681
Trade debts 42.1.1 1,704,725.872 1,111,090,959
Loans and advances 42.1.2 1203391 963,981
Other receivables 45319,929 51,362,833
Short term myestment 42.13 148,099 669 200 455 670
Bank balances 4213 BR,690,076 7,055,019
1,993,152,568 1.376,992.173

3
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41.1.1

42.1.2

41.1.3

Trade debis

The trade debts at year end arc due from lecal and foreign customers against local sales and export
sales respectively. Trade debt doe from foreign customers are secured asainst letter of credit. For
local customers management assesses the credit quality of customers, taking into sccount their
financial position, past expenence and other factors. The Company’s exposure to credit nisk
anising from trade debtors 15 mamly influenced by the individual charactenistics of each customer.
The Company has no major concentration of credit nsk with any single customer. The Company
establishes an allowunee for impairment that represents lifetime expected credit losses (ECL)
based on analysis of recovery pattern and adjustment of trade debts seeured apainst letter of
credits.

Loans and advances

These inclode loans and advances given primarily to employees agamst salames, which will be
adjusted against their future salarics or m case of resignation against their post retirement benefit
balances.

(Oiher financial assets and balances with banks

The Company deposits ity funds and nvests in term deposit receipts (other finaneial assets) with
banks carrying good credit standings assessed by reputzble credit agencies. These banks are credit
rated as follows:

Hank Name Daie of Rating Short Term  Long ‘Term
Ratmg Agency

Trank Al-Faloh Limied 2%-Jun-25 PALCHA Al AMA
Samba Hank Limided 2#-Jun-25 PACRA Al AA
Dubar Islurme Hank Pakstan Lid 28-hm-25 Vis Al Al
Habib Metropobian Bank Lmmited 28-Jun-25 PACRA Al+ AAL
The Bank of Punmb 28 -fun-25 PAUCRA Al MM
MOH Ismic Bank Limted 2#-Jun-25 PACRA Al At
Mational Bank of Pakstan 28-Jun-25 Vis Al AAA
Silk Bank Lowted 28-Jun-25 Vs Al+ AMA
Bank Islamic Pakstan Lomited 28-hm-2% PACHA Al AA-
Sinadh Bank Lirmited 28-jun-25 VIS Al AA-
Mecran Hank Lrmited 28-hm-25 Vis AL+ AAA
1.5 Bank Limied 2E-Jun-25 PACEA Al+ AA
Habih Bank Limted 2B-hm-2% VIS AL+ AAA
Bank Al-Hazinb Lomated 28-jun-25 PACHA Al AAA
Somen Hank Lomted 28-hm-25 PACRA AL+ AA-
Aodenrs Bank Lrmted 28-hm-25 PACEA Al AN

422 Liguidity risk

How—

Liguidity nsk is the nsk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations
associated with financial liabilitics that are settled by delivering cash or another fmancial asset.
Liguidity nisk anses because of the possibility that the Company could be reguired to pay its
liabilities earlier than expected or would have difficulty in rasing funds to meet comoitments
associated with financial lishilities as they fall due. The Company's approach to managing
liguadity 15 to cnsure; as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient ligudity to meet its
liabilities when due without incurmng unaceeptable losses or niskmg damage to the Company's
reputation. The Company manapes liguidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and bank balances
and availability of finance through banking armangements.

74
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423

42.3.1

42.3.2

The followmng arc the contractual maturitics of financial Rabilitics, mcluding micrest paymenis:

v

2025
Carrying Cogtraciual — mafurily uplo  mafurity after
amount miaturithes il YERr ame Year
Long-term lnance
- frum rehated parties 169201415 255,401,474 IS9I119 220470355
- froom basking Companics 743729021 RITI2R468 W04 47HII003S
Lesse Liahahity - - - -
Teade & other payable I62584400 362584409 162584409 5
Unclaimed dividend 2.739,068 2,739,068 2739 068 -
Mark-up sccured 74936843 74,936,843 T4.5936.843 -
Short-ferm borrwings LABROEAO0S 1 4RROR4 905 | 488984905 -
1842177663 3001775167 2293965746  707.809390
Hix4
Carrying Conirscinal  malerily aplo  madurily after
il il arilies e YEar e year
Long-term fmumce
~ from related partics SE272948% 101,191,000 5,454 545 95 736,455
 from bunking Companics 766160948  S6KA9ESSE 360736599  S07,761957
Lizise Liahility - I57,020 57,020 -
Teude & wther payable 261089709  I610RT0Y 261089709 .
Unchimed divitend 2,739,068 2,779,068 2,739,068 .
Mark-up secured 4013686 114013686 114013586 2
Shut-term burrowinzs 2038736 LOMEILTI6 2034831736 :
INTIR5  3IRDS0.TTT  3.779,022 363 603,498 412
Market rizk
Market risk 15 the risk that chonges in markel prices, such ns share price, forcign exchange mics
and inferest rates will affect the Company's income or the value of its holdings of Fnancial
instruments. The Company is primarily exposcd to interest mate risk and curreney risk.
Price risk

Price nisk 15 the nisk that the fair value or the future cashflows of a financial mstroment will
Muctuste because of changes m market prices (other than those ansmg from: micrest rate nsk or
curreney misk), whether those changes are cavsed by factors specilfic o the mdividual fmancial
mstrument or its issuer, or faetors affeeting all similar financial mstruments traded m the markel
As al June 30, 2025 the company is nol exposcd to price risk.

Imterest rate risk

Interest rate risk 15 the risk that the far value or future cash Aows of a financial mstnument will
Muctuste becpuse of changes m market mitcrest rates. The Company’s cxposure o the nisk of
changes in market interest rates relates primurily w the Company's long=tcrm fAnanemg, short-lorm
bormowings, short torm imvestment and bank balances m savings account

Al the reporting date the interest mate nisk profile of the Company’s mlerost-beanng financial
mstruments is:

15
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4233

Carrying Amount
1025 2024
Rupees Rupees

Fixed rate instruments

Fimancial asscts - at amorizeed cost 148,099 669 200,455,670

Fmancial habilitics - at amorineed cost 427442 297 513,629 844
Variable rate insirumenis

Financial asscls - al amoriized cost 84,320,203 6,548,627

Finmeial habilitics - al amoriseed cost 2,548 309297 2345635788

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instroments

The Company docs not account for any fixed mtc fnancial asscls and labihtics at far waloc
through profit or loss. Therctore, a chunge I mterest mate at the reporting date would not affcet
profit or loss.

Cash Now sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

A change of 500 basis points i KIBOR based on financial habilities at the reporting date would
have increased / (decreased) cquity and profit before tax by Rz 127.42 mullion (2024: Rs. 117.40
mmillion). This analysis assumics that all other varables romaim constant.

Currency risk

Forcign curreney misk ariscs mamly where reecivables and payables exist due to transactions with
forcign underiakings and bank balances m foreign amreney, The Company's cxposure to foreign
currency nsk 15 as follows:

025 2024
Rupees
Trade debis 24,655,755 62.527,155
Traude payable 112045502 129308 404
Average Rate Reporting date rate
2025 2024 1025 2024
Rupees.

UsD 27934 27852 283765 27834

At June 30, 2025, if the Pakistani Rupec had weakened [ strongthened by 1-2% against the US
Dollar and Euro with all other vanables held constanl, profit before tax for the year would have
been lower / higher by Rs. 1.75 million (2024: Rs. 3.99 million), mainly as a resull of foreign
exchange losses / gams on ronslation.of US Dollar and Euro - denommated trade debts and trade
payables.
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424 Capital risk management

The objective of the Company whien managing capital is o safcgeard its ability lo continue a5 a
ooimg concern so that it can continue o provide returns for sharcholders and benefits for other
stmkeholders and (o maintam & strong eapital base to support the sustined development of s
busincsses.

The Company manages its capital strociure by monitormg rolum on nel asscis and makes
adjustments to it m the hight of changes in ceonomic conditions. In order 1o mamiam or adjust the
capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividend to the sharcholders or wssue
bomus [ new shares or sell assel 1o reduee debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Company manages ils capital nisk by monitoning s
higuid nsscis and kecping m wvicw (uture investment requiremenis and  cxpectation of the
sharcholders

As at June 30, 2025 and 2024, the Company had surplus reserves o mect its reguimements,

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be reeeived to sell an asset or pard 1o tmnsfor a hability in an
orderly transaction i the principal (or most sdvantageous) market ot the measurement daie under
current market conditions (i.c. an exit prce) regardless of whether that price s directly obscrvable
or estimated using another valuation echnigue.

The fwr value of an asset or o Hability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would uwse when pricing the assct or hability, assumimg that market participants act m their
cconorme best miercst.

A far value messuroment ol a non-linancial assel tokes into seeount 4 market participant's ability

to generale cconomic benelits by using the asset in its highest snd best wse or by sclling it 1o
another market participant that would use the asset in s highest and best usc.

The Company wses valuation technigoes that are sppropriate in the circunstances and for which
sufficient data arc available 1o measure fair value, maximizmg the ose of rolevant observable
inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs,

The different levels of fair valuation method have been defined as follows:
Level I Quoled prices in active markels for identical assets or linbilities;

Level 2: Inputs other than quoled prices ncluded m Level | that are observable for the assel or
Hability, cither dircetly (as prices) or mdirectly (derived from prices); and

Level 3: Tnputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data

The currying wvalues of all fAnancial asscts and Labilities reflected in the fnancial statomenis
approximate their Fair values.

There are no franslors between the levels during the year

T
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43.1

45,

46.

There are no other asscts or lishilitics 1o classify under above levels cxcept the Compuny's
frechold land, buildmg on frechold land, labor colony on free hold land, plant and machmery,
clectrie installations mnd {sclory equipment arc staled at revalued amounts, being the Fair value u
the date of rovaluation, less subscquent depreciation and subsequent acoumulated impaimment
losses, if any. The fair value measurements of these assets carmied out as at January, 2024, were
performed by Harvester Scrvices (Pvt) Lid not related to the Company. The valuer is histed on
panc! of Pakisten Banks Association and they have approprate gualification and cxperience in the
fwir value measurement of propertics, plant and machmery (Refor note 5.1.5).

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group constitules a single roportable segment since the exccutive management monitors the
operating results of the entity for the purpose of mekmg decisions about resource allocation and
performance asscssment. The eniiby-wide disclosures roquired by [FRS 8 'Opeorating Scgmenis’ ure
miven below:

{2} Company sales comprise of Terry owels and yam whereby more than 95% sales pertains to
Yarn.

(b As at June 30, 2025 and Junc 30, 2024, all non-current asscts of the company were located
m Pakistan.

(c) Sigmificant sales are made by company in the following countrics:

2025 2024
Rupees
Pakistan 3.642,129.732 4446, 102,795
China 1.247.376_888 1682072754
Other countries F12 183,518 321,584,956
5.201.690,.138 6,449.760,535

CORRESPONDING FIGURES
Cormmesponding  higures have been reclassificd and rearmenged where neccssary to facilitate

comparison, however, no sigmificant reclassification have been made in these unconsolidated
financial statcments.

DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

These unconsolidated financial statements were authorized for issue on November 04, 2025 by the
Board of Dircctors of the Company.

Chiof Excculive Chiof Financel Officor

A\ St /W |
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B

The Directors are pleased to present the consolidated financial statements of Idrees Textile
Mills Limited (the Holding Company) and its subsidiary company, ORA Home LLC {ORA),
together referred to as 'Group’ for the year ended June 30, 2025,

The Holding Company has annexed its consolidated financial statements along with its
separate financial statements in accordance with the requirements of Intermational Financial
Reporting Standards and Companies Act, 2017.

The Directors’ Report on the unconsolidated financial statements of the Holding Company

contains a review on the performance of ldrees Textile Mills Limited for the year ended June
30, 2025. It also includes a brief description of the subsidiary company, ORA Home LLC.

For and on behalf of the Board

AL

Rizwan Idrees Allawala S. M. Mansoor Allawala
Chairman Chief Executive

Karachi: Movember 04, 2025



2
s g S

£ (ORA) ORA Home LLC:G¥ 36Ul ¥ g i S S R i A s
e oG LSS JOSE L LULndn 2025 030
I 4

|

N Jr L U5 201701 5013332 g QISP 2 L e
e W st B 1 AL =tk QU

L IdininF¥ 2025 yr 30w /S A Ay Ut QU2 3L H Ee
IE? L.J;ORA Home LLCJ;JL,{" S F_q:;.ul‘:.:ff{ 7 lgr'_i L,G):E' J::i‘");) i:.l_?u:.’m‘:_'_
-.LUFU‘-'U{U&‘;,

AL
. 2025 404

I A Vsl et~
. - 3
S A1 &

a1



Tel: «#7 10 1548 1030 Yivd Flpor, Qlock €
Fax! +32 21 1568 4239 Lahson Sauare, Buliding Mo. 1
weiw, bado, ot pl Sarw g Shaheed Hnad

Karachi- 74100
Panritan

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financlal Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed consolidated financial statements of Idrees Textile Mills Limited and its
subsidiary (topether referred to as "the Group"}, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at June 30, 2025, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in eguity and the consolidated
statement of cashflows far the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a material accounting policies and other explamatory information.

In our opinion, consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at June 30, 2025, and of itz consolldated financial performance and its
consolidated cashflows for the year then ended in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards
as applicable in Pakistan.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (I34s) as applicable in
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of the Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion

thereon, and we do not provide & separate opinion on these matters.

Following are the key audit matters;

5. No | Key audit matters | How the matter was addressed in our audit
1. Revenue recognition
As disclosed in notes 4.15 and 25 in the | Our audit work includes number of
consolidated financial statements, procedures, among others:

The principal activity of the Group is to engage |  Assessed the design, implementation and
in manufacturing and sale of yarn and sale of operating effectiveness of the key internal
home textile products. Revenue fram sale of controls involved in revenue recognition.

goods s recognized when performance

BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants
) et § LTI CTURFES TLE Py JSST Jru | P
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5. Mo | Key audit matters How the matter was addressed in our audit
obligations are satisfied by transferring [« Understood and evaluated the accounting
control of promised goods to customer. policy with respect fo  revenue

recognition,
We considered revenue recognition as a key
audit matter due to the significance of the |«  Periormed testing of revenue transactions
amounts involved, being key performance on a sample basls with underlying
indicator, inherent risk of  materfal documentation including  dispatch
misstatement in revenue recognition and the documents and sales invoices.
audit efforts involved in this area.

= Tested on a sample basis, specific revenue
transactions recorded before and after the
reporting date with underlying
documentation to assess whether revenue
was recognized in the correct period.

= Performed audit procedures to analyze
variation in the price and guantity sold
during the year,

» Assessed the adeguacy of related
disclosures made in sccordance with the
applicable financial reporting framework.

2. Valuation of Stock in trade

As at June 30, 2025, the Group held stock-in-
trade amounting to Rs. 1,983.57 million,
constituting 26% of the total assets, as
disclosed in note 8 ta the consolidated
financial statements.

As described in note 4.3 to the consolidated
financial statements, stock-in-trade is
measured at a lower of cost and net realizable
value, The cost of wark-in-process and
finished wsoods is determined by annual
average manufacturing cast which consists of
prime cost and appropriate manufacturing
overheads.,

Pue to the significance of inventory balances
and related estimations involved in valuing the
inventory, we considerad this as a key audit
matter.

We obtained an understanding of the
Company's processes in place for stock
accounting. Our audit precedures to assess the
existence and valuation of inventory included
the following:

= Obtained an wunderstanding of the
Company's process with respect to the
existence and valuation of stock-in-trade
and tested controls relevant to such
process;

« We attended the physical count of stock in
trade to observe the management's
process of measurement

» We perfarmed tests over the prices of raw
materials and verified items in the product
costing of work in progress.

BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants
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5. No | Key audit matters How the matter was addressed in our audit

« Tested the calculations of per unit cost of
finished goods and work in process and
assessed the appropriatenass of
management’s basis for the allocation of
cost and production overheads and
compared it with the prior period to assess
reasonableness,

» fAssessed the adequacy of related
disclosures made In accordance with the
applicable financial reporting framework.

Information Other than the Consolidated and Unconsolidated Financial Statements and Auditor's
Repaort Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but dees not include the consolidated and unconsolidated financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledege obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materfally misstated. If, based on the work we have perfarmed, we canclude that there |s a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Directors for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management Is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and
Companies Act, 2017 and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible Tor overseeing the Group's financial reporting process,
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consalidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from materiat misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion, Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is nol a guarantes
that an audit conducted in accordance with 1545 as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
Individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the econemic decisions
af users taken an the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 154s as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» ldentify and assess the risks of materfal misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures respansive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional amissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal contral.

» Obtain an understanding of internal cantrol relevant to the audit in order ta design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

s Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt an the Group's ability to cantinue as a aoing concern. |f we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our apinion, Qur cenclusions are based on the audit evidence oblained up to
the date of our auditor's report, However, future events or canditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

« Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of
mast significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefare the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
wolld reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audil resulting in this independent auditor's report is Tarig Feroz Khan.

KARACHI !; j : ¢ L ¢
DATED: NOVEMBER 5, 2025 BDO EBRAHIM & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

UDIN: AR202510166Wu40sSamt
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at June 30, 2025
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

For the Year ended June 30, 2025

Revenue from contract with customer - net
Cost of sales

Giross profil

Distribution cost
Administrative expcnses

Opcrating profit

Fmance cost

Other operating expenses

Other mecome
Loss beforme levy and taxation
Levy

Loss before taxation
Taxation
Loss for the year

Loss por share - basic and dilufed

Mote

24

26
27

28

29

30

3

32

i3

ey —

2025 2024
Ruopees Rupees

5.230,687,804 6,469 262 856
(4,890,673 245) (5,841,403 396)

340,014,649 627859460
(53.491.993) (64 258, 167)
(139.998.610) (128392 366)
(193.490,603) (192 650.533)

146,524 046 415 208,927
(477.136.903) (579853271}
(32.475205) (51,014,056)
(363.088.062) (195,658 400)

34860163 49,209 986
(328,227 899) (146,448 414)
{6,995, 181) (70,609,235)
(389223 080) (217.057,649)

1,749,532 25,576,371
(387,473, 548) (191,481 278)
(19:52) (9.65)

The annexed notes from | to 45 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the Year ended June 30, 2025

Loss for the year
Orther comprehensive income

ltems that will not be reclassified sobsequenily
o profif or loss

Sorplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment during the yoar
Imipesct of dilermed tax thireon

Adjustment of surphis on reviluition of property, plinl imd equipiment
i 1y chiange n b nde

Remecsuement boss on retiremenl benelit oblgtion

Related tax

Foreign operalions - foncign curency trnslation @iffennce

(Mher comprehonsive {loss Vimoome for the year

Total comprebeasive (Joss) Tor the year

Thi mnnesed notes from | 045 fom an mtepral part of these consolidatad nancial statements.

S SR

Chiof Excculive Chiof Financel Officor

Nole

15
195
I8

gﬁﬁ”%

2025 2624
Riupees Rupecs
(3BT 473 548) (191 481,.278)
T8, 747 6035
(3,940,002)
72307603
(16,873 687) 34,988 685
(12839172} (BO2,995)
372334 232 869
(252 525) 305,954
(18,037,790) 34,934,513
(403,511 338) (156,556,T65)

/Z:
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—————— CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the Year ended June 30, 2025
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the Year ended June 30, 2025

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
L belore luxakion

Adjusimenis For mon cash incnme and cxpense:
Dheprciation

Prosuon for retiremen benefit obligataon

Levy

Fimance ool

Hapociod credit bes - fode rmeenvabic
Profit on dejrsiis

Cim on dhsposz] of property, plant and cqugsment
Unirealiel foss un loreapn exchame

bl gadn on’ et term imvestment
Cperatimg caib Movws be e workiog capmud changes

(lucreasc) / decrense in currenl assels
Storrvs, sporest amd bose ok
Sock-fn-trabe

Trabe duhis

Loam aml sbvances

Prepaymeonis
Uit rocevables

Increwse § {decroase) in correal liabilities
Tl arw) ol payables

€ mib procrated frem operations

Fimanen st pand

Rtinsmsnt benefil olligatiom pasd
Enexsene Lo pasl

Tong-terim dopesds - et

Mel cash wsed in operating scifvities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, plaed s squepemenl

Proceeds e disposal of property, plas asd equipimest

Tuchase of lerm depomit noeipl - nel

Hale al slunes

Profit on deposit recdived

Met cush penerated from / (osed in) investing activities

CASH FLAYWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Lomege-term limance repasd 1o Gisncnl mstibuliom:
Lag-berm lisance obiarmal fromn faicial et g
Lewegt-term Dimateo tepasd 1o rolaied partics
Lag-term (imance vlisad Boen mlbed partes
Short lorm bormosnings obdaoed - el

IHvidened s
Mol iash il Fraina dalEvals

Mel inerease [ (decrease) in cush und cash equoivalenis
Cash and cash cquivalents af ibhe beginning of he year
EMeed of rchamge rale chages in cash and coih oynivalesis
Casly and cash oguivalents al the ead of the year

The anmeied nobes frwn 0w 4% foren an iolegeal ot of s consolslbated insncinl falmenls.
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————— CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

1.

1.1

1.2

2.1

For the Year ended June 30, 2025

STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

The Group consist of Idrees Textile Mills Limited (the Holding Company) and its 100%
owned subsidiary ORA Home LLC (ORA) (the Subsidiary). Together referred to as "the
Group” and mdividually as "Group entities”

[drees Textile Mills Limited (the Holding Company) was mncorporated in Pakistan as an
unguoted public limited Group on June 5, 1990 under the repealed Companies Ordinance,
1984 (now Companies Act, 2017) and was histed on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited on
April 28, 1992, The registered office of the Holding Group is situated at 6-C, Ismail Centre,
1st floor, Central Commercial Area, Bahadurabad, Karachi in the Province of Sindh. The
principal activity of the Holding Group is manufactuning, processing and sale of all kinds of
yarn. The Holding Group is also engaged in business of Home Textile.

Following are the geographical location and address of all business units of the Holding
Giroup:

Karachi Purpose
6-C, Ismail Centre, st floor, Central Commercial Arca, Bahadurabad Head (Oifice
Nankana Sahib Purpose

Kot Shah Mubammad, Tehsil & District Nankana Punjab Regional (Office and Production Plant / Factory

The geographical location and address of Subsidiary 1s as follows:

New Jersey, USA Purpaose
1215 Livingston Avenue, STE 4 North Regstered office
Brunswick, NJ 08902

During the year ended June 30, 2022, the Holding Company acquired 100% ownership in
ORA Home LLC (ORA), a limited hability company incorporated in New Jersey, USA on
January 5, 2022, One of the directors of the Holding Company is the member manager of
ORA. Pursuant to the acqusition, ORA has become wholly owned subsidiary of the Holding
Company (refer note 6).

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting
and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards as

applicable in Pakistan comprise off
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23

For the Year ended June 30, 2025

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Accounting Standards) 1ssued by the
Intemmational Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act,
2017; and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Compamies Act, 2017,

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ with
requirements of IFRS Standards, the provisions ol and directives 1ssued under the Companies
Act, 2017 have been followed.

Bagsis of measurement

These linancial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except as
stated otherwise, in the relevant note to the financial statement.

These are separate consolidated financial statements of the Company in which investment in
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses, if any.

Basis of consolidation
Subsidiary

These consolidaled financial statements mclude the financial statements of the Holding
Company and its Subsidiary. A company 15 a subsidiary, if the Holding Company directly or
mdirectly controls, beneficially owns or holds more than fifty percent of its voling securities or
otherwise has power to elect and appomt more than fifty percent of its directors. Subsidianes
are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group and up Lo the
date when the control ceases. These consolidated financial statements include ldrees Textile
Mills Limited (the Holding Group) and its subsidiary entity ORA Home LLC, ie., the entily in
which the Holding Group directly owns 100%. Accordingly, there 15 no non-controlling
interest.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealized gain / (losses) on transactions between
group are eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiary have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

ORA Homes LLC (the subsidiary) has been consolidated on the basis of unaudited fmancial
statement prepared by the management. The fmancial position as atl reporting date and
financial performance for the year of subsidiary on the basis of imaudited financial statements
prepared for the purpose of consolidation are as follow:
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2.5

For the Year ended June 30, 2025

Unaudited
2025
Rupees
Total assets 23,203,432
Total liabilites 33,141,870
Expenses 62813217
Income 08.976.937

Business combination

The Group accounts for business combination using the acquisition method when control is
transferred to the Group. The consideration transferred (including contingent consideration) in
the year of acquisition 15 measured at fair value, as are the identifiable net assets acquired. Any
goodwill acquired 15 not amortized but tested annually for impairment. Any gain on a bargain
purchase 15 recognized in consohdated statement of profit or loss immediately. Transaction
costs are expensed as incurred, except if related to the issue of debt or equity secunities. When
the mnitial accounting for a business combination is incomplete at the end of a reporting period.
provisional amounts are used. During the measurement penod, the provisional amounts are
retrospectively adjusted and additional assets and liabilities are recognized, to reflect new
mformation obtamed about the facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date
which would have alfected the measurement of the amounts recognized at that date, had they
been known. The measurement penod does not exceed twelve months from the date of
acquisition.

Goodwill

In a business combination, goodwill 1s initially measured at cost (being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount recognised for non-controlling
interests and any previous mterest held over the net identifiable assets acquired and habilities
assumed). I the fair value of the net assets acquired 15 mn excess of the aggregate consideration
transferred, then the gain 1s recognised in the consohdated statement of profit and loss and
other consolidated statement of comprehensive income .

After imtial recognition, goodwill 1s measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
For the purpose of impairment testing, poodwill acquired in a business combmation is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units that are expected to
benefit from the combmation, irrespective of whether other assets or hiabilities of the acquiree
are assioned to those unils.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (CGU) and part of the operation
within that unit 15 disposed of| the goodwill associated with the disposed operation 1s included
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mn the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal.
Goodwill disposed 1n these circumstances 15 measured based on the relative values of the
disposed operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit retamed.

Presentation and functional currency

Items mcluded in the consolidated financial statements are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the Holding Company operates. These consohdated
financial statements are presented m Pakistami Rupees. which 1s the Holding Company's
functional and presentation currency. All financial information presented in Pakistan Rupees
has been rounded ofT to the nearest rupee.

Use of estimates, assumptions and judgments

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with the accounting and
reporting standards requires management o make estimates, assumplions and use judgments
that affect the apphication of policies and the reported amounts of assets, habilities, income and
eXpenses.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on histonical expenence and varnous other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the resull of which form the
basis of making the judgments about the carrving values of assets and habilites that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The
estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongomg basis. Revision to
accounting estimates are recognised in the penod in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that pertod, orin the period of revision and future penods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of the accounting and reporting standards,
as applicable in Pakistan, that have a significant effect on the consolidated fmancial statements
and estimates with significant nisk of matenal judgment in the next financial year are set forth
below:

= Defined benefit plan (notes 4.10.1 and 19.1);

- Residual value, useful hves, depreciation method / amortization and impairment of
property, plant and equipment (notes 4.1, 4.20 and 5);

- Taxation (notes 4.11, 18 and 32);

- Stock-in-trade and stores and spares (notes 4.2 and 7);

- Contingencies and provisions (note 23); and

- Impairment of fnancial assets (notes 4.6).
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APPLICATION OF NEW STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS
TO PUBLISHED ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING STANDARDS AS APPLICABLE
IN PAKISTAN

New accounting standards, amendments and IFRS interpretations that are effective for
the year ended June 30, 2025

The following standards, amendments and mterpretations are effective for the year ended June
30, 2025, These standards, amendments and mterpretations are either not relevant to the
Group's operations or did not have significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Effective date
(annual periods
beginning on or
after)
Amendments to IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures' - Supplier
finance arrangements January 01, 2024
Amendments to [FRS 16 "Leases' - Amendments to clanfy how a seller-
lessee subsequently measures sale and leaseback transactions January 01, 2024
Amendments to [AS | '"Presentation of Financial Statements' -
Classification of labilities as current or non-current Junuary 01, 2024
Amendments to IAS | "Presentation of Financial Stalements' - Non-current
liabilities with covenants January 01, 2024
Amendments to [AS 7 'Statement of Cash Flows' - Suppher finiance
arrangemenits
gt January 01, 2024

New accounting standards, amendments and interpretations that are not yet effective

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are only effective for accounting
periods, beginning on or after the date mentioned agamst each of them. These standards,
amendments and interpretations are either not relevant to the Group's operations or are not
expected to have significant impact on the Group's consolidated financial stalements.
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Effective date
(annual periods
beginning on or
after)
- Amendments to [FRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures' -
Amendments regarding the classification and measurement of financial
instruments January 01, 2026
-  Amendments to IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' - Amendments
regarding the classification and measurement of fmancial
instruments Junuary 01, 2026
- Amendments to [FRS 7 'Fmnancial Instruments: [Disclosures' -
Amendments regarding nature-dependent electricity contracts that
are often structured as power purchase agreements (PPAs) Junuary 01, 2026
- Amendments to IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' - Amendments
regaurding nature-dependent electricity contracts that are ofien
structured as power purchuse agreements (PPAs) January 01, 2026
- Amendmends to IAS 21 'The Effects of Changes in Foreign
Exchange Rates' - Lack of Exchangeability January 01, 2025
- IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts January 01, 2027

Certain annual improvements have also been made to a number of [FRSs and 1ASs.

IFRS | "First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards' has been issued by
1ASB effective from July 01, 2009. However, it has not been adopted yet locally by Secunties
and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP)

IFRS 17 - 'Insurance contracts' has been notified by the IASB to be effective for annual periods
berinnming on or alter January 1, 2023. However SECIP has notified the timeframe for the
adoption of IFRS - 17 which will be adopted by January 01, 2027.

IFRS 18 'Presentation and Disclosures in Financial Statements' has been issued by IASH
effective from January 01, 2027. However, it has not been adopled yet locally by Secunties
and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP)

IFRS 19 'Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures’ has been issued by IASB
effective from January 01, 2027. However, it has nol been adopted yet locally by Secunties
and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP)
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION

The matenal accounting policies applied i the presentation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

Property, plant and equipment

Operating fixed asset

Property, plant and equipment are stated as follows:
= Land 15 stated at revalued amount;

- Building, Labour colony, plant and machinery, electne installations and [actory
equipment are stated at revalued amounts less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, if any; and

- Office equipment, furniture and fixtures and vehicles are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, if any.

Cost mcludes expenditure that 1s directly attributable to the acquisition of an assel including
borrowing costs, if any. When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant
and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in an asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate assel,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and ils cost can be measured reliably. Cost incurred to replace a
component of an item of property, plant and equipment 1s capitalized and the asset so replaced
15 derecogmsed. Normal repairs and mainienance are charged to the consohdated statement of
profit or loss during the peniod in which they are meurred.

Depreciation is charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss on a straight line basis at
the rates specified in note 5.1. Depreciation on additions 18 charged when asset 13 available for
use upto the month prior to its disposal.

Depreciation methods, vuseful lives and residual values of each item of property, plant and
equipment are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate at each reporting date.

Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to the unconsolidated statement of profit and loss
as and when mcurred.
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Surplus on revaluation is credited to the surplus on revaluation of property, plant and
equipment account and is shown in the unconsolidated statement of changes i equity. Deficit
on revaluation of assets 1s recognized in the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss, except
that 1t reverses a revaluation surplus for the same asset previously recognized in
unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, in which case the deficnt s charged to
unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income to the extent of the surplus credited
previously. The revaluation reserve i not available for distribution to the Company's
shareholders.

Revaluation is carmied out with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying amount of assets
does nol differ matenally from the estmated Far value. To the exient of the mcremental
depreciation charged on the revalued assels, the related surplus on revaluation ol assets (net of
deferred taxation) is transferred directly to retained earnings (unappropnated profit). Further,
accumulated depreciation as at the revaluation date is eliminated against the gross carrying
amount of the asset and the net amount 15 stated to the revalued amount of the asset. Upon
disposal, any revaluation surplus relating to the particular asset being sold is transferred to
retained earnings (unappropriated profit).

An item of property, plant and equipment 15 derecognized upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss on disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined by companng the proceeds from disposal
with the carrying amount of the property, plant and equipment, and is recogmized in other
mcome / other expenses in the statement of profit or loss. When revalued assets are sold, any
related amount mcluded in the surplus on revaluation is transferred to retmned earmings
(unappropriated profit).

Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress 18 stated at cost less impairment loss, if any, and consists of
expenditure incurred and advances made 1n respect of assets m the course of their acquisition,
construction and installation. Transfers are made lo relevant asset categories as and when
assets are available for mtended use.

Stores, spares and loose tools

These are stated at first in first out less provision for slow moving items, if any. ltems in transit
are stated at cost comprnising mmvoice value plus other charges incurred thereon up to the
reporting date. Provision for obsolete and slow moving stores, spares and loose tools is
determined based on the management’s estimate regarding their future usability.

Stock-in-trade

These are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value applying the following basis:
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Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs meurred in bringing
the inventones to their present location and condition.

- Raw matenal (local and imported) Weighted average cost compnsing purchase price,
transportation and other overheads. [tems m transit
are stated al invoice value and other charges
incurred till the reporting date.

- Work-in-process and linished goods Weighted average cost comprising direct cost of
raw matenial, labor and appropnate portion of
production overheads.

- Waste Net realisable value (NRV)

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less
estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make sales.

Trade debis and other receivables

These are recognized mitially are carnied at original invoice amount being the far value of the
consideration to be received in future. An allowance for Expected Credit Loss (ECL) 1s made
against trade debts on the basis of lifetime expecled credit loss model. The amount of
provision / reversal of ECL 1s charged / reversed to the consohidated statement of profit or loss.

Trade debis and other receivables considered rrecoverable are wrntten ofT.
Financial instruments

A financial instrument 15 any contract that gives nse to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity mstrument of another entity.

Classification of financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets mio following three categones:
Al amortized cost (“AC™),
Fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI™) and
Fair value through profit or loss (“"FVTPL™).

The management determines the classification of financial assets into appropriate categories
based on the Group’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual
terms of the cash flows.
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Financial assets at amortised cost

A fAnancial asset 18 measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the followmg conditions and
is not designated as FVTPL:

1) the asset i1s held within a business model whose objective 1s to hold assets to collect
contractual cash MNows; and

2)  the contractual terms of the financial asset give nse on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

The amortized cost of a financial asset 1s the amount at which the financial asset 1s measured at
mitial recogmtion minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative amortization using the
effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity
amount, adjusted for any loss allowance. The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is the
amortized cost ol a financial asset before adjusting for any loss allowance.

Financial assets at FYTOCI1

A finaneial assel 1s measured at FVTOCT only il it meets both of the following conditions and
15 nol designated as FVTPL:

1)  the asset is held within a business model whose objective 18 achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

2)  the contructual terms of the fnancial assel give rise on specified dates (o cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On mitial recognition, for an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Group may
mrevocably elect to present subsequent changes m far value i OCI, only dividend income 1s
recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss. This election 1s made on an investment-
by-investment basis.

FVTOCI financial asseis are subsequently measured at fair value with gains and losses ansing
due to changes in fuir value recogmized in consohdated statement of other comprehensive
mcome.

Financial assets at FVTPL

All other hinuncial assets are classified at FVTPL (for example: equity held for trading and
debt securities not classified either as AC or FVTOCI).
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In addition, on imtial recognition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset that
otherwise meels the requirements to be measured at amortized cost or at FVTOCT as at FVTPL
if doing so0 elminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismalch that would otherwise
arse.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their mitial recogmition, except in the peniod
after the Group changes its busimess model for managing financial assets.

Initial Recognition and Subsequently Measurement

All financial assets are recognized at the time when the Group becomes a parly to the
contractual provisions of the mnstrument. Financial assets at smortized cost are mitially
recognized at fair value and are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
mierest method. The amortized cost 15 reduced by impamrment losses, 1f any. Interest income
and impairment losses are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Fmancial assets camed at fair value through other comprehensive imcome are mitially and
subsequently measured at [air value, with gains and losses ansing from changes m fair value
recognized in consohidated statement of other comprehensive income.

Financial assets camed at fair value through profit or loss are imitially recorded at Far value
and transaction costs are expensed i the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Realized and
unrealized gams and losses arising from chanpes i the fair values of the fnancial assets held
al fair value through profit or loss are included n the consolidated statement of profit or loss n
the penod in which they arise.

All purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on the trade date which is the date on
which the Group commits to purchase or sell the financial assel.

Derccognition of financial assels

Financial assets are derecognized when the nights to receive cash flows from the assets have
expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the risk and
rewards of ownership. On derecognition of a linancial asset, in ils entirety, the difference
between Lhe asset's carrying amount and the sum ol the consideration received and receivable
i recognmized m the consohdated statement of comprehensive mcome.

Financial liabilities

All financial Liabilities are recognized at the time when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial liabilittes are recognized mitially at [ar
value less any directly attributable transaction cost. Subsequently to imtial recognition, these
are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.
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Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial hability is derecognized when the obligation under the hability 15 discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial hability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms or the terms of an existing hability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification 15 treated as a de-recognition of the original
hability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference 1n the respective carrying
amounts 1s recognized n the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial habilities are offsel and the net amount 18 reported in the
consolidated statement of fnancial position 1if there 1s a currently enforceable legal right 10
offset the recogmized amounts and there is an intention (o settle on a net basis, to realize the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected eredit losses (ECL) associated
with its debt mstruments camed at amortized cost and at Fur value through other
comprehensive income. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit nsk.

The Group applies the simplified approach permitied by IFRS 9, which requires expected
lifetime losses to be recogmzed from mitial recognition of the receivables.

The Group measures ECL of a financial instrument in a way that reflects:

#) an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that 15 determined by evaluating a range of
possible outcomes;

b) the time value of money; and

¢) reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort at the
reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions.

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the probability of default, loss
given default (i.e. the magmitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss given default 15 based on historical data
adjusted by forward-looking information as described above. As for the exposure at default for
financial assets, this is represented by the assets' gross carrying amount al the reporting date.
Generally, credit terms range from 90 to 120 days from the date of delivery.
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The Group recognizes in consolidated statement of profil or loss, as an impairment loss (or
reversal of imparrment), the amount of expected credit losses (or reversal ol impairment) that
is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date. A fmancial asset 1s wntten off
when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash lows.

Impairment of non financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets at
each reporting date to identify circumstances indicating occurrence of mmparrment loss or
reversal of previous impairment losses. An mmpamrment loss 18 recogmzed in the consohdated
statement of profil or loss for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount 1s the higher of an asset’s fmr value less cost to
sale and value in use. Reversal of impaimrment loss is restnicted to the original cost of the assel.

Foreign currency transactions and translation

Monetary assets and habilities denominated in foreign curmrencies are translated into Pakistani
Rupees at the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and habilities that are
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into Pakistam1 Rupees at the
exchange mate when the farr value was determined. Non-monetary items thal are measured
based on historical cost in a foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate at the date of
the transaction. Foreign currency differences are penerally recognized in the consohdated
statement of profit or loss.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised in the consohdated statement of financial position when the Group
has a present, legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it 1s probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. Provisions are reviewed at
each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents used in consohidated statement of cash flows include cash in hand
balances with banks m current and deposit accounts and short tlerm borrowings. Short-term
borrowings availed by the Group, are payable on demind and form an mtegral part of the
Group’s cash management.

Retirement benefit obligation
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Defined benefit plan - Unfunded Gratuity

The Holding Group operates an unfunded gratuity scheme covering all its factory workers who
have completed the mimimum qualifying perniod of service as defined under the scheme. The
Group's obligation under the scheme is determined through actuarial valuation carmied out at
each year end under the Projected Unit Credit Method. Remeasurements which comprse
actuanial gains and losses are recogmized mmmediately in consolidated statement of other
comprehensive income.

The Holding Group determines the interest expense on the defined benefit hability for the
period by applyving the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the
beginming of the annual period to then defined benefit liability, taking mto account amy
changes in the defined benefit liability duning the period as a result of benelit payments.
Interest expense and current service cost are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

Defined contribution plan

A defined contnbution plan 15 a post - employment benefit plan under which the Holding
Group pays fixed contnbution into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive
obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations for contributions lo defined contribution plans
are recognized as an employee benefit expense in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
imcome when they are due al the rate of 8.33% of basic salary per annum.

Taxation
Current tax

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rates of taxation, after
taking into account tax rebates and tax credits available, if any, or tumover at the specified rate
or Altemate Corporate Tax as defined m section 113C of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001,
whichever 1s higher. Charge for cument tax also includes adjustments, where necessary,
relating to prior years which anse from assessment framed / finalized during the year.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax 1s recognized using the hability method, providing for temporary difference
between the carrying amounts of assels and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
amounts used for taxation purposes. The amount of delerred tax provided is based on the
expected manner of realization or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities
using the tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.
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The Group recognizes a deferred tax asset to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits in
the foreseeable future will be available against which the assets can be utilized. Deferred tax

assets are reduced to the extent that it 1s no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be
realized.

Further, the Group also recognizes a deferred tax asset / liability on deficit / surplus on
revaluation of property, plant and equipment which is adjusted agamst the related deficit /

surplus.
Levy

In accordance with the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, computation of final taxes is not based
on taxable mcome. Therefore, as per IAS 12 Application Guidance on Accounting for
Minimum Taxes and Final Taxes issued by the ICAP, these fall within the scope of IFRIC 21/
IAS 37 and accordingly have been classified as levy in these consolidated financial statements,
except for taxes on dividends on the Group's investments in subsidianies and associates which
are specifically within the scope of IAS 12 and hence these continue to be categonzed as
current income tax.

Trade and other payables

Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are carmied at cost which is the fair value of the
consideration to be paid in future for goods and services received, whether or not invoiced to
the Group.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
quahfying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective assets until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. All other
borrowing costs are recognized in consolidated statement of profit or loss n the period in
which they are mcurred.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized as or when performance obligations are satisfied by
transferring control of promised goods to customer, and control is transferred at a point in time
either upon shipment or delivery of goods to customer.

Revenue is recognized at transachion price (which excludes estimates of varnable
consideration), which represents the fair value of the consideration received or receivable
excluding discount, rebates and government levies and the payment is typically due on the
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satisfaction of performance obligation.

Profit on bank deposit is recognized on a time proportion basis on the principal amount
outstanding using the effective yield method.

Guins/(losses) ansing on disposal of investments are included in income and are recognized on
the date when the transaction takes place.

Unrealized sains/(losses) ansing on revaluation of securities classified as 'far value through
profit or loss' are mcluded in consolidated statement of profit or loss in the penod in which
they anse.

Other meome 15 recognized when the right 1o receive 1s established. and the amount and timing
of related receipt 1s virtually certain

Dividend income

Dividend income is recogmzed when the Company’s right to receive payment have been
established and is recogmized i unconsohdated statement of profit or loss and included in
other income.

Dividend and appropriation to / from reserves

vidend distnbution to the Company's shareholders 15 recognmized as a hability and
appropriation to / from reserves are made in the period in which these are approved. However,
if these are approved afier the reporting perod but before the unconsolidated financial
statements are authorized for issue. they are disclosed as subsequent event in the
unconsolidated financial statements.

Contract liability / advance from customers

A contract liabihty is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the
Group has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. [T
a customer pays considerabion before the Group transfers goods or services to the customer, a
contract hability i1s recogmzed when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever s
earhier). Contract habilities are recogmzed as revenue when the Group performs under the
contracl

Earnings per share

The Group presents basic and diluled earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares.
Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attnbutable to ordinary shareholders of
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the Group by the weighted average number of ordinary shares ouistanding dunng the year.
Diluted EPS is determimed by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares.

Leases - Lease linbilities and right-of-use assets

The lease hability is mitially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not
paid at the commencement date discounted usmg the rate of the Group's incremental
borrowing rate being the rate that the lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary
to obtain an asset of similar value in a similar economic environment with similar terms and
conditions.

The lease hability 1s subsequently increased by the interest cost on the lease hability and
decreased by lease payments made. It is re-measured if there s a change m future lease
payments ansing from a change in assessment of whether extension option 15 reasonably
certain (o be exercised or a termination option is reasonably certain not to be exercised. The
corresponding adjustment 1s made to the carrying amount of the nght-of-use asset 1s recorded
mn statement of comprehensive income if the carryimg amount of right-of-use asset has been
reduced to zero.

For short term leases and leases of low [ immatenal value assets, the Group recognizes the
lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-hne basis over the term ol the lease
unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic
benefits from the leased assets are consumed.

Right of use asset

The night-ol~use asset 1s imitally measured at cost which is the mitial measurement of lease
hability, and subsequently at cost less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if

any. The right-of-use asset 18 depreciated using the straight-line method over the lease term, as
disclosed in the respective note.

Government grant

The benefit of interest rate lower than the markel rate on borrowings obtained under State
Bank of Pakistan (SBP) under Temporary Economic Refinance Facility (TERF), 15 accounted
for as a povernment grant which is the difference between amount of loan received and the Tair
value of the loan on the date of disbursemenl. The differential amount presented in
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consolidated statement ol finanecial position as deferred government grant. The amortization of
deferred government grant 15 netted off with finance cost within in the consohdated statement
of profit or loss.

Government oranis are recognized at far value, as deferred income, when there 1s reasonable
assurance that the grants will be received and the Group will be able to comply with the
condiions associated with the grants.

Grants that compensate the Group for expenses mcurred, are recognized on a systematic basis
in the imcome for the year in which the related expenses are recogmized. Grants that
compensate for the cost of an asset are recognized in income on a systematic basis over the
expected useful life of the related asset.

A loan 15 initially recognized and subsequently measured in accordance with [FRS 9. [FRS 9
requires loans al below-markel rates (o be imitially measured at their far value - eg. the
present value of the expected future cash [lows discounted at a market-related interest rate.
The benehil, that 1s the government grant, i$ measured as the difference between the Fur value
ol the loan on inihal recognition and the amount received, which 18 accounted for according to
the nature of the grant.

Operating segment

Operating segments are reporled in a manner consistent with the mternal reporting provided to
the chief operating decision-maker. The chiel operating decision-maker, who is responsible [or
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified
a4 the Board of Directors of the Group that makes strategic decisions.

Related party transactions

All transactions with related parties ansing in the normal course of busmess are conducted as
determined by the management with the approval of the Board of Directors.

Loan from directors

Loans from directors are mmtally recognized at Far value, and subsequently measured at
amortized cost.

In cases where such loans are interest-free, the fair value is determined by discounting future
cash flows at a markel rate ol interest apphicable to similar instruments. The difference

between the loan proceeds and the far value, if matenal, 1s recorded as an equily contribution.

Where the loan 1s repayable on demand, it is classified as a current liability.
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Contingent liabilitics and assets
Contingent liability

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-oceurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation anising
from the past events that is not recogmized because it is not probable that outflow of economic
resources will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

Contingent liabilities are not recogmzed but are disclosed in the notes to the finamcial
statements. When a change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that eutflow is probable,
it will then be recognized as provision.

Contingent asset

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the Group. Contingent assets are not recognized but are disclosed
in the notes to the financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is probable. When
an inflow 15 virtually certain, an asset is recognized.

Share capital and reserves

Ordinary shares are classified as equity and recognized at their face value. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction,
net of tax, from the proceeds. Reserves comprise of capital and revenue reserves. Capital
reserves represent revaluation reserve, equity portion of loan from directors while revenue
reserves comprise of unappropriated profit.

2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Operating Nixed assels

- Owned 5.1 3275634059 3.363.126,163
- Right of use assets 5.1 - 20133505

3.275.634,059 3.365.139.6608

Capital spares 9,442 072 7,549,799
Capital work in progress:

- Building 312 2,197 962 2.160.537

3,287.274,093

3,374 850,004
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3515

5.1.7

For the Year ended June 30, 2025

Forced sale values as per the latest revaluation report as of January 05, 2024 as mentioned in
note 5.1.5 are as follows:

Asset Class Rupees
Freehold land 217,940,000
Factory building on [rechold land 340,475,523
Labor colony on freehold land 17.345.179
Plant and machinery 1,927,349.277
Electric mstallations 10655436
Faclory equipment 4.023 446

Particulars of immovable asset of the Group are as follows:

Location Addresses Total Covered
Area Area
Kot Shah
Nankuana Sahib Muhammad, Tehsil 20,03 10.13
& District Nankana
Punjab

Fair value measurement

Fair value of frechold land, building on frechold land, labor colony on free hold land, electric
istallations and factory eguipment are based on assumptions considered to be level 2 in the fair value
hicrarchy due to significant obhservable inputs used in the valuation, while fair value of plant and
machinery are considered to be level 3 in the fair value hierarchy due to significant unebservable
inputs used in the valuation.

Fair value of freehold land, building on frechold land, labor colony on free hold land have been
derived using a sales comparison approach. Sale prices of comparable land and buildings in close
proximity are adjusted for differences in key attributes such as location and size of the property.
Moreover value of building also depends upon the type of construction, age and guality. The most
significant input in this valuation approach is price/rate per square foot in particular locality.

Valuation techniques used to derive level 3 fair values - Plant and machinery

In the absence of current prices in an active market, the fair value is determined by taking into
account the following factors:

-Make, model, country of onigin ete.
-Operational capacity

- Present physical condition

-Resale prospects

-Obsolescence
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Her
The valuation 15 considered to be level 3 in the fair value hierarchy due to the above

unobservable mputs used in the valuation. Most sigmficant input in this valuation 15 the
current replacement cost which is adjusted for factors above.

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year ended June 30, 2025

5.1.8  The following is a statement of capital work in progress

Building on Plant & machinery Total
frechold land
Rupees Rupees Rupees
Balance as at July 1, 2023 199,111,306 1.282,051,280 338,951,410
Capital expenditune incurred durmge the year 2645630 43,191,255 45 836, 888
Transfer 1o operating fixed assets (199_596,399) (1,325 242 538) -
Balance s at June 30, 2024 2,160,537 - 384 818298
Capilal cxpenditure incurred during the year ITALS - F7.425
Transler o operating fixed assels - - -
Balance as al June 30, 2025 2.197.962 = 3,197,962
5.1.9 Movement in capital spares is as follows
Rupees
Balance as at July 1, 2023 20,913,332
Transfer to operating fixed assets (13,363,533)
Balance as at June 30, 2024 7,549,799
Addition to capital spares 1,892.273
Balance as at June 30, 2025 9442 072
6. STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS
2025 2024
Note Rupees Rupees
Store and spares:
In hand 47,746,757 61,124,690
In transit 15,786 117,067
47,762,543 61,241,757
2025 2024
MNote Rupees Rupees
Loose tools - 64,585
47,762,543 61,306,342
Less: provision for slow moving stores (8,594.416) (7,743.217)
39 168,127 53,563,125
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7.1

B.1

8.2

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year ended June 30, 2025
STOCEK-IN-TRADE

Raw material

In hand - cotton

In hand - yam
Raw matenal in transit
Work-in-process

- Yam

- Home textile

Finished goods in hand - yam 7.1
Waste - yarn

W

1,006,322,600 1,121,028,719
1,108,624 1,735,289
406,420,584 428,156,535
111,511,263 91,441,947
91,383,644 34,327,602
202,894,907 125,769,549
353,228,959 240,222,818
13,597,283 12,066,210
1,983,572,957 1.928,979,120

This represents stock in trade net of net realizable value adjustment amounting to Rs. 7.223

million (2024: nil)
TRADE DEBTS

Considered good

Secured :
Export 8.1
Local

Unsecured :
Local

Considered doubtful
Local

Less: Expected credit loss 82

15,736,864 68,054,472
- 294,825 850
15,736,864 362,880,322
1.653,916,364 749,490,743
1.669,653,228 1.112371,065
44,517,802 18.193.775
1,714.171,030 1,130,564,840
(44.517.802) (18.193.775)
1,669,653,228 1.112,371,065

This meludes Euro nil (2024 : Euro 73,698) and USD 55,490 (2024 : USD 40,744).

Note
Expected credit loss

Balance as at July 1,
Charge during the year
Balance as at June 30,

2025 2024
Ruopees Rupees
18,193,775 14,058,548
26,324,027 4,135227
44517802 18,193,775
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For the Year ended June 30, 2025

8.3 Agcing of trade debis past due but not impaired

W

Not past due 1.125.290.074 748.333.073
0 - 90 days 127,746,691 319,078,576
Q1-180 days 38,656,800 38.876.264
Above 180 days 422 477 464 18,749,610
1,714,171.030 1,125,037,523
9. LOANS AND ADVANCES
Unsecured Considered good
- Loan to employees 9.1 369,000 457000
Advances:
- o employees 1,434 391 506981
- to supphers 02 50.547.133 88,262,057
- for expenses 880,696 558,863
61.871.220 89.327.901
62.240.220 89,784,901
9.1 These represent unsecured, interest free, shori-term loan and advance given to employees of
the Group.

92 This represents payments made to supplier for purchase of raw material and stores and spares.

10. SHORT TERM PREPAYMENTS

Minimum tax levy
Health insurance

Other prepayments

11. OTHER RECEIVABLES

Sales tax

Less: Provision for doubtful receivable
Sales tax - net

Export rebate

Nate

Note

2025 2024
Rupees Rupees
435528410 31,326,445
1,714,904 1,524,963
1,399 141 1.452.577
48.642.455 34303 983
025 2024
Rupees Rupees
192,602,793 129,251 358
- (5,969,340)
192,602,793 123,282,018
11,114,893 7,686,065
203,717,686 130,968,083
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13.2

For the Year ended June 30, 2025

2025 2024
Note Rupees Rupees

Duty draw back receivable 112 5,872,932 5,872,932
Cotton claim receivable 113 39.831.812 39881372
Profit on deposits 4,086,290 0.645.253
Others 1,401,827 1,836,208
51,192,861 57.235.765
254 910,547 18K, 203 848

This comprises of meentives/discounts/refunds and other benefits granted by the Government
of Pakistan.

This represents recetvable from the Government of Pakistan since 2021,
This represents a claim regarding discrepancies related to cotton weight and quality.
Short term investment

- At amortised cost
Term deposit receipis 121 148,099 670 200.455.670

These represent term deposit receipts placed with various banks for a period ranging from six months
to ane year carrying mark-up at the rates ranging from 6.93% to 20.5% (2024: 5.75% to 21.50%%) per
annum. The banks have lien on these term deposit receipis on account of guarantees provided by such
banks as disclosed in note 24.1.1 to the consolidated financial statements. These will mature at various
maturity dates.

CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash in hand 280,531 1.552.529
(Cash at banks
- in current accounts 27.573.305 T.813,036
- in savings account 13.1 84,320,203 6,548,627

132 112,174,039 15,914,192

These carry markup of 5.36% to 10.05% (2024: 13.5% to 20.5%) per annum.

This mcludes an amount of Rs. 78. 14 million (2024: Rs. 6.68 mllion) on which the bank has
created lien on account of guarantee provided by such bank as disclosed in note 24.1.1 to the
financial staternents.
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14. ISSUED SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL
2025 2024 2025 2024
Mumber of Shares Rupees Rupees
Ordinary Sharcs of Rs, 10/-

19852800 12,852,500 198,528,000 198,528,000

cach fully paid

14.1 The Group has one class of ordinary share. which carry equal voling rights but no right to
fixed income. Voling rights, board selection etc. are in proportion to their shareholding,

2025 2024
Nole Rupees Rupees
15, SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT - net of tax
As at July 1, QB9 873,708 973,359,080
Surplus ansing during the year - T8, 747 605
Less: trunstormed to unappropriated profil on account of
- ineremental depreciation - net of tax (534,772,752) (36,339 344)
- related deferred tax liability (7288, 189) (5,893.633)
- disposals - net of tax (309.114) -
- related deferred tax habality (41,131) -
(62, 411_186) (62,232 977)
As gl June 30 927,462 522 9892.873.708
Less: related deferred tax lability on:
Revaluation surplus as at July 1, 70,292 753 105,235,069
Surplus ansing during the year 15 - 3940002
Adjustment due to change n tax ratc 18 16,873,687 (34, 988.685)
Related deferred tax on meremental depreciation (7.288,189) (5.893.633)
Disposal during the year (41,131) -
18 T9.E37.120 70,292,753
As at June 30 #47 625402 919 580,955
2025 2024
16. LONG-TERM FINANCE Note Rupees Rupees
Long term portion
Fimanecial institutions 16.1 428,692,191 433 281 371
Related partics 162 143,272,296 52,818,403
571,964 4RT 486,099,774
Current portion
Financial mstitetions 16.1 315,036,832 332879577
Related partics 162 25931119 5,454 545
340,967,951 338334122
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16.1.4

16.1.5

16.1.6

16.1.7

.
————— CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e

For the Year ended June 30, 2025

The loan is secured by way of 1st exclusive charge over imported solar equipments with a
margin of 25%. The loan is utilized for acquisition and installation of solar equipments in the
factory.

The Group has entered into a Islamic Temporary Economic Refinance Facility (ITERF)
agreement with Dubai Islamic Bank | with having a facility of Rs. 147.217 million. (2024: Rs,
147.217) This facility carries mark up at SBP Base Rate + 4% (2024: SBP Base Rate + 4%).
The tenure of this facility is 7 years with grace period of 2 years. This facility 15 secured
agamst 1st exclusive charge over imported plant and machinery, and land having a pari passu
charge also personal gunarantee of all the directors and mortgagors of the Group.

The Group has entered into a Temporary Economic Refinance Facility (TERF) agreement with
bank, with the total limit aggregating to Rs. 163.59 million (2024: Rs. 163.59 million). This
facility carry mark up of SBP Base Rate + 4% (2024: SBP Base Rate + 4%). The tenure of this
facility is 5 years with grace period of 1 year. This facility is secured against first exclusive
hypothecation charge over specific machinery and equipment with 25% margin.

The Group has entered into a Term finance agreement with bank, with the total limit
aggregating to Rs. 50 million (2024: Rs. 50 million). This facility carry mark up of SBP Base
Rate + 2% (2024: SBI Base Rate  29). The tenure of this facility is 5 years with grace period
of 1 year. The loan is secured by way of st exclusive charge over specific machinery over
landed cost with a margin of 25%.

The Group has entered into a Long term finance facility (LTFF) with bank, with the total limit
aggregating to Rs. 108.5 million (2024: Rs. 108.5 million). This facility carry mark up of SBP
Base Rate + 3% (2024: SBP Base Rate + 3%). The tenure of this facility is 10 years with grace
period of 2 year. The loan is secured by way of specific charpe over imported land and
machinery to cover 100% exposure (principal amount only). Whereas, 25% margin shall be
covered through charge over present and future fixed asset of the Group.

The loan is secured by way of specific charge over imported land and machinery to cover
100% exposure (principal amount only). Whereas, 25% margin shall be covered through
charge over present and future fixed asset of the Group.

The Group has entered into a Temporary Economic Refinance Facility (TERF) agreement with
banks, having a facility of Rs. 1875 million (2024: Rs. 187.5 million). This facility carries
mark ap at SBP Base Rate | 4% (2024: SBP Base Rate + 4%). The tenure of this facility is 10
years with grace period of 2 years. The loan is secured against Ist exclusive charge over
specific plant and machinery.
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year ended June 30, 2025

16.1.8 The Group has entered into a Temporary Economic Refinance Facility (TERF) agreement with

banks, having the facility of Rs. 4521 million (2024: Rs. 45.9] million). This facility carry
mark up at SBP Base Rate 1 4% (2024: SBP Base Rate + 4%). The tenure of this facility is 10
vears with grace period of 2 years. The loan is secured against 1st exclusive charge over
specific plant and machinery.

16.19. The loan is obtained to meet the capital expenditure reguirement of the Group. The loan is

16.1.10

16.2

16.2.1

16:2.2

17.

secured by way of first exclusive and specific hypothecation charge over imported machinery
of the Group.

These represent plant and machinery and vehicles and solar panel acquired under musharaka
arrangement. The rates of mark-up ranges trom 13.94% to 22.24%,

W

2025 2024
Note Rupeces Rupees

Loan from rclated partics - unsecured

143 272 2946 52818403
Opening as at July 01, 58272948 77,274,471
Receipts during the vear 134210474 -
Repayments during the year - (6,148.312)
Unwinding of discount 28 16453279 10,445 404
Less: Fair value adjustment 16.2.2 (59,733.286) (23.298.611)

169203 415 58,272 948
Payable within one year 15 (25931,119) (5,454.545)
Closing as at June 30, 143272296 52 818403

Loans from related parties are extended to fulfill the Group's working capital needs. The loans
received from directors are due to be paid on different maturities ranging from December 2027
to June 2029, unless otherwise the terms of repayment are further extended.

This includes an equity component of Rs. 57.642 million relating to a lean of Rs. 154210
million obtained during the year.

DEFERRED GOVERNMENT GRANT

Deferred grant against temporary economic

refinance facility 73399575 102,337,608
Current portion of deferred Government (23,752,731) (27,857,022)
grant 49,646 844 T4.480 586
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W

This relates 1o the difference between the [air value of the loan and total loan amount recetved
under the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) Temporary Economic Refinance Facility (TERF)
scheme. The loan 1s amortized by discounting the total loan amount received over the penod
of 10 years from the date of loan disbursed and the difference between the total amount and
it's disbursed value recognized as deferred povernment grant .

Note
DEFERRED TAXATION - NET

Balance as at July 1,

Reversal to profil or loss 32
Charged to other comprehensive income
Adjustment to the related deferred

tax liability on revaluation surplus 15
Tax rate adjustment on surplus 15
Balance as at June 30,

This comprises of the following:
Taxable temporary differences:

- accelerated depreciation on property, plant and
equipment

- surplus on revaluation of property, plant and
equipment

- Other financial assel

Deductible iemporary differences:

- provision for doubtful trade debts

- provision for stock mn trade

- provision for stores and spares

- provision for doubtful other receivables
- provision for stafT gratuty

- minimum Lax

- WWF liability

2025 2024
Rupees Rupees
115,398.617 171,199,476
(3.008,528) (26,519,307)
(372.334) (232.869)
- 5,940,002
16,873.687 (34.988.685)
128,891 442 115.398.617
148,635,388 108,037,572
79,878,250 70,292,752
(704,765) 054 888
227,808,873 179,285,212
5,227,993 1,331,383
912,193 -
1,009,294 733,304
- 565,313
10,389,956 7,121,178
78,356,415 51,698,755
3,021,580 2,436,662
(98.917.431) (63,886.595)
128.891.442 115.398.617
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2025 2024
Note Rupees Rupees
19. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATION
Factory 19.2 88,220,972 74,942 694
Head office 19.10 252372 252,372
88,473 344 75.195.066

19.1 Retirement benefit obligation - defined benefit plan

The Projected Unil Credit Method based on following significant assumplions was used for
valuation of the scheme. The disclosure made in notes 20.2 1o 20,11 are based on information
included in acturial reporl. The basis of recognition logether wilh details as per acluarial
valuation conducied as al June 30, 2025 are as under:

19.2

19.3

The principal assumplions used are as follows:

- Discount rate
- Expected rate of salary increase
- Mortality rate

14.75%
10.75%

Liability recognized in the statement of financial position

Present value of retirement benefit
obligation (RBO) 19.3

Movement in Retirement benefit obligation
(RBO) during the year

Balance as at July 1,
Expense recognized in stalement of
profit or loss 19.4

Remeasurement loss recopmized n

other comprehensive meome 19.5
Benefits paid

Benefits due but not yet paid

16.25%
15.25%

SLIC (2001-2005)-adjusted

88,220,972 74,942 694
74,942,694 78,522,743
27,201,765 31,977,786

1,283,912 802,995
(7.837,000) (30,793,500)
(7.370.399) (5,567,330
88,220,972 74,942,694
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MNote

Expense recognized in profit or loss

Current service cost
Interest cost

Total remeasurements recognized in
other comprehensive income

Actuanial gain on hahality ansing on
- demographic assumptions

- financial assumptions

- expenience adjustments

W

2025 2024
Rupees Rupees
17,396,886 22,172,158
9,804.879 9.805.628
27,201,765 31,977,786
745,055
(685,399) (265,428)
1,224,256 1,068,423
1,283,912 802,995

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of
the respective assumptions occurrmg al the end of the reporting peniod, while holding all
other assumptions constant:

Current year Increase /(decrease) in defined benefit obligation

Change in Increase in Decrease in
Assumption Assumption Assumption
Discount rate 1% (3.902,987) 4,379,230
Salary growth rate 1% 4,578,270 (4,157,790)
Prior year Increase [{decrease) in defined benefit obligation
Change in Increase in Decrease in
Assumption Assumption Assumption
Discount rate 1% (3,.801,299) 4293611
Salary growth rate 1% 4,441,121 (4.002,239)

The gratunty scheme exposes the Group (o the following nisks:

Final salary risk (linked to inflation risk): The risk that the Gnal salary at the tme of
cessation of service is greater than what we assumed. Since the benefit 1s calculated on the
final salary (which will closely reflect inflation and other macroeconomic [actors), the benelit
amount increases as salary mcreases.
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19.8

19.9

19.10

19.11

20.

For the Year ended June 30, 2025

Mortality risk - The risk that the actual mortalily expenience 15 different than the assumed
mortality. This effect 15 more pronounced in schemes where the age and service distnbution 15
on the higer side.

Withdrawal risk: The nsk ol aclual withdrawals experience 18 different from assumed
withdrawal probability. The sigmificance of the withdrawal rnisk varnes with the age, service
and the entitled benefits of the benefictary.

The weighled average duration of the defined benefil obligation as at June 30, 2025 18 5 years
(2024: 5 years).

Number of employees covered by the scheme are 708 (2024: 513).

This amount relates to the unfunded gratuity scheme [or the head olfice stall which 1s freezed
since 2002, as per the Group policy.

Based on the actuarial advice, the Group mlends to charge Rs. 36.911 million in the
consolidated financial statements for the year ending June 30, 2026.

2025 2024
Nole Rupees Rupees
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Creditors 176,890,457 172,988,847
Accrued habilities 209,184,609 104595416
Contract liabilities 20.1 1,490 906,852 710414663
Workers' welfare fund 25,729 585 25,729,585
Sindh Infrastructure cess 202 184,437,105 166,078,418
Gratuity due but not yet paid 203 5,971,710 8.797.611
Provision for gas infrastructure

development cess 2312 5,403,945 5,733,225
Payable 1o provident fund 597924 625311
Minimum tax levy 204 45,031,540 49,920,855
Withholding tax payable 5,639,492 30,325,478

2,149.793.219 1275209410
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2025 2024
Note Rupees Rupees
Movement of Contract liabilities
Opening balance 710,414,663 189,026,671
Advance received during the year 1 988.675.859 2426 015,870
Transferred to revenue during the year (1,208,318,068) (1,904,627.877)
Closing balance 1.490.772,454 710,414,663

The Government of Sindh through Sindh Finance Act, 1994 provided for imposition of an
infrastructure fee (cess) for the development and mamienance of mfrastructure on goods
entering or leaving the province through air or sea at prescnibed rates. The levy was
challenged by the Group along with other companies in the Honorable High Court (HCS) of
Sindh through civil suits which were dismissed by the single judge of the HCS through its
decision i October 2003, On appeal filed there agamnst, the HCS has held through an order
passed m September 2008 that the levy as mmposed through the Sindh Finance Act, 1994
(amended time to time) was not vahid till December 28, 2006, however, thereafler on account
of an amendment m the Sidh Finance (Amendment) Ordinance, 2006, it had become valid
and is payable by the Appellants. The Holding Company, along with other compamies, filed
an appeal in the Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan (SCP) agamst the aforementioned
order of the High Court of Sindh. The SCP granted stay by passing an intenm order on
January 22, 2009, The order passed by the HCS was sel aside by the SCP vide its order dated
May 20, 2011. Consequently, a new petition has been filed in the HCS. Through the interim
order passed on May 31, 2011, the HCS has ordered that for every consignment cleared after
December 28, 2006, 50% of the value of mfrastructure fee (cess) should be paid in cash and a
bank guarantee for the remaining amount should be submitted until the final order 15 passed.
Refer notes 13 & 23

On April 06, 2021, the HCS vide order C.P.No D-3309 / 2011, summoned to encash all the
bank guarantees furmshed by the pettioners. The HCS issued this order reasoning that the
entire cargo being imported in the country routes through the province of Sindh, and for that
the Provincial Legislature thought 1t appropnate (o impose a certain amount of tax m the form
of a cess. It is though being collected from an importer of goods, but in essence it s not on
mmports; but for mantenance and development of mfrastructure on imported goods. However,
during the year ended June 30, 2022, the SCP vide its order dated September 01, 2021,
suspended the order 1ssued by HCS stating that it suffers from constitutional and legal defects
and granted the mtenim relief to the Holding Company and other petitioners. The order 1ssued
by the SCP stales that the petitioners shall keep the bank guasrantees already submitted
pursuant to the earlier order of HCS and shall furmish the fresh bank guarantees equivalent to
the amount of levy clmmed by the Sidh Government agamst release of all future
consignments of imported goods.
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During the prior year, a wril petition No. 42176 / 2020 was filed by All Pakistan Textile Mills
Association (APTMA) (where the Holding Company is also a party to the petiion). The
Management is confident for a favorable outcome. However, the Holding Company has made

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year ended June 30, 2025

provision as follows:

2025 2024
Note Rupees Rupees
Balance as at July 1, 166,078,418 141,343 416
Charge for the year 18,358,687 24,735,002
Balance as at June 30, 184.437.105 166,078,418
20,3 Movement in gratuity due but not yet paid
Balance as at July 1, 8,797,611 5,814,581
(Payment) / transfer made during the year -
nel 193 (2,825.901) 2,983,030
5,971,710 8,797,611
20.4 Levy Payable
Minimum tax levy 38,305,127 31,326,445
Final tax 6,726413 18,594 411
45,031,540 49,920,855
21. ACCRUED MARK-UP
Long-term finance 11,936,123 17,122 368
Short-term borrowings 63,000,720 96,891 318
74,936,843 114,013,686
22. SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS
Running finance 573,834,251 609,283,094
Cash finance 853,090,093 393,674,857
Finance against Imported Merchandise (FIM) 635,894 812 1,031,873,785
Loan from ORA Saphaire Inc. - 6,958,529
22.1 2,062,819,156 2,041,790.265
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The Facilities for running finance, cash finance, finance against imported merchandise are
available from vanous banks up to Rs. 3,600 million (2024: Rs. 2,925 million). These
facilities are subject to mark-up at 3 month KIBOR plus 1% 10 2.5% (2024: 3 month
KIBOR plus 1% to 2.5%) per annum payable quarterly. These are secured agamst various
assels including first pan passu hypothecation charge over present and future stock-in-
trade, pledge of cotton, first hypothecation charge over present and future book debts,
ranking charge on the stocks and receivables of the Group, plants and machinery, equitable
mortgage on various properties and personal guarantees ol all the directors of the Group.

The aggregate unavailed short-term borrowing facilities amounted to Rs.1.538 million
(2024; Rs. 892 million).

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
Contingencies

In August 2013, the Oil and Gas Regulatory Authority (OGRA) vide its SR.O. #
T26(I¥2015 notified the sale price for sale of natural gas at Rs. 573 28/MMBTU for Captive
Power Consumption (CPP) with immediate effect. Subsequent to the said S.R.0., the Group
received gas bills at Rs. 573.28/MMBTL, being considered as CPP by the utility Group.
The Group, considening itself as mdustnal consumer paid gas charges al the rate apphicable
before August 2013 based on the stay order obtamed from the CourL

Subsequently, on September 1, 2015, OGRA vide 1ts S.R.O. # §76(1)/2015 notified the price
for sale of natural gas at Rs. 600/MMBTU for industnal consumers and on CPC, with effect
from September 1, 2015, Aggnieved by the notification, the Holding Company filed a suit in
the Honorable Lahore High Court (LHC) contending that the mandatory procedures as laid
down in the OGRA Ordinance, 2002 and Rules made thereunder were not fulfilled while
issumg the notification. Hence, the Group paud / accrued gas charpges al rates applicable
before the above S.R.O. # T26(I)¥2015 on the basis of stay order obtained from LHC,
Multzn bench, from time to ime, until November 2015

From December 2015, the SNGIP'L has started supplying mported Liquefied Natural Gas
(LNG) resulting in the change in rates over which no dispute has been raised by the Holding

Company.

On July 6. 2020, the OGRA issued a decision whereby, the Holding Company (the
petitioner) was directed to pay the outstanding amount to the utility Company within 3() day
period from the date of decision. In response to the above decision, a wril petition was filed
before the LHC by the Holding Company and the LHC issued a stay order on Oclober 8,
2020, which suspended the OGRA's decision, however, the case is still pending before
LHC.
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23.1.2 The Federal Government issued Gas Infrastructure Development Cess (GIDC) Act in the
years 2011, 2014 and 2015, All GIDC Acts have been subject of thorough debate and
consideration at honorable High Courts of the country as well as the Honorable Supreme
Court of Pakistan (SCP).

On August 12, 2020, the SCP 1ssued its verdict (judgement) and held that “the levy imposed
under Gas Infrastructure Development Cess Act, 2015 (the Act) is in accordance with the
provisions of the Constitution”. The SCP has also held that “the provisions of section 8 of
the Act. which give retrospective effect to the charge and recovery of GIDC levied from the
year 2011 are also declared to be vahd being within the legislative competence of the
Parliament.” However, since the Holding Company 1s an industnal concern and it did not
pass on the burden of GIDC to its consumers prior to the GIDC Act, 2015 (or even
therealter), management believes that the Holding Company 15 entitled to the exemplion
under the [irst proviso to Section 8(2) of the GIDC Act, 2015 from payment of the GIDC
levied under the GIDC Act, 2011 and GIDC Ordinance, 2014. As such, arrears due from the
Group may only include amounis levied under the GIDC Act, 2015 from the date of its
commencement, i.e., May 22, 2015.

Subsequent to the Order passed by the SCP on August 12, 2020, SNGPL submitted bills to
the industry including the Holding Company claiming arrears of frst mstalment in
deference to the said Judgement of the SCP. As the bills of arrears were calculated for
monthly imstalment on the basis of entire total payable amount from 2011 to July 2020 by
charging cess on the higher rate of tanff applicable to Captive Connections apart from the
fact that the implication of Section 8 of the smid Act, 2015 was not taken inlo consideration
whereby it was provided that the mdustry, which has not collected the cess from the
customers prior 1o 2015 shall not be liable to the payment of GIDC for the said period from
2011 to 2015. Durmg the year 2020, a writ petiion No. 42176 / 2020 was filed by All
Pakistan Textile Mills Association (APTMA) (where the Holding Company is also a party
to the petition) before Honorable High Court at Lahore agamnst imposition of GIDC Act
2015 and the recovery of cess from December 2011 to May 2015. Further, duning the prior
year, SNGPL started billing for GIDC to the Holding Company agamst which payment was
made by the Group till March 2021 based on the order issued by LHC apainst the
aforementioned writ petition. Pursuant to the order, LHC restramed SNGPL from charging
the cess at the higher tanif rate of Caphive Connection and directed (o i1ssue revised ball
calculated at the rate applicable 10 indusinal connection. Besides, the payment for the period
from 2011 to 2015 was also suspended in view of the imphcation of the said provision of
law. Further, the Holdmg Company made payment which 15 applicable to industnial
consumers and for the difference between the amount charged to industrial consumers and
captive power consumers, post-dated cheques are bemng issued by the Group in favor of
SNGPL. For the amount relating to the payment of GIDC based on the actual calculation
prior to 2015, the decision was made by the LHC on June 27, 2021 whereby it has
restrained the SNGPL to collect the cess prior to 2015.
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On September 27, 2021, the LHC issued a judgment on writ petition No. 42716 / 2020 whereby
it was concluded that all the parties to the petition (including the Group) fall under the category
of mdustrial consumers rather than Captive Power Plant and shall remain liable to the tanfT
applicable to industrial consumers.

During the prior years, the Holding Company filed an appeal before the HCS on the ground
that no burden of GIDC had been passed to its customers / clients and thus the Group 15 not
hable to pay GIDC under GIDC Act 2015, The HCS granted stay order against recovery of
GIDC payable by the Group tll the fAnalization of matter by HCS. The matter 15 currently
pending in the HCS. However, as a malter of abundant caution and without prejudice to the
suits filed, the Holding Company has made aggregate provision of Rs. 5.4 million (2024: Rs.
5.4 million) in respect of GIDC up to June 30, 2025.

An order dated November 11, 2020 was passed against the Holding Company by Collector of
Customs, Karachi creating a demand of Rs. 13.023 million along with a penalty of Rs. 0.5
million. The Group has challenged the above order by way of filing an appeal before the
Customs Appellate Tribunal at Karachi, which is pending for final adjudication. However. a
stay order was successfully obtained from Honorable Sindh High Court on December 22, 2020
by filing Constitutional Petition number 6618 / 2020, which 1s sull operative.

2025 2024

Rupecs Rupees
Commitments
Letiers of credit opened and outstanding for import:
- Stores and spares 3.207.423 6.471.076
- Raw matenial 226,882,018 476.600.215
Letter of guarantee issued by bank on behall of the
Grroup to:
- Lahore Electric Supply Group Limited 34,095,568 34,095,568
- Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited 93.913.000 81,684,800
- Excise and Taxation Office 184,437,105 165,258,600
= Post dated cheques given to Collector of Customs 1,010,420,492 980,158,170

as indemmnity
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Revenue from contract with customer - net

Note

Yarn
- Local
- Export
- Indirect export

Home textile
- Local
- Export

Raw malterial - local

Waste - local

Less:
Sales tax
Brokerage and commission

W

2025 2024
Rupees Rupees
2.697,004.869 2,165,871.,496
1,249 928,953 1,682,072,784
678,666,457 2,231.968415
4,625,600,279 6.079,912,695
28,997,756 22.515,521
312,183,518 321,584,956
341,181,274 344100477
674,653,083 487,840,237
300,420,053 355.681.836
5,941,854,689 7,267,535.245
(707,778,726) (778,943, 841)
(3,388.069) (19.328.548)
5,230,687,894 6,469 262 856

Revenue recognized during the year from contract labilities amounted to Rs. 1,208.32 million

(2024 - Rs. 1,904.63 million)

COST OF SALES
Raw material consumed 25.1

Salaries, wages and benefits 23.1.1
Fuel and power

Depreciation 513
Stores, spares and loose tools consumed

Packing matenal

Insurance

Repairs and maintenance

Vehicles unning and mamtenance

Other manulacturing overheads

2,689,328,806 3,557,010,514
282,397,396 260,700,700
1,025,952,260 043,888,167
125,931,877 119,526,130
69,303,088 67.443,925
69,619,193 69,642,550
17,528.283 18,400,863
3,867,681 2,750,950
5,220,007 5,894,092
4,296,964 3,761,375
1,604,117,649 1,492,008,753
4293 446,455 5.049.019.267
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Note
Work in process
Work-in-process
Opening stock

Closing stock

Cost of goods manufactured

Fmished goods
Opening stock
Yamn purchased
Yarn transferred from home textile
Yarn transferred to home textile
Closing stock

Cost of home textile
Cost of raw matenal sold

25.1 Raw material consumed

Opening stock
Purchases - net

Closing stock

W

2025 2024
Rupees Rupees
91,441 948 76,496,220
(111,511,263) (91,441,948)
(20,069.315) (14,945,728)
4.273,377,140 5,034,073,539
252,289,028 460,111,663
19,000,000 24,003,800
978,500 1,912,500
(19,000,000) (57,141,750
(366,826,242) (252,289,028
(113,558,714) 176,597,185
132,659,293 241,512,666
598,195,526 389,220,006
4.890,673.245 5,841,403,396
1.121,028.719 726,259 683
2,574,622 687 3,951,779,550
3,695,651 406 4,678.039.233
(1.006322.600) (1,121,028,719)
2,689,328.806 3,557.010,514

25.1.1  Salaries, wages and benefits mclude Rs. 28.93 million (2024: Rs. 31.98 million) in respect of

charge for stafl retirement benefit obhgations.
26. DISTRIBUTION COST

Freight and octroi
Commission and other charges
Clearing and forwarding
Business promotion expenses
Export development surcharge

12059419 27634471
5,714,484 6,396,102
30,162 983 24,430,050
1,841,250 9R5. 1M
3,713,857 4812443
53,491.993 64258, 167

143




2025 2024
Note Rupees Rupees
27. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Salaries and benefits 27.1 75,503 (93 79,586,634
Fees, subscription and periodicals 5. 732,064 5607432
Entertainment 3,061,559 1,877,529
Traveling and conveyance 1,577,834 3451672
Postage and telephone 2.271.262 1.991_369
Electricity, sas and water 2136061 1,847 900
Vehicles running and maintenance 3,559,173 8710819
Depreciation 513 5,994 321 10,285,824
Expected credit loss - trade receivable 8.2 26,324,027 4.135227
Loose tools written of T 64 585 -
Legal and professional 5.2RK RER TE.000
Auditor's remuneration 272 1,795 000 1,650,000
Printing and stationery 927,057 1,133277
Computer 310,200 716,724
Advertisement 461,954 316,150
Daonation 273 3,721,373 3,923,000
Others 1,320,159 3,080,809
139.998.610 128,392 366
27.1 Salaries and benefits include Rs. 2.17 million (2024: Rs. 2.02 million) in respect of charge for
employer's contribution to staff provident fund.
272 Auditors' remuneration
Andii Services
Annual audit fee 1.155.000 1,050,000
Consolidation fee 275,000 250,000
Half year review fee 200,000 200,000
Review of code of corporate governance 55,000 50,000
Certifications 55,000 30,000
Out of pocket expenses 55,000 50000
1,795 000 1,650,000

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year ended June 30, 2025

W

273 No director or their spouse had any interest in the donees' fund. During the year, the Group has
donated Rs. 3.44 million (2024: Rs. 3.92 million) to The Citizens Foundation.
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FINANCE COST

Mark-up on long term finance
Mark-up on short-term bormowings

Interest on lease liability
Unwinding of discount on long-term finance

from related parties
Bank charges. guarantee commission
and other related charges

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Realized exchange loss on foreign
exchange - net

Unrealized exchange loss on foreign
exchange- net

Infrastructure cess

OTHER INCOME

Income from financial assets
Profit on deposits with bank
Dividend Income
Realized gain on short term investment

Income from non-financial assets

Note

202

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Scrap sales
(Other revenue

Export rebate

LEVY

Final tax levy
Minimuom tax differential

311

W

2025 2024
Rupees Rupees

B5,676.109 85,845,782
364,246,419 473.437.026
- 175,669
16,453,280 10,445,400
10,761,095 9,949,394
477136903 379.853.271
14,116,518 25342874
- 936,180
18,358,687 24,735,002
32,475,205 51,014,056
25,575,852 29,771,558
- 198,000
- 399,006
25,575,852 30,368,564
3,703,456 12,627.300
143,032 205,329
- 53,611
5437.823% 5,955,182
9,284,311 18,841 422
34,800,163 49.209.986
22,690,054 39.282,790
38,305,127 31,326,445
60,995,181 70,609,235

This represents minimum tax on turnover under section 113 of Income Tax Ordinance 2001.
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33.

34.
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2025 2024
Note Rupees Rupees
TAXATION

Current
- for the year 321 - 184,254
- prior year (104,695) T58,682

(104.695) 942 936
Deferred I8 (3.008,528) (26,519.307)

(3.113.223) (25.576.371)

Reconciliation of current tax charge charged as per tax laws for the year, with current tax
recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, 1s as follows:

Income tax under IAS 12 184254
Income tax levy under [FRIC 21/IAS 37 60,995,181 70,609,235
Current tax lability as per Income Tax Ordinance 60,995,181 70,793,489

Reconcihiation between lax expense and accounting profit for the current year has not been
presented as there has been no tax at normal rate of taxation under Income Tax Ordinance,

2001.

LOSS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

There 15 no dilutive effect on the basic loss per share of the Group which 1s based on:

Loss for the year Rupees (387,473.548) (191.481.278)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares

outstanding during the year 14 19,852,800 19,852,800
Loss per share Rupees / Share (19.52) (9.65)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances 13 112,174,039 8,607,548
Short-term borrowings 22 (573,834.251)  (609,283,094)

(461,660,212)  (600,675,546)
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38.

39.

For the Year ended June 30, 2025
NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

The total and average number of employees during the year and as at June 30, 2025 and 2024

2025 2024
Total number of employees of the Group as at
reporting date 747 552
Average number of employees of the Group during
the year 694 686

PROVIDENT FUND RELATED DISCLOSURE

Investment made by the Group have been made i accordance with the provisions of section
218 Compamies Act, 2017.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

2025 2024
Rupees Rupees
Financial assets as per statement of financial position
At fair value through profit or loss - -
At amortised cost
Long term deposits 4,513,631 6,063,681
Trade debts 1,704,725,872 1,111,090,989
Loans and advances 1,803,391 963,981
Other receivables 214,832,579 51,362,833
Short term investment 148,099,670 200,455,670
Cash and bank balances 111,893,508 7,055,019

2,185,868,651 1,376,992,173
Financial liabilities as per statement of financial position

At amortized cost
Long-term finance
- from banking compinies 743,729,023 766,160,948
- from related parties 169,203 415 58,272,948
Trade and other payables 386,672,990 261,089,709
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Unclaimed dividend
Accrued mark-up
Short-term borrowings

RECONCILIATION
ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

W

2025 2024
Rupees Rupees
2,739,068 2,739,068
74,936,843 114,013,686
2,062.819,156 2.034,831,736
3,440,100,495 3.237,108,095

OF MOVEMENT OF LIABILITIES TO CASH FLOWS

025
Long Term Long 'Term Limbilities
Lavam - Loan -
Description Inskitutions Helated Short Term Tudaal
Pariy Borrowing
Balance as al July 1, oty 1 6, SEAT2048 1432507071 2256941067
Impact of CGirant 289383253 28,938,253
Unwmding of discount 16451370 16453279
Fumr value sdjustroent (59,733 286) (39,733 J8E)
Loan received 150,090,130 154210474 3005167660 3319468264
Repayment {200,460, 30%) (2955.680.926)  (3.160,150,234)
Balmce s at June 30, X125 743,729,023 169203 415 | 482984905 2401917343
024
Liahilites
Lueng Term
Long Term Loan -
Loan - Reluted Short term Liase

Deseription Institutions Party borrowing Liability Total

Balance as st July 1, 2023 B19222.063 77274471 LOTTLIZM2 | W62284  1.975571,73%

tmpact of Grant 31,168 X46 - 31,168 246

Unwindmg of discount 10,445 400 - 10,445 400

Fair vahuc adjustmenal (23,294.611) (23,298.611)

Loan recerved 61,199 200 3. T01,572.392 3,762.771,392

Repayment durmg the period (145429.161) (6,148312) (3.346,178,163) GUAGHREEE (3499717 920)

Bakance as al June 30, 2024 Tob, 160048 SBITIO4E | 432507171 2756941 067

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND RELATED DISCLOSURES

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Group's finuncial nisk management. To assist the Board in discharging its oversight
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41.1

41.1.1

responsibility, management has been made responsible for identifying, momitoring and
managing the Group's financial risk exposures. The Group has exposure to the following risks
from its use of finaneial mstruments:

- Credit risk
- Ligumdity nisk
- Market nsk

Credit risk

Credit nsk 1s the nsk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an
obligation and cause the other party to meur a financial loss, without taking into account the
fair value of any collateral. Concentration of credit nisk anses when a number of Anancial
instruments or contracts are entered into with the same party, or when counter parties are
engaged in similar business activities, or activities m the saume geographic region, or have
similar econommc features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be
similarly alfected by changes mn economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations of
credit nisk indicate the relative sensitvity of the Group's performance to developments
affecting a particular industry.

Credit nsk of the Group anses pnncipally from the trade debts, loans and advances, other
fmancial assets. other recetvables and bank balances. The carrying amount of [mancial assets
represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit nisk at the
reporting date s as [ollows:

2025 2024
Note Rupees Rupees

Security deposits 4513631 6,063,681
Trade debts 41.1.1 1,704,725,872 1L111,090,989
Loans and advances 41.12 1,803,391 963,981
Other receivables 45,319,929 51,362,833
Short term investment 41.1.3 148,099,670 200,455,670
Bank balances 41.1.3 111,893,508 7,055,019

2,016,356,001 1,376,992,173

Trade debis

The trade debts at year end are due from local and foreign customers against local sales and
export sales respectively. Trade debt due from foreign customers are secured against letter of
credit. For local customers management assesses the credit gquality of customers, taking into
account their inancial position, past expenence and other Lactors. The Group’s exposure Lo
credit nisk ansing from trade debtors 1s mamly influenced by the individual charactenistics of
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41.2

For the Year ended June 30, 2025

each customer. The Group has no major concentration of credit risk with any single customer.
The Group establishes an allowance for impairment that represents lifetime expected credit
losses (ECL) based on analysis of recovery pattern and adjustment of trade debts secured
against letter of credits.

Loans and advances

These include loans and advances given primanly to employees against salanies, which will
be adjusted against therr future salanes or m case of resignation against their post retirement
benefit balances.

Other financial assets and balances with banks

The Group deposits its funds and invests in term deposit receipts (other [inancial assets) with
banks carrying good credit stundmgs assessed by reputable credit agencies. These banks are
credit rated as follows:

Pk R Dati.? of Rating Short L:::-ng

Rating Agency Term Term
Bank Al-Falah Limited 28-Jun-25 PACRA Al+ AAA
Samba Bank Limited 28-Jun-25 PACRA Al AA
Dubai Islamic Bank Pakistan Ltd 28-Jun-25 VIS Al AA
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited 28-Jun-25 PACRA Al AAd
The Bank of Punjab 28-tun-25 PACRA Al AAt
MCB lslamic Bank Limited 2¥-Jun-25 PACRA Al Al
MNational Bank of Pakistan 28-Jun-25 VIS Al AAA
Silk Bank Limited 28-Jun-25 Vis Alt AAA
Bank Islamc Pakistan Lmuted 2B-Jun-25 PACRA Al AA-
Sindh Bank Limited 28-Jun-25 ViS5 Al AA-
Meezan Bank Limited 28-Jun-25 VIS Al AAA
1.5 Bank Limited 28-Jun-25 PACRA Al AA
Habib Bank Limited 28-Jun-25 VIS Al AAA
Bank Al-Habib Limited 28-Jun-25 PACRA Al AAA
Soneri Bank Limited 28-Jun-25 PACRA Al AA-
Askan Bank Limited 28-Jun-25 PACRA Al AA
HAB bank 30-Jun-25 WEISS B B
Liquidity risk

Liquidity nisk is the nisk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations
associated with Onancial habilities that are settled by delivermg cash or another financial
asset. Ligundity nisk anses because of the possibility that the Group could be required to pay
its liabilities earher than expected or would have difficulty m raising [unds to meet
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W

commitments associated with financial habiliies as they fall due. The Group's approach to
managing liquidity 15 to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity
to meet its liabilities when due without incurning unacceplable losses or nsking damage (o the
Group's reputation. The Group manages liguidity nsk by mamtaming sufficient cash and bank
balances and availability of finance through banking arrangements.

The following are the contractual maturittes of financial habilittes, including nterest
payments:

2025
. Contractual maturity upte maturity after
Cliyios sl miiurities nﬂ:?;:: one :ﬂ.r
Long-term finance
- from relxted partics 169203 415 255401474 593119 229470355
- from bemking Companics 743729023 817,128 468 3IRTROA02  4TR339.035
Lease Linhility - - - -
Trude & other paysble 362 584,409 IB66T2.99 386,672,990 -
Unclamed dividend 1,739,068 2,739 068 1.739.068 -
Mirk-up seeured 74,936,843 74.936,843 74,936,843
Short-1erm bormowmgs 1 48R 984 905 488 984 905 1 48K 984,905 -
242,177,663 3025863, 748 23IR054327  TOT.R09.390
2024
; Contractual maturity upte materity after
Carrying amount o
miurities one year one year
Long-torm fimmee
- from related partics 58,272,948 161,191,000 5454545 95,736,455
- from benfang Compaemes Tob, 160,94% K%, 498 558 360,736,599 507,761,957
Lease Linhility - 157,020 157,020
Trade & other payuble 261,089,709 261,089,709 261,089,709 -
Unclamed dividend 2739068 2,739 068 2,739 068 -
Mark-up scoumd 114,013,686 114,013,686 114,013,686 .
Short-term bormowmngs 2034831, 736 L034831,736 2034831736
3,237, 108,095 3IR2520,777 2,719,022 363 603,498,412
Market risk

Market nisk is the nsk that changes in market prices, such as share price, foreign exchange
rates and interest rates will affect the Group's mcome or the value of its holdings of financial
mnstruments. The Group 1s primanly exposed lo mnterest rate nsk and currency nsk.

Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or the future cashflows of a [inancial instrument will
Muctuate because of changes m market prices (other than those arismg from interest rate nsk
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or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual
[mancial instrument or its issuer, or [actors alfecting all similar Anancial nstruments raded
in the market. As al June 30, 2025 the Group is not exposed to price risk.

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or the future cashflows of a linancial instrument will
Muctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those ansing from interest rate nsk
or currency nisk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual
fmancial mstrument or its ssuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded
in the market. As at June 30, 2025 the Group 15 notl exposed to prnice nisk.

Inmicrest rate risk

Interest rate nisk 15 the nisk that the faur value or fulure cash Hows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Group’s exposure (o the nisk of
changes in market miterest rates relates pnmarnly to the Group’s long-term financing, short-
term borrowings, shorl term investment and bank balances in savings account.

Al the reporting date the interest rate risk profile of the Group’s interest-bearing Anancial
instruments 1s:

Carrying Amount
2025 2024
Rupees Rupees

Fixed rate insirumenis

Financial assets - at amortised cost 148000 670 200455670

Financial liabilities - al amortised cost 427.442 297 513,629,844
Variable rate insiruments

Financial assets - at amortised cost 84,320,203 6,548,627

Financial liabilities - al amortised cost 2.548 309297 2.345,635. 788

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instrumenis
The Group does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and labilities at fair value

through profit or loss. Therefore, a change in interest rate at the reporting date would not
affect profit or loss.
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Cash Now sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

A change of 500 basis points in KIBOR based on financial habilities at the reporting date
would have increased / (decreased) equity and profit before tax by Rs. 127.42 million (2024:
Rs. 117.40 million). This analysis assumes that all other vanables remain constant,

Currency risk
Foreign currency risk arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to transactions

with foreign undertakings and bank balances in foreign currency. The Group’s exposure to
foreign currency nisk is as follows:

2025 2024
Rupees
Trade debts 24 655,755 62,527,155
Trade payable 112,045,502 129.3038,404
Average Rate Reporting date rate
2025 2024 2025 2024
Rupees
UsD 279 34 278.52 283.765 278.34

Al June 30, 2025, if the Pakistani Rupee had weakened / strengthened by 1-2% against the
LS Dollar and Euro with all other variables held constant, profit before tax for the year would
have been lower / higher by Rs. 1.75 million (2024: Rs. 3.99 million), mainly as a result of
loreign exchange losses / pams on tmanslation of US Dollar and Euro - denominated (rade
debts and trade payables.

Capital risk management

The objective of the Group when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a
gomg concern so that it can continue to provide retums for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain a strong capital base to support the sustained development of its
businesses.

The Group manages its capilal structure by moniloring retum on nel assets and makes
adjustments to it m the light of changes in economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividend to the shareholders or
1ssue bonus / new shares or sell asset to reduce debt.
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Consistent with others in the industry, the Group manages its capital nisk by monitoring its
ligmnd assets and keeping in view fulure investment requirements and expectation of the
shareholders

As at June 30, 2025 and 2024, the Group had surplus reserves to meet its requirements.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value 1s the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a hability in
an orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date
under current market conditions (1.e. an exit price) regardless of whether that prnice 15 directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique.

The fair value of an asset or a lability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or hability, assuming that market participants
act in ther economic best mlerest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling 1t to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropnate in the cireumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable
imputs and minimizing the use of unobservable mputs.

The different levels of fair valuation method have been defined as follows:
Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2: Inpuls other than quoted prices included i Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prnices), and

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or hability that are not based on observable market data

The carrymg values of all finaneial assets and liabilities reflected m the Gnancial statements
approximate therr fair values.

There are no transfers between the levels during the year.

There are no other assets or liabilites to classify under above levels except the Group's
frechold land, building on freehold land, labor colony on free hold land, plant and machmery,
electric mstallations and factory egquipment are stated at revalued amounts, being the fair
value at the date of revaluation, less subsequent deprectation and subsequent accumulated
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impairment losses, if any. The fair value measurements of these assets camed oul as al
January, 2024, were performed by Harvester Services (Pvt.) Lid. not related to the Group. The
valuer is listed on panel of Pakistan Banks Association and they have appropriate
gualification and expenence in the fair value measurement of properties, plant and machinery

(Refer note 5.1.5).
OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group constitutes a single reportable segment since the executive management monitors
the operating results of the entity for the purpose of making decisions aboul resource
allocation and performance assessment. The entity-wide disclosures required by IFRS 8
'Operating Segments’ are given below:

(1) Group sales comprise of Terry towels and varn whereby more than 95% sales pertaing
o Yam.

(b) As at June 30, 2025 and June 30, 2024, all non-current assets of the Group were
located in Pakistan,
(c) Significant sales are made by Group in the following countries:

2025 2024

Rupees——
Pakistan 3,227,030,154 3.303.202,504
China 1,682.072,784 R12.458,615
Other couniries 321,584,956 B4 479 K18

5.230,687.894 6,469,262 856

CORRESPONDING FIGURES

Corresponding figures have been reclassified and rearranged where necessary to facilitate
comparison, however, no significant reclassification have been made in these consolidated
fMinancial statements.

DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

These  consolidated  [mancial  stalements were  authorized for  issue on
November 04, 2025 by the Board of Directors of the Group.

A\ St W |

Chiof Excculive Chiof Financel Officor




PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
Ason June 30, 2025
NUMBER OF TOTAL
SHARE HOLDERS SHARE HOLOING S SHARES HELD
265 1 - 100 6,360
417 101 = 500 97,768
538 501 = 1,000 364,302
162 1,001 . 5,000 322,036
14 5,001 - 10,000 105,794
10 10,001 - 15,000 118,936
7 15,001 = 20,000 121,752
8 20,001 = 25,000 180,690
2 25,001 . 30,000 55,293
3 30,001 . 35,000 36,810
4 35,001 - 40,000 154,960
2 40,001 = 45,000 85,439
1 55,001 = 60,000 57,959
1 60,001 - 65,000 65,000
1 105,001 - 110,000 110,000
1 115,001 . 120,000 117,500
1 130,001 = 135,000 130,350
1 155,001 = 160,000 158,192
1 200,001 . 705,000 201,671
1 250,001 - 255,000 250,003
1 1,440,001 - 1,445,000 1,442,039
1 4,330,001 = 4,335,000 4,332,557
1 5,525,001 - 5,530,000 5,527,143
1 5,755,001 . 5,760,000 5,755,146
1,544 19,852,800
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
#s on June 30, 2025
. No. of Shares

Categories of Shareholders Shareholders held Percentage
Associated Companies, Undertaking
and Related Paraties - - -
Directors, CFO & their Spouse and
Minor Children oa
Mr. 5. M. Mansoor Allawala 4,332,557 21.823
Mr. Rizwan ldrees Allawala 5,527,143 27.841
Mr. Omair Idrees Allawala 5,755,146 28.589
Syed Masud Arif 500 0.003
Miss. Azra Yagub Vawda 500 0.003
Miss Aamnah Mansoor 2,000 0.010
Mr. Muhammad Zubair 500 0.003
Mrs. Ambreen Mansoor W/o 5. M. Mansoor Allawala 1,442,039 7.2064
Executive - - -
Joint Stock Companies 1" 104,090 0.524
NIT & ICP - - -
Investment Company 1 990 0.005
Other 1 550 0.003
Banks, Development Finance Institutions,
Non-Banking Finance Institutions, Insurance
Companies, Modarabas & Mutual Funds 2 3,850 0.019
Shareholders holding 5% or more voting interest
Mr. 5. M. Mansoor Allawala 4,332,557 21.823
Mr. Rizwan |drees Allawala 5,527,143 27 841
Mr. Omair Idrees Allawala 5,755,146 28.989
Ms. Ambreen Mansoor W/0 5. M. Mansoor Allawala 1,442,039 7.264

CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS

| NUMBER | SHARES HELD

| PERCENTAGE

Associaled Companies, Undertaking, and Refated Parfies -

Directors, CFO & their Spouse & Minor Children 8 17,060,385 85.934
Joint Stock Companies i1 104,090 0.524
Bank, Development Fnance Instilutions 2 3,850 0.019
Insurance Companies, Modarabas
Investmnet Company 1 990 0.005
Other 1 550 0.003
Individuals 1521 2,682,935 13.514
1,544 19,852,800 100.00
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»
———— FORM OF PROXY i

The Secreiary

IDREES TEXTILE MILLS LTD.
Ismail Centre, 1st Floor,

6-C, Central Commercial Area,
Bahadurabad, Karachi - 74800

I'We

of

being a member of Idrees Textile Mills Lid. hereby appoint

of

or failing

of

As my/our proxy in my/our absence 1o atiend and vote for me/us on my/our behalf
at the 36th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on
Thursday November 27, 2025 and at any adjournment thereof.

As witness my hand this of 2025
Signed by the said in the presence of
1. Witness: Signature on

Five Rupees
Signature Reyemon Skamp
Name:
Address

Signature of Member

2. Witness:
Signature Shareholder's Folio No.
Name: CDC Participants 1.D./Sub A/C #
Address CNIC No.

(Important: This form of Proxy, duly completed and signed across a Rs. 5/-revenue
stamp, must be deposited at the Company's Registered Office not less than 48
hours before the time for holding the meeting).
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